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China Development Bank ( "the Bank" or "CDB" ) provides medium- to long-term financing facilities that assist
in the development of a robust economy and a healthy, prosperous community. It aligns its business focus with
national economic strategy and allocates resources to break through bottlenecks in China's economic and
social development.

CDB carries out its mission by:

» Supporting the development of national infrastructure, basic industry, key emerging sectors, and national
priority projects;

* Promoting coordinated regional development and urbanization by financing low-income housing, small
business, agricultural/rural investment, education, healthcare, and environment initiatives;

* Facilitating China's cross-border investment and global business cooperation.

CDB is committed to market-based practices that stimulate solid performance, innovation and sustainable
growth.
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The Board of Directors ( "the Board" ), Board of Supervisors, Directors, Supervisors and Executive Management of China
Development Bank Corporation confirm that the information presented in this report contains no false or misleading

statement or material omission; they and each of them assume joint and several liability as to the authenticity and
completeness of this report.

The Board of Directors of CDB had its second meeting of FY 2014 (CDB has adopted the calendar year as its financial
year) on April 30, 2014, at which meeting the 2013 Annual Report was reviewed and approved.

The Bank's financial statements for FY 2013 are prepared in accordance with China Accounting Standards (CAS) and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) respectively. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants
LLP (DTT) has audited these in accordance with Chinese and international standards of auditing, and has issued an
unqualified auditor's report with respect thereto.

ERFARBRTRNDERATEES

The Board of Directors of China Development Bank Corporation
—O—mEmMA=+H

April 30, 2014
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REPXER: BERFRRTBMOAERAS (FR: BRFRRT)
EERIZM:  CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK CORPORATION
(1817 : CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK:; 485 : CDB)

HEEREA: HIRIB

EMBEAR: AR™3,067.111Z7T

DY bl ERTAAKEXTHRE18S
MR B4R Y ; 100031

R 86-10-6830 6789

fEH: 86-10-6830 6699

[ Br B Bk P 3bik : www.cdb.com.cn

China Development Bank was established in 1994. On December 11, 2008, in accordance with approval from the State
Council of the People's Republic of China ( "the State Council' ), China Development Bank was incorporated as China
Development Bank Corporation.

Registered Name in English: CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK CORPORATION
(shortened to CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK or abbreviated as CDB)

Legal Representative: Hu Huaibang

Registered Capital: RMB 306.71 Billion

Registered Address: No. 18 Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District
Post Code: 100031

Telephone: 86-10-6830 6789

Facsimile: 86-10-6830 6699

Website Address: www.cdb.com.cn
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B . ARM10ZTHESEL
Billion RMB or %
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
RA* 8,188.0 7,520.3 6,252.3 5112.3 4,541.1
Total Assets
Loans Outstanding, Gross 7,148.3 6,417.6 5,525.9 4,509.7 3,708.4
R
RRIERE . 0.48% 0.30% 0.40% 0.68% 0.94%
Non-performing Loan Ratio
R EER o o o 9
Allowance for Loan Losses to Total Loans el 2.82% 2.22% 2.09% 2.01%
BR
Total Liabilities 7,626.0 7,021.7 5,807.0 4,709.8 4,161.2
RITRFRE
Debt Securities Outstanding 5,840.6 5302.2 4,476.4 3,727.5 3,268.0
BHRN S
Total Shareholders' Equity 562.0 498.6 445.3 402.5 379.9
AAFEE o 9 9 ” &
Capital Adequacy Ratio 11.28% 10.92% 10.78% 10.87% 11.83%
T
Net Profit 79.9 63.1 456 371 31.9
o
BN 1715 154.4 116.5 87.7 74.4
Net Interest Income
TR 1.02% 0.92% 0.80% 0.77% 0.76%
Return on Average Assets
2445 Ll ek
PR AR 15.07% 13.37% 10.76% 9.49% 8.76%

Return on Average Shareholders' Equity

1 AEEREMBNEBYSEIRZERETPESIEN RS, REIGRAN, SUERIERIRTERMBETASEHORE,
MARMHIRR.

2 AFEREAARTERZRTERTIEEEEZAS (HRRES") MANEXMENFESTHEN RS EEA M SR
®iHHE.

Note 1: All financial data and indicators recorded in this Annual Report were prepared in accordance with CAS and, unless otherwise specified, are
consolidated amounts of the Bank and its subsidiaries and are denominated in Chinese yuan.

Note 2: The Bank's capital adequacy ratios were calculated in accordance with relevant guidelines issued by the China Banking Regulatory
Commission (CBRC) and the inputs were based on consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with CAS.
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

2013 R ITARMEHEM
Bonds Issued in 2013

BRI EETAL S
Outstanding Loan Balance: Breakdown by Industry

B ART10{Z7TskE 5 Bilion RMB or %

B (—FHUT . &—F)

Short-term Bonds (under 1 year, inclusive)

HKE (—FHERFY S RF)

Mid-term Bonds (1 to 5 years, inclusive)

K (AFRE+FH &+ F)

Long-term Bonds (5 to 10 years, inclusive)

BEE(TFEUL)
Super Long-term Bonds (over 10 years)

&1t Total

£ 7] Electric power

i /AB& Public highways

i $KB& Railway

Al 1L Petrochemical
1% Coal

R ER 3BTl Postal & telecommunications

i RIIKF] Agriculture & related industries

NHERNIZHE Public infrastructure

it HAth Others

&1t Total

204.4

554.6

412.18

68.9

1,240.08

16.48%

44.72%

33.24%

5.56%

100%

B AN %

10.94%
18.05%
7.89%
6.96%
1.53%
1.31%
2.78%
19.31%
31.23%

100%
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Outstanding Loan Balance: Breakdown by Geography B BN %

FEBHX

Eastern

40.04%

T KB IS X BERRAER & EE415.92%
Note: Loans outside Mainland China accounted for 15.92% of the total portfolio

ERTR
Credit Ratings

CDB
it a) nay  TFARERE nay  TRREGRE
Moody's Outlook: Stable Outlook: Stable
TR RAE A PRRERE A HRRERE

Standard & Poor's Outlook: Stable ) Outlook: Stable
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FUREFIRN, IRRHMERE, RHBERAILSHE
AfERa BRI, FHRENR, IMAEERZRGN
BRHENE. IRRAMEFERER. AVSFREEIET
RARE.

IR ER, RALEN R

ENEERELRL, RIRELTZELRRIES, LS RE
TEENG R RS BERNE 5ERT NEET
i RRRERIBINEANLRER. REATNRREEE
B TERNNASEBEN. ReRAEEENES. nE
WD, FREITNEAEE, MFeRasRT. T
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H—PRERFAR. EF=. EF. s EEMENE. 18
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NE #AMSREEETERRMN. ESERIWINE
P BITRAAS TREENAS BOTLERSS
WIVERN.

IEEAAAFIAA MR IR, FERKITR REM

BTN XAT S, RREITAS SIEST X, TEASE
FE, BAMEETUE LW HBEENATER, £F
HE[HZRTWATORA, HFBINSERAF 204N, #
—HMUATNMAEN, BET LUK, B, RIHEH
BRI EE, RIFE ZTRRX -RDTHEN
BRI ARERL, IR RRA K P ERESMERN RIS
EVMIEZRE,

BEETEN FRRTEEVGHERIFAR. BHZE2013
FAR, B BFBEBHIZIT, FILLIEH8.88% ; SLI4F15E
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9T 15Fk. METEEBESEREHSHRERES.
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ERITHERBRMERTEATHUTR M SRGER, A
RS EREBEFEE A TERNERER,
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REMRZEIR. SFEHNEENERSFESFERTEK
B, THcESARMMEREHIE, mEeERRE
B ReSZERRY. ERFEREEARAULEFESIT
RUERIEE.

CDB maintained a steady course in 2013, leveraging its strengths
in medium- and long-term development finance to post positive
results in a year of economic and financial complexity both in China
and abroad. CDB's strong business performance and firm support
for the implementation of national policy translated into continuous
contributions to China's development.

Year in Review

In 2013, CDB pursued its mandate of strengthening China's
economic and social development by fine-tuning the priorities,
pace, and intensity of financial support to facilitate stable growth,
rebalancing, and reform.

CDB supported new urbanization with new and innovative models for
financing shantytown renovation and transportation infrastructure,
including rail, road, and metro systems. In 2013, CDB issued almost
one trillion yuan in urbanization-oriented loans.

CDB promoted industrial restructuring through lending to strategic and
emerging industries, environmental and energy-efficiency projects,
and cultural and creative sectors; as well as through the reduction of
excess capacity via consolidation in key industrial sectors.

CDB improved social infrastructure with loans to affordable housing,
agriculture and rural development, small- and medium-sized
enterprise (SME), education and healthcare, poverty alleviation and
disaster relief. CDB issued over RMB 160 billion in public housing
loans in 2013.

CDB worked toward a more open Chinese economy by increasing
cooperation with financial institutions both at home and abroad,
investing in a series of major joint projects in energy, infrastructure,
and agriculture and supporting Chinese companies as they expand
their business to overseas markets with turn-key technology
and equipment solutions in sectors such as high-speed rail,
telecommunications, and power generation.

Risk Management and Sustainability

CDB continued to promote a culture of responsibility and risk-
awareness, and establish mechanisms to properly manage and
control financial risk. These mechanisms include a "watch list"
of high-risk clients; dedicated risk controls for local government
financing vehicles, industries with excess capacity, and private
sector businesses; stringent loan review, servicing procedures,
and accountability systems. The Bank closely tracked market risk
and took a dynamic approach to buffer portfolios against interest
and exchange rate volatility. A full-bore liquidity management plan
covered the Bank's on- and off-balance sheet liquidity positions.
A powerful IT infrastructure conducted routine checks to minimize
systemic risk, guard against risk events, and ensure the functionality
and security of bank operations.

Targeted Management for Enhanced Results

Superior operations and management requires agility and resilience,
with business flows and mechanisms that strike a balance between
profit, risk, and the Bank's greater mandate. With that in mind,
CDB has made concerted efforts in the following areas: integrated
bank-wide balance sheet management, improved fund transfer
pricing and loan pricing tools, and other procedural and institutional
improvements; enhanced market analysis, product design, and
client outreach; strong bond issue performance; diversified channels
of capital sourcing including the introduction of exchange-traded
bond issuance, debts to Internet finance-based fund house and
China's first issues of interbank CDs (certificates of deposit).

In 2013, CDB made significant progress in cost-cutting and
efficiency improvement, strengthening synergies between business
lines, developing fee-based services, and cultivating self-sufficiency
among the bank's subsidiaries. Net revenues from fee-based
services grew 22% in 2013, and subsidiary contributions to net
profits rose 46%.

Gains were also made in stronger capital management and capital
discipline, organic growth-based capital accumulation, and effective
caps on risk-weighted asset growth. A new ABS (asset backed
security) backed by railway loans was introduced to capitalize on the
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underlying assets. Improvements to performance review standards
at branch institutions led to better aligned incentives and more
accurate and actionable decision-making.

Refined Governance and Improved Efficiency

The governance structure was refined to allow for better
coordination, greater efficiency, and increased checks and balances
between shareholders, directors, supervisors, and management.
More efficient board review processes and flexible delegation of
authority were set in place to empower the Board's specialized
committees to offer key decision-making support based on their
field of expertise. Refinements to supervisory mechanisms extended
to the supervision and evaluation of management performance as
well as of finance and internal comtrol procedures. Meetings of the
bank executives were made more efficient thanks to standardized
procedural rules and clarified agendas, with permanent offices
established to deal with administrative matters.

Growth in Personnel and Institutions

CDB believes that human capital lies at the core of any successful
strategy, and invests heavily in innovative approaches to recruitment
and training that emphasizes both talent diversity and specialization.
The Bank's staff continued to expand in 2013, adding 692 new
personnel, including 204 with valuable overseas experiences.

CDB also further developed its institutional establishments both
within China and abroad, setting up second-tier branches in Yili and
Sanya and a representative office in Rio de Janeiro, and securing
approval from Chinese and Venezuelan regulators to establish an
office in Caracas.

Achievements and Acknowledgements

CDB's efforts over the past year were rewarded with ongoing
business success in 2013. End-of-year asset totals reached over
eight trillion yuan, growing 8.88% year-on-year; profits grew 27%
to RMB 79.9 billion, with gains both in ROA and ROE. The Bank's
NPL ratio was 0.48%, the lowest among industry peers; end-of-year
capital adequacy ratio stood at 11.28%.

These achievements represent the fruits of a collective labor on the
part of the entire CDB family and reflect the support of government,
shareholders, clients and customers, peers, and the public at large.
I'd like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to all
of the Bank's stakeholders.

I'd like to especially thank Mr. Chen Yuan, the vice-chairman of the
CPPCC and the former chairman of CDB until April 2013. Mr. Chen
is himself an experienced banker and distinguished economist,
with tremendous achievements in both the theoretical and
practical realms of finance. At the helm of CDB for a full 15 years,
he successfully applied international best practices to a unique
Chinese economic and financial landscape, ultimately fashioning a

distinctive brand of Chinese development finance. He led the Bank
in its transition from a typical policy bank into a market-oriented
development finance institution, therein playing an irreplaceable role
in the advancement of national development strategies.

I'd also like to thank Mr. Yao Zhongmin, the former chairman of the
Board of Supervisors at CDB, who retired from his post in December
2013. Mr. Yao served CDB as a deputy governor and later chief
supervisor for 19 years, and both witnessed and shaped the growth
of the Bank during that period. With extensive leadership experience,
excellent management skills, and a thorough understanding of the
banking business, he played an important role in virtually every major
achievement at CDB over just shy of two decades. His contributions
helped CDB better serve national development needs as well as
grow as an institution in and of its own right.

I'd also like to extend our welcome to Mr. Liu Meisheng, CDB's new
chairman of the Board of Supervisors. Mr. Liu has an accumulated
wealth of banking and leadership experience and strong academic
groundings in financial theory; his appointment will undoubtedly take
the Board of Supervisors and the development of our bank at large
to a whole new level moving forward.

2014 Outlook

The world economy will continue to recover slowly in 2014, with
persistent uncertainties and instabilities hampering growth. China
will benefit from structural bonuses borne out of new urbanization,
economic opening, and accelerated reform. Internal drivers of
growth will continue to strengthen, but economic rebalancing and
a shifting of gears in GDP expansion will pose challenges to the
Chinese economy and financial system.

In the coming year, CDB will continue to pursue a steady course in
fulfilling its mandate as a development finance institution, promoting
reform at the national and bank-wide levels, offering support for new
urbanization and public housing projects, and facilitating economic
rebalancing and international cooperation. With continuous
improvements to bank governance structures, strengthened risk
control systems, and improved operational efficiency, CDB is well-
positioned to serve China's reform and write a new chapter in the
history of development finance.
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R
Loan Balance RMB 7.15 Trillion

7157 %

RIS AL TR
New Urbanization Loans
RMB 996.8 Billion

9,968

RIREM R E TIETR
Affordable Housing Loans
RMB 162.8 Billion

1,628

RINTEH

Funding in Domestic and Foreign
Currencies

RMB 2.2 Trillion

2.2 5
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CDB maintained a steady pace of development in 2013, performing
strongly in both its business and public mandates. Bank assets
grew to RMB 8.19 trillion, with a loan balance of RMB 7.15 trillion, a
repayment rate of 99.68%, and a non-performing loan ratio of 0.48%,
maintaining at under 1% for the thirty-fifth consecutive quarter. CDB
posted a year-end profit of RMB 79.9 billion, showing annual gains in
both ROA and ROE. Capital adequacy and provision coverage ratios
stood at 11.28% and 3.05%, respectively, demonstrating increasingly
robust capacity for risk control while sustaining solid growth.

2013 in Review

Priorities: Steady Growth, Rebalancing, and Social
Benefit

CDB lent RMB 996.8 billion to support new urbanization projects in
2013, accounting for 65% of the year's yuan-denominated loans;
CDB also issued RMB 113.9 billion in loans to railroad infrastructure
and RMB 162.8 billion to affordable housing projects (including RMB
106 billion in shantytown renovation), capturing 60% of market share
among Chinese banks. Regional rebalancing was encouraged
through RMB 394.3 billion in new loans to central and western China
and the northeastern rustbelt, and RMB 77.3 billion to Xinjiang, Tibet,
and other Tibetan regions in western China. The Bank promoted
industrial restructuring and consolidation of key sectors and support
for projects in new energy and circular economy; lending in 2013
included RMB 241.7 billion to strategic and emerging industries and
RMB 44.4 billion to cultural and creative industries.

CDB lent RMB 34.5 billion to the agricultural sector in 2013, with
special support for food security and distribution capacity building.
Lending to water resourses projects totaled RMB 68.3 billion.
Poverty alleviation was enhanced by RMB 222.1 billion in lending
to strengthen public services, infrastructure, and niche industries in
poverty-stricken regions. Over 2.2 million underprivileged students
benefited from CDB's RMB 12.5 billion in student loans, and local
employment was boosted by RMB 103.8 billion in SME lending. The
Bank also issued RMB 8 billion in emergency relief loans to disaster-
hit regions such as Lushan and Ya'an.

International Cooperation

CDB undertook a string of major international projects in 2013,
including Phase Il of the China-Venezuela Fund, and deepened
cooperation in multilateral financial frameworks such as the
Shanghai Cooperation Organization Interbank Association, the
China-ASEAN Interbank Association, and the BRICS Interbank
Cooperation Mechanism. Together with the World Bank and China's
Ministry of Finance, CDB co-organized a FOCAC (Forum on China-
Africa Cooperation) roundtable, strengthening our cooperation with
the World Bank in the field of African development. Global business
strategy and operations made further gains in 2013, with year-end
foreign currency loans totaling RMB 250.5 billion and maintaining a
high grade of asset quality.
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Funding

CDB raised domestic and foreign funds worth RMB 2.2 trillion in
2013, including RMB 1.24 trillion in yuan-denominated bond issues,
and for a third straight year, over USD 100 billion sourced in foreign
denominations. A first-ever exchange-traded bond deal in China,
allowing retail investors unprecedented access to CDB bonds,
raised RMB 12 billion. The Bank raised RMB 3 billion in China's first
issues of interbank CDs. As its first tap into Internet finance, CDB
sold RMB 5 billion in debt to Tianhong Asset Management. Dim sum
bonds raised RMB 4.5 billion in 2013.

Strategic Planning

CDB contributed to policy planning in 2013 with its involvement
in the National Plan for New Urbanization and related policy
documents, compiling 43 cases of new urbanization across three
category types. Cooperation with government at all levels was
strengthened through participation in 37 industry development
plans, 30 regional development plans, and 174 financing plans. The
year saw marked improvements in both the planning competency
and materialization of deliverables.

Financial Services

With a fully integrated suite of services across investment, lending,
bond financing, leasing, and securities, CDB offered clients turn-
key solutions with highly optimized information sharing, connected
marketing and cross-selling, ultimately strengthening CDB's brand
and competitiveness. The Bank underwrote 286 bonds in 2013,
raising RMB 648.1 billion for its corporate clients. Product innovation
continued to improve, with railroad ABS issues raising RMB 8 billion,
the first securitized product in China featuring special-purpose
loans as its underlying asset. Pilots in international trade financing
further diversified the Bank's settlement product portfolio. CDB's net
revenue from fee-based services grew 21.7% year-on-year to RMB
12.1 billion.

Risk Control

CDB strengthened its overall capacity for risk management with
increased controls dedicated to select sectors and business areas of
high risk, such as solar panel, steelmaking, and shipbuilding as well
as local government financing vehicles, SME lending, and cross-
border financing. The Bank has established guidelines for managing
credit exposure to conglomerate clients and a "watch list" to control
client-side risk. Improved mechanisms for risk accountability and
risk constraints complement a bank-wide risk management platform
and 13 risk control sub-systems, all of which went online in 2013.

Operations and Management

CDB captured hidden efficiencies through optimized asset-liability
matching, strengthened management of liquidity risk and cash
position, and enhanced fund transfer pricing and loan pricing. These

in combination with cost-cutting measures brought the Bank's cost-
income ratio to 5.53%. Improved deployment and application of
capital and retained profits replenished the Bank's capital pool. More
powerful and more secure IT systems created stable platforms for
the execution of payments, settlements, and accounting.

The progress achieved by CDB in 2013 would not have been
possible without the hard work, dedication, and persistence of
the entire bank staff. I'd like to take this opportunity on behalf of
the senior management to thank every member of our team, and
express my gratitude to everyone in the larger CDB family for their
ongoing commitment and support!

2014 Outlook

In 2014, CDB will continue to pursue its mandate of strengthening
the country's economic fundamentals and improving livelihoods
through development finance, serving national development and
reform and promoting economic rebalancing.

— National Strategy. CDB will finance projects related to new
urbanization and the renovation of shantytowns; promote
coordinated regional development, industrial restructuring, and
improved social services and infrastructure; and steadily expand
cross-border cooperation.

— Financial Services. The Bank will further increase revenues
from fee-based services; strengthen coordination and synergy
between CDB and its subsidiaries across a full spectrum of
business offerings; and increase profit contribution from bank
subsidiaries.

— Balance Sheet. CDB will further control costs, increase
efficiencies, optimize bond issuance plans, lower the costs of
raising capital through diversified channels of funding, and refine
loan pricing.

— Asset Quality. The Bank will deepen total risk management across
every stage of the lending process, with enhanced mechanisms
for liquidity risk management enabling prudent and sustainable
growth.

CDB celebrates its 20" anniversary in 2014, just as the Bank enters
into a new phase of development. | firmly believe that with the hard
work and commitment of the entire CDB family, we will achieve
yet another year of outstanding business performance and make
tremendous new contributions to China's social and economic
development.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

g =
Board of Directors

#E R& il HEER fEERRS 8]
Name Title of Position Gender Date of Birth In Office Since
Gk BEEK WOES B2 19555094 20134F047
Hu Huaibang Chairman, Executive Director M September 1955 April 2013
BWZA BERK JTES 5 19585054 2012£E108
Zheng Zhijie Vice Chairman, Executive Director M May 1958 October 2012
=R FRTES 3 19634118 20084128
Zhang Shude Non-Executive Director M November 1963 December 2008
RER FRITES % 19574108 20084128
Song Aiwu Non-Executive Director F October 1957 December 2008
® R FNTES S 1956%F024 20084128
Luo Mi Non-Executive Director F February 1956 December 2008
eSS FEHITES B 19524F07 B 2012%F09R
Pang Jiying Non-Executive Director M July 1952 September 2012
RE(E FERTES 3 19574E09 8 20124F03A
Huang Weijia Non-Executive Director M September 1957 March 2012
BB FMITES 3 19574E06 5 20124F03A
Lai Weiwen Non-Executive Director M June 1957 March 2012
EAR FITES 3 19504084 20124F03A
Yue Gongxia Non-Executive Director M August 1959 March 2012
" R FITES 3 1973%E07 8 20124F03A
Huang Hao Non-Executive Director M July 1973 March 2012
H & M IFRITES = 19424F01 8 2008%F 128
Du Jian Independent Non-Executive Director M January 1942 December 2008
RBHFL MM IERITES 5 19455044 2010058
Zheng Xinli Independent Non-Executive Director M April 1945 May 2010
Wiz MM IERITES x 1949%F06 5 20124097
Chen Xiaoyun Independent Non-Executive Director F June 1949 September 2012

Il

A .

Board of Supervisors

W R 31 HEFH {EER Y [
Name Title of Position Gender Date of Birth In Office Since
XigaE EAES S 2 19564123 2014€01R8
Liu Meisheng Chairman M December 1956 January 2014
KEZ BEREFLEE 3 1954407 B 20084E12A4
Geng Jianyun Shareholder Representative Supervisor M July 1954 December 2008
RmEE RAERRES 5 1958%F07 5 2008£F 128
Leng Xiangyang Shareholder Representative Supervisor M July 1958 December 2008
H/NEA RIRKEE xz 1960118 2014%02A
Hu Xiaoming Employee Representative Supervisor F November 1960 February 2014
L% RIAKRKES x 19614E04 5 2008%F 128
Hu Hongzhuan Employee Representative Supervisor F April 1961 December 2008
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Executive Management

HE R ] HEFR BR8]
Name Title of Position Gender Date of Birth In Office Since
2 7K % 19584054 20125108
Zheng Zhijie President M May 1958 October 2012
FEF BlfTK 3 1955%F09H 2008£F 1283

Li Jiping Executive Vice President M September 1955 December 2008
ER% BT 5 19584018 20114F01 8
Wang Yongsheng Executive Vice President M January 1958 January 2011
=S| AlfTK 3 19629F09H 20124F03A
Yuan Li Executive Vice President M September 1962 March 2012
E)-ES LZHL 5 19624F094 20104128
Zhou Qingyu Chief Compliance Officer M September 1962 December 2010
BT KRS 2 19554F08H 20135128
Zhao Xiaoyu Executive Vice President M August 1955 December 2013
SKABSE EIESRIS % 19644104 2013%F10A4
Zhang Xuguang Executive Vice President M October 1964 October 2013
R EFESWH 5 19624F07H 2008121
Chen Min Secretary of the Board of Directors M July 1962 December 2008
Rk 8 EEEITE 3 1956404 3 201042048
Chen Jizhong Chief Audit Officer M April 1956 April 2010
3 ERERKE 3 19574F07H 20144018
Yang Wengqi Chief Risk Officer M July 1957 January 2014

EE BENSAEEETIHER
Changes in the Board of Directors, Board of
Supervisors and Executive Management

EETHHER
Changes in the Board of Directors
ZATEFR201BEE A WHINBIHRBESIE,
HTBEERTESREK MTES,

As approved at the second meeting of the Board of Directors in 2013

and by the CBRC, Hu Huaibang was elected Chairman and Executive
Director of the Bank.

BETIHER

Changes in the Board of Supervisors

ZART014FEE R RRARIERE, JIBEBEARTR
TRREFE. EATEFER0UEFEE—RSIWIERE, WigE
BEATEEK.

FEFKI R RIRER XA EMFRREEE, FEERE
HH2013F12A24H.

ZATRIARARES FNREEATRIARES.
FRIAFEEHXIEFRS L REAFE, FEERXEH
AH2013F12B11H.,

As approved at the first extraordinary meeting of shareholders in 2014,
Liu Meisheng was elected Shareholder Representative Supervisor. As
approved at the first meeting of the Board of Supervisors in 2014, Liu
Meisheng was elected Chairman of the Board of Supervisors.

Yao Zhongmin retired from this position, effective December 24, 2013.

Hu Xiaoming was elected Employee Representative Supervisor by the
Staff Congress of the Bank.

Yang Wengi ceased to serve as Employee Representative Supervisor
due to appointment to another position, effective December 11, 2013.

BREERTIHER

Changes in the Bank's Executive Management
ZATEFR01BFERELASWHIBI HRBRESTAE,
SKIBAIBERTTRIITK.
ZATEFR01BFERENASWHFIBI HRRBRESTOE,
BERERFIEERTRITK.
ZATEFR04EE RS WHFIWBI HRBRESTA,
HXBIEERTERNEE.

ATRERZZABET. FERVSETRE. REEXRK
BIREFREE XM ENER FEREE, FEERE D5
420135118138 . 2013409801 HHF2013%F02801H.,
As approved at the fourth meeting of the Board of Directors in 2013 and by

the CBRC, Zhang Xuguang was appointed Executive Vice President of the
Bank.

As approved at the sixth meeting of the Board of Directors in 2013 and by
the CBRC, Zhao Xiaoyu was appointed Executive Vice President of the
Bank.

As approved at the first meeting of the Board of Directors in 2014 and by
the CBRC, Yang Wengi was appointed Chief Risk Officer of the Bank.

Zhao Jianping, Shu Jiawei and Xu Qiying retired from the positions of
Member of Executive Management Team, Chief Financial Officer and
Chief Risk Officer, effective November 13, 2013, September 1, 2013 and
February 1, 2013 respectively.

BT
Staff
HE2013FXR, A f7HBERTL,468 A, HF96.5%HI R T

BABEMEZR, 577%NRTHEMRERULEZR.

As of the end of 2013, the Bank had a workforce of 8,468, with 96.5%
holding a bachelor's or higher and 57.7% holding a master's or higher.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

HRER ERK PTES MWZAR  BEEKHTES

Hu Huaibang Chairman, Executive Director Zheng Zhijie Vice Chairman, Executive Director
EHiE ERTES RER HIOES

Zhang Shude Non-Executive Director Song Aiwu  Non-Executive Director

O EmGES FEdkzE FENTES

Luo Mi Non-Executive Director Pang Jiying Non-Executive Director

HYEE FERITES BB ETEE

Huang Weijia Non-Executive Director Lai Weiwen Non-Executive Director
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RN FERTES ' R FMTES

Yue Gongxia Non-Executive Director Huang Hao Non-Executive Director
O mEnaEE MFIL  ATERGES

Du Jian Independent Non-Executive Director Zheng Xinli - Independent Non-Executive Director
BNz B RTES

Chen Xiaoyun Independent Non-Executive Director
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e

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

XtE BHEK BE= BERELS

Liu Meisheng Chairman Geng Jianyun Shareholder Representative Supervisor
R [EE B FLE #A/\ER RIfKK

Leng Xiangyang Shareholder Representative Supervisor Hu Xiaoming Employee Representative Supervisor

AR RIARES
Hu Hongzhuan Employee Representative Supervisor
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BREEAR
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

WzXx Ok
Zheng Zhijie President

FHEs BT
Wang Yongsheng Executive Vice President

AEE 2EBLT
Zhou Qingyu Chief Compliance Officer

SHE BIfFK

Zhang Xuguang Executive Vice President

FEE BIFK
Li Jiping  Executive Vice President

= h aak
Yuan Li Executive Vice President

BEF gk
Zhao Xiaoyu Executive Vice President

B R EEcus
Chen Min Secretary of the Board of Directors
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BiRe EREEITE Bl ERRRE
Chen Jizhong Chief Audit Officer Yang Wengi Chief Risk Officer

71—~ 1 VA3 R
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CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND SHAREHOLDERS

ATRIREFREARLHMEMBER (U TER MBS ), FRCSRAARTELAS(UATER CE£23" ) HELEHSRK
BEESHES (MUTER TRESEESR"). BE2013ER, BRFRELLTE.

CDB's shareholders are the Ministry of Finance ( MoF ), Central Huijin Investment Ltd. ( Huijin ) and the National Council for Social Security Fund
(NCSSF ). Shareholders' details as of the end of 2013 are shown in the following table:

BREFRETR HEHTMARTEAT) FERR I (RR) ESiiid=174

Shareholder Capital Contribution(Milion RMB) Number of Shares (Shares) % of Total

I 37|

TBCEE 153,908 153,908,000,000 50.18%

Ministry of Finance

L&A E]

Central Huijin Investment Ltd 148,052 16808200000 ST

HRESHEHES o

National Council for Social Security Fund 1820 Gl 2l

ait 9
310,000 306,711,409,395 100.00%

Total

RIT2013FERHABR AR FENR.
T BUER A E S5 B AR ED ] R E B ERMBUL . FIEMBBOR  # T EUEE SRR R YIBEED .

LCEATRMBE(PEARKMEASDEIHERE R RINERRAAS], REESHREN, NHEBAFTARRKERKE
MNEFEREMEVTEHBEARMNMBITHEANS KAEFTSHA~REHLE.

HARESESESRCEMSRERESNERZENN, AESEERFV AN, ARSKRERNS, FEXESBRIESKR
FAEBITHIEE .
There was no change in share capital or shareholders in 2013.

The MoF is a unit of the State Council. Amongst other tasks, it is the administrative and executive body primarily responsible for managing fiscal
revenues and expenditures, formulating fiscal and taxation policies and performing fiscal supervision.

Huijin is a wholly state-owned limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the PRC. With the State Council's
authorization, it represents the state in exercising the state's rights in performing its responsibilities as an investor to key state-owned financial
institutions, within the limits of its capital contributions and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations of the state.

NCSSF is a government agency responsible for the management and operation of the National Social Security Fund. It is under the direct leadership
and supervision of the State Council or the authorized department of the State Council.
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YNCIN=pLEE A
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
2013%F, AiTHEREI MR SRS W H ZHTR, KR
NENAEENER, TENFRENG WeSHostk, EK
BRHRRE. 7. BENH. ==—F FIHR, hEE
. BREETENES EESNFHERER EERERE
BERR SREEERMEEH, TAETRIRRER, #£F
EHARTRRENE.,

In 2013, the Bank continued with the development of its corporate
governance structure and improvements in its decision-making
mechanisms and standardized management processes, based
on the leading principles, practices and requirements of modern
financial institutions. During the year, the shareholders, the Board of
Directors, the Board of Supervisors, and the Executive Management
performed their duties and contributed to the successful
development and reform of CDB.

REEARSRATERERS

Strategy and Investment Committee

HHERS

Audit Committee

REEEZERS

Risk Management Committee

RBEZGEHERS

Related Party Transactions Committee

ABSHHERS

Personnel and Remuneration Committee

BREA=

GENERAL MEETINGS OF SHAREHOLDERS
2013%F ., &7 RBEFELT2RERBERS. &
BEFS L, EEIX]@LQOTQEE)HJ%/;&E‘ %U;lﬂﬁ@ﬂ\ 2013
FEMESHE BRH01BERUTMESH EFTIFRE.
BESTHEREFNILE, EENEFEAS L. #GET
RITARTEFME. 72?::1%?\]54\?151%!3’\]1)‘(%0 BEREWHIB
FHYBETHEEAERERF, RIERFSSHTENRN . BE
REHBEBIIE, 7 & RRERL .

/\I:I

One annual general meeting of shareholders and two extraordinary
general meetings of shareholders were held in 2013. At the annual
general meeting, eleven proposals were deliberated, approved
and adopted. These included proposals on the 2012 financial
statements, distribution of corporate profits, 2013 financial budget,
decision on retaining the accounting firm for FY 2013, and work
reports of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors. At the
extraordinary general meetings, proposals on domestic issuances
of yuan-denominated financial debentures and foreign-denominated
debts were deliberated, approved and adopted. Each meeting
followed due process and ensured that the interests and rights
of all shareholders were maintained. Lawyers were present at the
meetings and attested to their procedural regularity.

BREKRS

General Meetings of Shareholders

EER

Board of Directors

BREEE

Executive Management

BEE _

Board of Supervisors

BREARBBEZRRS

Performance of Fiduciary Duties ]
Supervision Committee

WS ESNEEHEERERS

Finance and Internal Control -
Supervision Committee

27



28

AE)RIERE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEQEBREINZERRIZE

Directors and Committees

BRI, XTEESHIBBESTAMN,. £EF . EFKHBFB
BE B ESEKAMBANEE . MTES2R, 83F . HHIRFH.
Mz FRTESESE B . EWE RER . #HR EHR
TEGE BEX EAMR BER  MUEEIZ 8F . &
& BHFx Bhm, EESUE KR,

EESTREBARSRAEEZRSZ. FITERE. Kk
EEZRS KBEXFPEHNERE NES5HFMZERS &F
NERSVEFERNR, ZEFRN, MEFIREHTL
BT W ETHTRR.

The Board of Directors consists of thirteen directors. These include:
two executive directors, Hu Huaibang, Chairman, and Zheng Zhijie,
Vice Chairman; eight non-executive directors, Zhang Shude, Song
Aiwu, Luo Mi, Pang Jiying, Huang Weijia, Lai Weiwen, Yue Gongxia,
and Huang Hao; and three independent non-executive directors, Du
Jian, Zheng Xinli and Chen Xiaoyun. The secretary of the Board is
Chen Min.

Five committees are set up under the Board: the Strategy and
Investment Committee, Audit Committee, Risk Management
Committee, Related Party Transactions Committee, and the
Personnel and Remuneration Committee. These committees report
directly to the Board and, with the authorization of the Board, provide
advice to the Board and make decisions on specific matters on
behalf of the Board.

EESHERRRIBE

Conduct Guide
ATESRIBER. TBUEN. AZEMATATEREN
E AR BEHRR SRR IZNITHEIRN.

The Board performs its duties in compliance with applicable laws,
regulations, provisions of the Bank's Articles of Association and the

resolutions and authorizations adopted at the general meetings of
shareholders.

EESRW

Meetings

20135, AT EESRBAFTASEREHEER, £F7F
EFFRRWER, BB 2012F EM S RE . MIEN . F

EiRE . EERTHERE . ROTESRBENRASK. BASIT
JFELA. TEATEUFMUER, BATINZEASS
W2, RIGBI IR, WK HEE . NG EIE.
W g5iE1T. W E TSR,

In accordance with the Bank's Articles of Association and protocols
of the committees, the Board held six meetings in 2013. At these
meetings, 23 proposals were approved, including proposals on the
Bank's 2012 financial statements, profit distribution, 2012 annual
report, work report of the Board of Directors, and issuance of
financial debentures and subordinated debt, as well as engagement
of the accounting firm for and the change of corporate address. The
Board committees held 22 meetings, at which 11 proposals were
deliberated, approved and adopted. At these meetings, the results
of management on related party transactions, risk management,
financial management and internal audit were presented and
reviewed.

BEESMRFERSRIEITIER
Execution of Shareholders' General Meeting
Resolutions

ATEERINE. 2. PHEMRT T ATEREHANB T
BB R A= BB IS FYAE SR,
The Board carefully, completely, and rigorously executed the

resolutions of the general meetings of shareholders held during the
reporting period.

EHESEETIE

Main Tasks

2013, ATEESRME N EEEZNERNINE TS,
BERERR #HHATRERKPRBRALSE, RFER
REEEE, SHLRERME . BRENE. FTRENEN
G—., R\MRFAFTRXBNERER, #HHNTEFL
Ml ELH., AEMEFEENERERMSEINIE, m
BRMESTAREEIE, ALY, IHARLEERE, #t
H20ILETHRELRTIY RELVSXREES KR IRE
AEE, #AERITAREF12012T, RARRELAIK, X
BRATHBERAARTRE  HFRTEBIN IWEHF, I
B RIMURAEMAVCIR, &FIND N7
W, HEERLSEEESNE, THxEEQSEET
EEE MRINTARZZEENE aELEVREZN
*. oEEUMNREETE, EHTRATREEERRBR
Lk, FRITLRES . WENSIFISNE L SBH, s
KBTI (EHKEEMELE,
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In 2013, the Board of Directors was proactive in responding to
the complex economic environment, both in China and across
the globe, by adopting prudent decision-making processes.
Leveraging its strength in medium- to long-term financing, the Bank
made further achievements in supporting the national strategies,
macroeconomic policies and public interest, as well as achieving
successful alignment of national interests, shareholder returns and
the interests of the Bank. The Board carried out in-depth studies
on key development issues faced by the Bank, and made efforts to
resolve these issues through changes in policies and systems. The
Board reviewed and approved important proposals while exercising
due care. It encouraged good financial management and cost
control, as well as supported the growth of funding businesses
by approving the issuance of USD 2 billion in dollar bonds. It also
helped strengthen the Bank's capital management by approving
and facilitating the issuance of RMB 12 billion in subordinated
debt instruments, and supported the broadening of channels for
capital replenishment through good planning. It placed emphasis
on optimizing the Bank's overseas network structure, carried out
studies on the organizational structure of institutions overseas and
made specific plans to revamp the management structure of the
Bank's international businesses. The Board, committed to improving
the Bank's corporate governance, deliberated development of new
policies on related party transactions and performance measurement
for senior executives. In addition, the Board also recognized the
importance of risk management by carrying out reviews on related
departments on a periodic basis, as well as performing analysis on
industry risks and research on internal and external audits, to push
for the establishment of accountability in risk management and
compliant operations with all relevant laws and regulations.

IIk$A

m=F=

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
BELANREINERSRE

Supervisors and Committees
KITIEESHSBIEEM, Hh BEKBNIEGEET B
FRREEIE . B4 XL BE= 2mF RIAKRE
=28, B HNR BHAE,

BESTRERRREBZASNM S SRNMET LES
R BZRAZREEFEPTRIE HEEXAER.

The Board of Supervisors consists of five members. These
include: Liu Meisheng, Chairman and shareholder representative
supervisor; two other shareholder representative supervisors, Geng
Jianyun and Leng Xiangyang; and two employee representative
supervisors, Hu Xiaoming and Hu Hongzhuan.

The Board of Supervisors has two committees: the Performance
of Fiduciary Duties Supervision Committee and the Finance and
Internal Control Supervision Committee. Both committees work
within the authorization delegated by the Board of Supervisors and
report directly to it.

BESHERRRIEE

Conduct Guide

RTHRELSRIBEARE. FTBUEN. AENATRIZRENE.
B RER AR R B IZRATHEIRN,

The Board of Supervisors performs its duties in accordance with
applicable laws, regulations and provisions of the Bank's Articles

of Association, and within the resolutions and authorizations of the
general meetings of shareholders.

BEXSW

Meetings

20135, AITHESRBATASERFHEER, £8H
BELSWTR, BERZTNERSRWOR, HIUBIATT
EFEESNMSREERERHANR2012FBRRIRFNEL . F
EMEhkeE FEMSHE FENRTR EESTHERSE
F26WINLE,

In accordance with the Bank's Articles of Association and protocols
of the committees, the Board of Supervisors held seven general
meetings in 2013; its committees held nine meetings, at which 26
proposals were deliberated, approved and adopted in compliance
with the Bank's Articles of Association. These included statements
of opinion on the performance of fiduciary duties of the 2012 Board

and Executive Management, annual report, annual financial budget,
profit distribution, and work report of the Board of Supervisors.

BESFTETIE

Main Tasks

2013F AT HREBESMIBEEEN A IERMEEEXR .M
XETHEERRT. BVXIATHERR RIRREELE
W, REZEFRRREBINHERAR ZEEARE
RRABELR, TANATESES. SREEERERR
1N2FEBERRRAFNEL. EBEFE. SREERR
KEFENNE, HHBENEESEHERR, RIRKVLHT
E, IEMEMERTHRAN D BE TRFEEMFRE
HiZ RN ERV S s RRTYRESE RN EE,
BRAXEE. HREE XPEXHFELEERMBRERE
BAEL ENATZENREENAREER, TR
REVEREEE BRLEREEE. RITHEESNE K
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In 2013, the Board of Supervisors performed its duties in accordance
with applicable laws, regulations and provisions of the Bank's
Articles of Association. It paid close attention to the Bank's reform
and development and provided recommendations. As part of their
responsibilities in overseeing the performance of the Board and
Executive Management, the Board of Supervisors made significant
efforts to improve its oversight process by performing quarterly
reviews and interviews. It completed the evaluations of directors
and Executive Management in performing their fiduciary duties for
the year 2012. It also provided oversight on the compliance of the
decision-making process by the Board of Directors and Executive
Management, as well as pushed for the development of policies on
franchise business to further improve the Bank's decision-making
processes. In 2013, it completed the review of the Bank's Annual
Report 2012, strengthened budget management and cost control,
as well as achieved continued risk monitoring over international
business, high risk industries and key clients. Its oversight also
focused on: the implementation of regulatory requirements over
capital position, consolidated reporting, related party transactions;
shareholder recommendations; and enhanced risk management
and internal control system. During 2013, the Board of Supervisors
delivered four research reports, covering the topics of post-loan
management for social development and international portfolios,
the functions of the Board of Supervisors, and risk analysis on the
photovoltaic, steel and shipbuilding industries. It also issued three
Management Alerts to the Board and Executive Management. It
played a critical role in risk prevention, corporate governance and
sustainable growth of the Bank.

BAEIER
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

AT ERRHTKEAHEMSEEEARAN, HES
SMR. ATTKEKEEE. TB0EN. AENATATE
BEHMENEBRFERE. ERERREHTRITENRRITE
A

The Bank's Executive Management, consisting of the president
and other executives, reports directly to the Board. The president
performs his duties in accordance with applicable laws, regulations
and provisions of the Bank's Articles of Association, with the
authorization of the shareholders as approved at the general
meetings of shareholders and as authorized by the Board.

BB ERE
INTERNATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL

AMEEFIE , iiRe EFR—RRITEE, RITT1999F
ALY ERRMEZE RS AERBES. RMNEARFNEA
TN BEBF—RSW, TERARXONER. B
ZFEREBENARNBETRY, HERTEREEMN
RREBHITHBNR, ARTHRREBEREEZEEE
RACEFIIMEIL,

2013548 . ERFMEZREBFAETEREW, ERRN
RMPELFEREE. STEHERCRKREEN KR
MAGRRZWE, ANITEBIEEBELHEHE RO
BEEK, BFRSTEZFHERRE REREER
HEERFIZIL,

In order to broaden its international perspective and accelerate its
progress towards becoming a top-tier international bank, the Bank
set up its International Advisory Council ( "the Council") in 1999. The
Council consists of distinguished members from political, financial
and academic spheres around the world. It meets once a year to
discuss the current global and domestic economic and financial

developments, the Bank's performance and development issues; it
advises the Bank's management on its growth strategies.

The Council held its 14th meeting in April 2013, with its discussion
focused on the economic and financial situation in China and of the
world and financing of China's urbanization. The meeting provided
many valuable insights, especially in relation to seizing opportunities
during the nation's urbanization process, better serving China's
economic and social development, and furthering cooperative
efforts within the international community.

RERE T

INTERNAL AUDIT

REATADERINE, EFNTHENIBEHGE, I
BEEFENHTERL . EERTREITZRS, IREE.
BEMFNATABEITLE, BRINBRFREILE
MERERNLE AEFZSNFTHRELE.
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According to the Articles of Association of the Bank, the Board is
responsible for developing the Bank's internal control policies and
supervising their implementation. As delegated by the Board, the
Audit Committee examines, monitors and evaluates the Bank's
internal audit process. The Internal Audit Department maintains the
capacity of carrying out necessary internal audit-related work and
reports directly to the Board.

In 2013, the Bank continued to enhance its internal audit function

by conducting risk-based audits in key sectors and areas, and
large lending projects, including working capital loans, foreign
currency lending, lending to the steel industry and lending to
trust companies. It also carried out audits of ten branches and
sub-branches, as well as the Miluo Village Bank, covering full
operations and management processes of these entities in
2012. As part of its coordination of the audit carried out by the
National Audit Office of People's Republic of China, the Internal
Audit Department completed the pre-audit investigation and
the audits of local government debts. It also performed audits
on foreign currency funding, Hong Kong Branch, anti-money
laundering and data quality assessment, according to applicable
regulatory requirements. In addition, it carried out the internal
control assessment over nine business lines, including Renminbi
and foreign currency lending, treasury and liability operations.
The Bank enforced reviews of personnel conduct and improved
whistleblowing mechanism. All such efforts contributed to the
Bank's properly regulated and sound operations.
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OVERVIEW

2013%F, EREFREBE T, FEELFFRET. KTRK
RMEREUNEFEK, THREFLMEERSE KK
MAMBMER, RETIBK BED. EXE ERE &
NXFER/GEHRER, FNLSRELR. BXAETH
HaBEENERL, ATRETEZERRE, SR EKES
T, BAERERES . AKAKRBPELS, #—P8E
W, BAENRSET  IRERNEER. REA
FRERE. KIROA1.02%, ROE 15.07%, ZE LR
R g,

In 2013, the global economy experienced a slow recovery, even as the
Chinese economy maintained a steady growth. Leveraging its strength
in development financing and medium- to long-term lending, the
Bank actively supported the implementation national macroeconomic
policies to help the nation achieve the stable growth, economic
rebalancing, reform and social development. Dedicating its resources
to the development of key industries, the Bank achieved excellent
growth across all its business lines. While facing a tightened monetary
enviroment, the Bank adopted a flexible funding strategy with diversified
funding channels and effective cost controls. At the same time, it put in
tremendous efforts to grow its fee-based business to improve its income
structure and profitability. The Bank strengthened its risk management
practices to maintain its asset quality. It achieved excellent financial
results, including an ROA ratio of 1.02% and an ROE ratio of 15.07%.

ARTEATHES
Million RMB or % 2013
B FIE
Operating Profit 15,791
| B
Hep FSERAN 171,472
Net Interest Income
FHERMBAEFRN 11
Fee and Commission Income, net ’
Al 14,418
Investment Income
ARAHEE R » 3
Fair Value Gains/(Losses) ’
CHRE
Foreign Exchange Gains/(Losses) o)
BB S RHN
Business Tax and Surcharges (e
SR ~p =
RERERE (40,301)

Impairment Losses on Assets
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PROFIT ANALYSIS

2013, ATEEBRARTSEK 2EXWEWFBART
1,057.5112 7t . B LE3E426.85%.

2013FEEFIBHBN. FEERMSERNILGIRBE, HF
FERBRNAZRATREIZEMNRAEKIR., 20134F, KFTLH
FEFBAART,714.72127T . BIEEIEK11.05%, &7
B S AREK, MAEBE—F Tk, ERFHRA
RRHHESHANERN ESXE. 45 18R BV, ZE
ZUEHRELE, 2013FELUFEERASFRAARD
121142 7T, B EL#K21.70%.

2013 AITRIEHE RS EL S SNCHF LB B
HIERASNCETE SR TR A0 X AL RN .

In 2013, the Bank continued its strong growth in profitability, delivering a
net operating income of RMB 105.75 billion, up 26.85% year-on-year.

In 2013, net interest income and fee and commission income achieved
strong growth: net interest income was the Bank's largest income source.
During the year, net interest income grew by 11.05% to RMB 171.47 billion.

The fee-based intermediary business grew significantly during the year,
with diversified income streams. While maintaining its market leader
position in loan syndication, the Bank achieved excellent growth in
securities underwriting, settlement business, guarantee services, wealth
management and bills. Total fee and commission income reached RMB
12.11 billion, up 21.70% year-on-year.

In 2013, the Bank achieved vigorous growth in its international business,
with continued increase in assets denominated in foreign currencies. The
Bank was effective in using derivatives to hedge against exchange risk.

ESNEADTE S

Income and Expenses

Tz TEtbE

2012 +/(-) +/(-) in %
83,366 22,385 26.85%
154,410 17,062 11.05%
9,954 2,160 21.70%
14,438 (20) (0.14%)
(7,478) 9,860 (131.85%)
(529) (22,969) 4,341.97%
(20,683) (2,149) 10.39%
(58,075) 17,774 (30.61%)
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Income and Expenses-continued
ARTEATHIESLL TH THLLE
Million RMB or % 2013 2012 +/(-) +/(-) in %
V&R EES o
General and Administrative Expenses (e (.117) (938) 10.29%
£
Fftol 55 3B 2,051 446 1,605 359.87%
Other Income, net
ENIEE ONEZES) o
Net Non-Operating Income/(Losses) o 7 s7 217.65%
Prig LA A (25,888) (20,289) (5,599) 27.60%
Income Tax Expense
HFE o
Net Profit 79,917 63,094 16,823 26.66%
244 P Padr7d
TR R 1.02% 0.92% 0.10% 10.87%
Return on Average Assets
72445 L L 353K
VIR SR 15.07% 13.37% 1.70% 12.72%
Return on Average Equity
EBFEMAERRRAMETHERK
Interest-bearing Assets and Liabilities and Changes in Average Interest Rates
ARTEATHESLL i
Million RMB or % 2013 2012 +/(-)
TR HE  FHRE HE  THem Flz
Average Interest Average Interest Average Interest
Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate
ERRH
Interest-bearing Assets
IR R ERATAFF A E) LRI
Balance with Central Bank and Other Financial 526,087 2.26% 514,806 2.44% 11,281 (0.18%)
Institutions
FHAE o o 9
Due from Other Banks 80,406 3.89% 50,886 3.63% 29,520 0.26%
INEE SRR R HAtb
Securities Purchased under Resale Agreements 297,788 4.22% 167,337 3.39% 130,451 0.83%
and Others
> M 4 Ty ok
R ARRTLR 6,798,944 5.85% 5,976,933 6.08% 822,011 (0.23%)
Loans and Advances
JL 0% [ S
B RS 199,916 2.46% 150,507 2.43% 49,409 0.03%
Debt Investment
ait
Total 7,903,141 5.44% 6,860,469 5.64% 1,042,672 (0.20%)
TRHR
Interest-bearing Liabilities
B &8 FUER TR
R RAbRNMGERSR 456,819 2.39% 458723 261% (1904) 0.22%)
Deposits from Other Financial Institutions
B BUF It SR fERR
Borrowings from Governments and Other 433,736 2.79% 353,312 3.09% 80,424 (0.30%)
Financial Institutions
b =
Btz 684,720 1.00% 532,083 1.00% 152,637 (0.00%)
Due to Customers
RiTHEBRR RS o o o
Debt Securities and Subordinated Debts Issued EhEaillen e 4,922,363 4.13% 672421 (0.06%)
At 43,211 2.36% 29,881 2.94% 13,330 (0.58%)
Others
it
Total 7,213,270 3.59% 6,296,362 3.69% 916,908 (0.10%)
R
FEE 2.17% 2.25% (0.08%)
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FINANCIAL CONDITION ANALYSIS

HE2013FER, ATAZEREMARTS1,879.53127T, BLLE  As of the end of 2013, the Bank's total assets were at RMB 8,187.95

K8.88%. BEHEATHILNEAT & BE~184.64%. B billion, up 8.88% yiar—on—year. Loan receivables are its core of assets,
o 245 T S representing 84.64% of the total. As of the end of 2013, net loans and
E2013F K, ATTRBTAREFRHAR M69,299.6812 advances totalled RMB 6,929.97 billion, up 11.12% from previous year.

JT, BEEEEK11.12%, Hb, AR RFEE54,581.87127C,  The yuan-denominated loan balance was RMB 5,458.19 billion, up by

BIEEEK12.00% . SN RECEMITART14717.81127C, [H 12.02%; the foreign currency-denominated loan balance reached RMB
5 T ) ) o ' 1,471.78 billion, up by 7.88%.
L3847 .88%.

As of the year-end 2013, the Bank's total liabilities amounted to RMB

HE2013FER, ATHIEREFARTT?6,260.031Z7T. BEtig  7.626.00 bilion, an increase of 8.61% from prior year. As the most

KB 61%. EEEATETBHRARE BE03EE. & important funding source, total outstanding bonds reached RMB
. 0o IRTRE VAR DI AN, == .

5,840.59 billion, or 76.59% of total liabilities, 10.15% higher year-on-
RS RMARTS8,405.90127T. FILLIEIN10.15%, HE27  year

511976.59%.
WERRR
Financial Position
ARTEATHES THf THILE
Million RMB or % 2013 2012 +/(-) +/(-) in %
BEST
Arait 8,187,953 7,520,329 667,624 8.88%
Total Assets
W R AFRRITRE W FRI
Cash, Balances with the Central Bank and Other Financial 445,295 551,230 (105,935) (19.22%)
Institutions
S 2 A8 T7 oy
SR IR 6,929,968 6,236,723 693,245 11.12%
Loans and Advances
e ans
USSR N 222,733 199,985 22,748 11.37%
Investment Securities
e 589,957 532,391 57,566 10.81%
Others
=D
afait 7,626,003 7,021,743 604,260 8.61%
Total Liabilities
RITHR% o
Debt Securities lssued 5,840,590 5,302,197 538,393 10.15%
Hep RRHE o
Subordinated Debt Securities Issued k2 119,589 (76) (0.06%)
=) BUFF RO EL fth & REATLAG fE TR
Borrowings from Governments and Other Financial 455,109 426,645 28,464 6.67%
Institutions
&) M FRGR LK & P F7 3K o
Due to Other Banks and Customers 1230 1,077,657 17,445 1.62%
At 235,202 215,244 19,958 9.27%
Others
BHENEE o
Total Shareholders' Equity 561,950 498,586 63,364 12.71%
BEA
Share Capital 306,711 306,711 -
WANFAFN B 4 /A F
ARRRAER IR 48717 36,753 11,964 32.55%
Capital Reserve and Surplus Reserve
—pn &
B E% ) 97,521 68,706 28,815 41.94%
General Provisions
KROBCHREME M o
Undistributed Profit and Other Equity e 84,238 22,019 26.14%
Y gy £
DEBAA S 2,744 2,178 566 25.99%

Minority Interests
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ASSET QUALITY

20135, ERERSNEEERNETIS, K THRERME
R, RRESERIE, RIS EKFEO 6%,
REBHEO48%, LEFLHOIGIES . 20135 HE
4 AR TF380.201Z 7T, SRR HA3.05%, TR Mt

H— I

ARTMEATHES L
Million RMB or %

Total Loans and Advances

TRETRFE
Non-performing Loan Balance

TREERE
Non-performing Loan Ratio

BRREEE

Allowance for Loan Impairment

RAEBSRARREIEN

While facing a complex economic environment both in China and around
the globe, the Bank maintained strong asset quality through effective
credit risk management in 2013. The accumulative repayment ratio for
principal and interest reached 99.68%; the non-performing loan ratio
was 0.48%, an increase of 0.18 percentage point from the beginning of
the year. The Bank also made total loan provisions of RMB 38.93 billion
in 2013 with allowances for loan losses ratio increasing to 3.05%, thus
providing stronger buffer for risk tolerance.

HFEREERER

Quality of Loan Assets

2

2013 2012 +/(-)
7,148,281 6,417,578 730,703
34,584 19,396 15,188
0.48% 0.30% 0.18%
218,313 180,855 37,458

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS

ATAAEEOERAATEREE 25 AAEENKE A
AEE=/ATH. ATAKREEMRSEREE. BEAER
BEER. HERELIRABRERA B, TOKE
RAMATUSERIZE 5ISMREER,

2013%F, ATAERH@HE—HIRS . BIFEEFNET K%
ERANERARRES MARAZEBMEE  BURKIR,
BEEHRERSEE, ARXBLSER, FIERANY,
SRR UEE TEAXERE . EN. ERETHEE
i, SISAMEHE =5 W SEMBMIEE, REFAEM
B ARMALIR SBUFRARNEEMMT BIALE
BRRBEIKT, EERTHEMMEE HNEIHATEE
PR B KN FEAEHL S

ZRPERES (FLRTALATEXERME) MHES
THENE, BE2013F KR, ATARSHMART8,603.9112
T, RUERBFARTS,356.06127T, RATEEHE11.28%,
BOR AT RET.09%.

The Bank's capital management team manages the capital adequacy
ratios, and economic and book capital positions. The Bank manages its

capital resources with an aim of supporting national priorities, complying
with regulatory requirements and ensuring sustained shareholder returns,
all the while supporting, steering and safeguarding its own business
growth and development.

In 2013, the Bank further optimized its capital structure, through
increased profitability and retention of earnings and excess provisions.
It also strengthened capital discipline in business activities and took
prudent controls in the growth of its risk assets, to effectively support the
healthy growth of the Bank. Through improved capital planning, the Bank
made further enhancements in implementing measures in the areas of
budgeting, pricing and performance measurement. These efforts in turn
led to further buttressing of asset and business structures and increases
in capital efficiency. The Bank innovatively developed new capital
instruments to fine-tune its capital management. While taking practical
consideration of the Bank's mandate and reforms, the management
actively promoted the development of a separate set of regulatory
standards for CDB and a consistent capital replenishment mechanism.

The Bank calculated its total capital, core capital, capital adequacy ratio
and core capital adequacy ratio in accordance with CBRC's Commercial
Banks Capital Adequacy Management Guidelines and CAS. As of the
end of 2013, the Bank had a total capital stock of RMB 860.39 billion and
core capital RMB 535.61 billion, with a capital adequacy ratio of 11.28%
and core capital adequacy ratio of 7.09%.



ARTEATHESL
Million RMB or %

NS
Total Capital Stock

[UINAEN
Core Capital

RAFTEER
Capital Adequacy Ratio

BOEARFTREE
Core Capital Adequacy Ratio
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In 2013, the Bank continued its commitment to strategic planning in
support of national strategic initiatives and pursuing new urbanization

(EGalEy

LENDING BUSINESS

2013%F , RITIARRMERAZMEFBOR, K1FHKEIRE

RN BHOZFFHERBALRER, MERRRE, £RE
ME—XERQHEMEARTE AT RER, SEENARS
MAXREFRETHIIFNE, RIRBHZFERIFEN
PN FHRER R St KA R ST RE R 55
ERSEFRRIHSERFIEHITTR. BE2013F K,
KTRIDERRFARTT1,483(27T.

During 2013, CDB remained dedicated to implementing the
government's macroeconomic policies, made greater contributions
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Capital Adequacy
T3
2013 2012 +/(-)
860,391 769,112 91,279
535,606 476,887 58,719
11.28% 10.92% 0.36%
7.09% 6.86% 0.23%

opportunities across the country. The Bank further strengthened
its cooperation with ministries and local governments by actively
participating in the formulation of the national urbanization plan and
related financing plans to support local urbanization projects, leveraging
its expertise in financing and industrial development. The Bank carried
out the development of 30 regional financing plans, including one for
Jiangxi province's old revolutionary area; and the strategic development
plan for the Xinjiang Uyghur autonomous region. The Bank also
completed 50 planning projects with its strategic clients. Furthermore,
the Bank continued with its efforts in international planning cooperation,
signing 14 collaborative agreements with 13 economies, including
Surinam and Romania, and organizing 2 investment forums for planning
cooperation. Interim reviews and revisions were also conducted to
ensure those plans would materialize.

to the nation's new urbanization, and further improved its resource
allocation by leveraging its strengths in medium- to long-term financing.
While the Bank earmarked funds to support infrastructure and basic/
pillar industries, it bolstered its support in projects like redevelopment
of shantytowns to improve people's wellbeing, and promoted economic
restructuring, industrial upgrading and regional balance. In addition, the
Bank also moved forward in its international cooperation and achieved
new progress in the government's initiatives of economic and social
development. As of the end of 2013, the Bank had an outstanding loan
balance of RMB 7,148.3 billion (considering both yuan- and foreign
currency-denominated loans).

KN 3z FEAIs e B Al Fnsg A 7 Wl i
INFRASTRUCTURE, BASIC/PILLAR INDUSTRIES

2013%F | AT FFRE MIE . RMK BIAA R EMERSFELNL, HEEN
ARMEMI 02T, HEE64%. ERXF T HE AR . T WHHIEE. /NME
B RENZY B G SVRFAEAE FEEREEF-—AMERERTNERR.

In 2013, the Bank's key focus remained on primary areas such as coal, electricity, oil, transportation,
agriculture, forestry, water resources, telecommunications and public infrastructure. Total loans in these

RN AR DR

Loan Increment in Infrastructure,
Basic/Pillar Industries

RMB 391Billion

3,910:=
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sectors increased by RMB 391 billion, accounting for 54% of the Bank's aggregate increase in loans for the year. The Bank provided support to national
priority projects, including the highway network, high-speed rail, metro rail system, new energy-based power generation, large airport construction,
small town development, restructuring of the coal-related industry and other projects of national priorities.

B
ELECTRIC POWER

2013, RTANXHFEGRRB FEFRBCETZE . KE . NEFHMERSTHERRNBERER, ERERTIHES
R T H ORET B R KRN IR BIAEE X B H200MWRE | TIRIECATERIR R A B EFUE  IFHHMARE
IR EMOCRIT USRI RE (RHEIREIFR. BE2013ER, RTHIBENTUERART20(ZT, BRRTFAR
M 7,5051Z7T,

In 2013, the Bank increased support for comprehensive upgrading of coal-fired power plants, renewable and new energy projects,including nuclear,
wind and hydro power. Specific projects included Phase Il of Jiangsu Tianwan Nuclear Power Plant, the Miaowei Hydropower Station on the upper
reaches of the Lancang River, the No. 4 Yandun 200MW Wind Farm in Hami and the Ningbo Beilun Waste-to-Energy Project. It also supported the
construction of a grid-connected photovoltaic power plant that reduced the overcapacity of photovoltaic industry, which in turn helped to balance the
country's energy structure. In 2013, new lending to the electric power sector amounted to RMB 29 billion, with an outstanding receivable balance of
RMB 750.5 billion at year-end.

TL AR ZRRA ()5 SR L X BB 3715 B

Rudong Intertidal Trial Wind Farm

ZMEREEE LREHEIRNBHERNEIE, BENEFE180MW, RITRHEFRART205Z7T. #E2013
TR, EXMBERARTZT.

This project is a demonstration project of a domestic offshore intertidal trial wind farm and it will boast a total installed capacity of 180MW.
The Bank committed RMB 2.05 billion in loans. As of the end of 2013, RMB 100 million had been disbursed.
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Guandi Hydropower Station

ZHMEBRANAAR. HERE ESME, WEMM)IIREREWAREHK, FARKMBXEFHEAREFTEE
BEX, BENAE2400MV, KITERART7ZT. BE2013FER, ELBRIN.

The Guandi Hydropower Station on Yalong River in Sichuan province is a key project to the development of western China and critical to the
West-to-East Electric Power Transmission Project. This project will not only alleviate electricity shortages of Sichuan and eastern China, but
also play a significant role in promoting social and economic development in ethnic regions. The total installed capacity is 2,400MW. The
Bank provided RMB 700 million in loans. As of the end of 2013, all project loans had been disbursed.

D&
ROAD AND HIGHWAY

20135, RTHEXFHNRITI LR, AERSEARMMERRY &, AHEMINGETE. PEALKETBAKERRM
HeRE, XHT7TZEERSREABEX ZERMAE. AWM EEBNSEAREEATERR, KEFKART3,7881Z7T.
IHRHRRSENG 19092 E . —R R RNHEA336AE, RITRHE27,887 2R, FTIBTTRART1,47527T. BLE2013ER,
AT ABTURARFART12,382{27T,

In 2013, the Bank rigorously pushed funding for the expansion of national highway and road networks, especially in central and western China. Key
projects included the Zunyi-Guiyang section (in Guizhou province) of the Lanhai National Highway and the Liuzhou-Wuzhou Highway (in Guangxi). The
Bank made loan commitments totaling RMB 378.8 billion to this sector in 2013, supporting the construction of 6,199 km of highways, 4,336 km of first

and second-grade roads and 27,887 km of rural roads. Incremental loans totaled RMB 147.5 billion. As of the end of 2013, the Bank had an aggregate
outstanding balance of RMB 1,238.2 billion in loans to this sector.

ZEEARUEENSEABTE

Baoshan-Tengchong Highway

ZIMBERHEHERABEEZEREANERRR, ERENTHEZBANMKZREHIERMX BRI BEME,
RAFENAXHELFLR MAZEHECEEEARAN HLE BRRIER. SRAARTOMZT, RITHER
ARM201Z7t, B E20135F R, E 2 FBE M.

The Baoshan-Tengchong Highway is an important part of the China-India international thoroughfare in Yunnan province. Once completed,
the project will greatly improve the transport infrastructure and conditions in western Yunnan. In addition, it will promote regional economic

development in China, India and Myanmar, opening the southwest gateway to Yunnan and China at large. The total investment of the project is
RMB 6.4 billion, of which the Bank provided RMB 2 billion in loans. As of the end of 2013, these loans had been fully disbursed.
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RAILWAY

20134 AFTIRIRE L KA F M EHFRNZL FESRRS TR ARLSAR AREERER NEBWE F5KE.
RS AEFRNE S TEKE S ASFRAE, IITHRKEE. TEHHKE. WRALAMSREMERER, KAXFHRERE
T BBOL ERE" HERMRRAART1139ZT, BE2013FER, KITHREETI ERFRIMARTS,411127T, 1R
Sl ENIAT T A

In 2013, CDB diversified its financial services products to adapt to the changes brought about by China's railway industry reform. The Bank deepened
its cooperation with China Railway Corporation on railway construction, rolling stock procurement, bond underwriting and asset securitization, and
provided financing support to projects of intercity railway, urban railway and railway construction for resource development. The Bank also actively
supported the initiative of international expansion in the railway sector. Total loan disbursement for the sector amounted to RMB 113.9 billion in 2013.

As of the end of 2013, the Bank had an outstanding loan balance of RMB 541.1 billion to the railway industry, maintaining its leading position in that
market sector.

BEgzRi =

Xiangpu Railway

ZIEREEE —RERAMHNSRKE, I HERERARZFTRKANRBEAPRESEFXENEARAEFTERE
A. A RREARTS16.58(27T, RITIREFHART 160127t , BE2013FK , EXMBEHRART102.41127T.
Xiangpu Railway is Fujian's first high-speed railway connecting inland China. This project will significantly enhance the development of the

economic zone west of the Strait and the Poyang Lake ecological economic region. The total investment of the project is RMB 51.658 billion,
of which the Bank provided RMB 16 billion in loans. As of the end of 2013, RMB 10.241 billion had been disbursed.
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Expansion of Hangzhou East Railway Station

ZIMEREERANKBRAY Rz — BREBEHTHAK=A—FLLR. EERAART12561ZTT.
AITRERTAARTS5.7927T, BE2013ER EXMITRART17.81Z7T.

Once completed, the Hangzhou East Railway Station will be one of China's largest railway hubs and promote the economic integration of the

Yangtze River Delta. Total investment of the project is RMB 12.56 billion, of which the Bank provided RMB 5.58 billion in loans. As of the end
of 2013, RMB 1.78 billion had been disbursed.

amai
PETROLEUM AND PETROCHEMICAL

20135, ATHERSERMA L A HRESAS K, RMUEDAEH. PALSEESTFLEE, IFHEREERZE B LN
Y. EM1,20077 M/ERRETE Bi%, #MEXS VS SEINaEBRSF L., BE2013ER, K TAMAMTILERR
FMARM4,773127T.

In 2013, the Bank continued its support for the national and commercial petroleum reserves and deepened its cooperation with China National
Petroleum Corporation and SINOPEC Group by financing the Fujian Petrochemical Refinery and Quanzhou's 12 million ton refinery, as well as
supporting their overseas oil exploration and development projects. As of the end of 2013, the Bank's outstanding loan receivable balance in this
sector was RMB 477.3 billion.

PighEaMEXERRARTHE
CNOOC's Acquisition of Canada's
Nexen Inc.

%I B REE AR R ER R R
AHEINFIMTIE, BBIEX 15112
%7, A BIE0ILET, ATRHET
3752, BE013FER  EEBRA.

This project is China's largest single overseas
acquisition in the area of oil and gas. CNOOC
funded this USD 15.1 billion takeover bid
through a USD 6 billion loan, of which CDB
contributed USD 375 million. As of the end of
2013, CDB had disbursed all its share.
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COAL

20134, ATTRURHIER = U RERATR, RIRENESH. BHRXRASFHERR N LI LRNBX SV HRHE
H, ERRE R ETIRA007 M/ ERR R, RRETEEEICHE2,0007 M/FRBRET F0MEZR. BE2013FERK,
FITRETURRRBMART,575(Z7T.

With a continued focus on industry upgrading, the Bank actively supported restructuring within China's fragmented coal industry, in addition to
innovative coal processing projects such as coal-to-oil conversion and coal-to-gas conversion. Key projects included the Shenhua Ningxia Coal
Industry Group's 4 million ton Coal-to-Liquid project and Inner Mongolia Huineng Group's Changtan 20 million ton open-pit coal mine. As of year-end
2013, the Bank's total loans to coal-related projects were RMB 157.5 billion.

e A SR FI IR T H

Shenhua MTO Project

ZM AR EE-NEL I ERNESE
RINA , BIRBART47. 61270, RFTRER
FARM54ZTTH413{2% T, B E20135
K EEXBBEHRARMSZTH.08{2%TT.

This project is the world's first commercialized MTO
(methanol-to-olefins) project. The total investment of the
project is RMB 14.76 billion, and the Bank committed
RMB 5.4 billion and USD 413 million in loans. As of the
end of 2013, RMB 500 million and USD 108 million had
been disbursed.

HRER AT
POSTAL AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS

ERER IR ERAGTAEM M. MR, ESUTL, BRATIIFNERIE. 2013F, ATRRMNEER~WBR, &
REF RWHEFE" "SEET FEMRERR KEgPERERELLYY KEFRTY, RUESRIKBEEEEERE
5. BUE2013FR, AITHRE BT FRKMAR THBI9ZTT.

The postal and telecommunications sector remains one of the fundamental, strategic and pioneering industries of the Chinese economy and is an
area to which the Bank has given considerable support. In 2013, responding to national industrial policy, the Bank financed the Broadband China and

Smart City programs and Chinese telecom equipment-makers' expansion into international markets in their collaboration with foreign counterparts. As
of the end of 2013, the Bank had outstanding loans of RMB 89.9 billion in this sector.

R F
AGRICULTURE, FORESTRY AND WATER RESOURCES

2013%F AT —HMAMARR UL RIFNE, MAAR I TFEX BIF  RIREF HARR L ZROBRRET7%,
ERIFML. B 9l REGMTVE KEF "REF FLHERR, RRIIFIEHACSARKLREE
H BEARER>BHRE MERENRRERE, MRSKIREE #ABLEERKRIERER, XHZHHE2013F
ERKRIRFERERAIEMERNEE MESFTMARERNRKREIRFRAKFTE , KHBKHFTRART683
27T, B e E48.8%, BE2013FER, FITRMKFIFTUFRRMART1,9101Z7T,

In 2013, CDB further increased its financing support to the development of modern agriculture in China. Through setting up model programs, the
Bank encouraged business innovations and focused on key projects in seeding, animal husbandry, dairy, crop and produce processing. In so doing,
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the Bank helped align the country's new urbanization initiatives with the development of modern agriculture, and address food security, price stability
and food safety concems. Partnering with the Ministry of Water Resources, the Bank also funded key national projects, such as construction of water
supply facilities in five provinces in southwest China, including Yunnan province, as well as drinking water supply projects in Lintan, Linxia and five
other counties of Gansu province. New loans made to the water resources sector in 2013 reached RMB 68.3 billion, up by 48.8% from the prior year.
As of the end of 2013, the Bank's outstanding loans to the agriculture, forestry and water resources sectors totaled RMB 191 billion.

TR FIARA T

Xiajiang Water Conservancy Project

ZI B R BARESEFRESKFREME, &
MR TEE L HKF TRER, RIATEHAFL.
ER. UK. RBMEREENEFEEREN.
RITHELARBREATRARMNA4.25{2 T X FHZIM
B #ZE2013FK, ERMERART24.7212 7.

As a key water resources project in the Poyang Lake
ecological economic region, this project will improve
the local water systems and play a significant role in
enhancing its capacity for flood control, irrigation, water
supply, power generation and shipping. The Bank led a
loan syndication effort in the amount of RMB 4.425 billion
to support the project. As of the end of 2013, RMB 2.472
billion had been disbursed.

RKILAFRPEATAERTIE

South-to-North Water Diversion Project

2005%F, ATEIALARARKIIHNZIERS, IFERHRHRAART236ZT. TREREHHRAXEREL
T BOKRIRERHRIVA, BRUBIKREREE S RERLBXEFNTHRELR. RE—HEHTET2013F
12BERBIK, P TR T2014FMaRK,

In 2005, CDB led a loan syndication effort to support the project kick-off; a total of RMB 23.5 billion was issued in the following nine years.
This project, when completed, will help alleviate the water shortages in northern China, effectively increase the bearing capacity of water
resources and promote sustainable economic development of regions alongside the project. As of the end of 2013, Phase | of the east route
had begun to provide piped water and the central route will provide piped water after the flood season in 2014.
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PIER I
PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE

2013%F, RITHEUNHEMBEERIENR, TERWTRS
THgE. BFWMTRHMES, RAXFERMERECRR, #Hit
ZH. T —A RS, FMNNERR, REEDED.
Rl B ERBFREER, XHELUBREEXERES
K. IMENSBY E, R, LiE AREFHTHERE. &
KEHEX. MEEEATHEFMRRBEMREER. BZE
2013 R, AT A HEMIRIETI R RFART13,248127T.

In 2013, CDB vigorously promoted public infrastructure building and new
urbanization in China by improving public service and urban transport
capacity. It promoted city-and-industry integration through pilot projects
in Anhui, Liaoning and Suzhou. In addition, the Bank continued to boost
support for the development of port terminals, civil aviation and urban railway
networks, such as the container terminal in the Jingtang Zone of Tangshan
Port, expansion of Guangzhou Baiyun Airport, urban rail systems in Beijing,
Shanghai and Shijiazhuang, and the logistic infrastructures of Chongging's
bonded port area and Alibaba Taobao Shopping Mall. As of the end of 2013,
the Bank's outstanding loans for public infrastructure projects amounted to
RMB 1,324.8 billion.

TR BB

Ningbo Cultural Plaza

ZI BT TRAREEIE, #1581 A FET K, BREREH TR
FrEMEEERXAETERE, EHK=ZAREXL~ VLR,
BRAARMRIZT, ATEXLERRATRART22ZTT,
BE2013FER, ERMRAARTIZT,

This project, located in eastern Ningbo's development town, with an area of
158,100 square meters, will improve the quality of life for local residents and
contribute to the development of the cultural industry in the Yangtze River Delta. The

total investment of the project is RMB 3.2 billion and the Bank led a syndication of
RMB 2.2 billion. As of the end of 2013, RMB 1.1 billion had been disbursed.

KERK DA E IR R

Dalian's Changxing Island Petrochemical Park
ZI B 2RI R E—ERA AU~ L EX, S0
X ALV HF, IMERPERKEFAR
FEEREA. ATRHERARTII0ZT, BE
2013 R, ERMERARMS5{ZTT.

As the only national petrochemical industrial park in Northeast
China, this project is crucial to efficient petrochemical
production in the region, amid substantial on-going industrial
restructuring and upgrading. The Bank provided RMB 11
billion in loans to support this project. As of the end of 2013,
RMB 5.5 billion had been disbursed.



IR m A = IR FIE AR A 15 B
SF Express's South China Air Express
Hub

%I B =0 S E A RE MR R R E R
ZR BRI EEERSARME. M3
&M, ATRERRKARTS6ZT. BE
2013F R ERMERART1.051Z7T.

This project is a key component of SF Express's
domestic express delivery network, and has the
capacity of handling 80,000 outbound packages per
hour or above 130,000 small parcels per hour. The
Bank provided RMB 560 million in loans to support
the project. As of the end of 2013, a total of RMB 105
million had been disbursed.
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(R E R EFFEAR, FE U3, = IR FH 2R
RESTRUCTURING; INNOVATION; UPGRADING

iR R
COORDINATED REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT

2013%F, ATHLERENERKHELXRZGHE, RIRENTEBPRELR, FTELAZBETH, IFREAARBREFIE
X FEEAFE-AZABENE R, MEHABARTERS4371ZTT. HEE55.9% ; FERILEE T & AR THHRMK703
27T, HEE11.4% FIBEEA N A MK TR AR 213127t FiEHMBRAARTI07/ZT. BEE SR E AL,

In 2013, the Bank continued to implement its regional development strategy to facilitate the coordination of development between central and western
China, by funding the Silk Road Economic Belt, the Qaidam Circular Economy Pilot Zone and the Lhasa-Linzhi Highway. The Bank's new loans to
the central and western regions during 2013 totaled RMB 343.7 billion, accounting for 55.9% of total new loans of the Bank, whilst new loans to the
Northeast Industrial Base were RMB 70.3 billion, accounting for another 11.4% of total new underwritings. Loans made to Tibet and Tibetan-inhabited
areas in four provinces during the year totaled RMB 21.3 billion, while new loans to Xinjiang were RMB 30.7 billion, which placed CDB first among
Chinese banks in providing loans to these areas.

IHEmThiE R R IR E

Nanning Infrastructure Projects

BTRTE-REFRSENIDEFOHTAIEREZEFXMOHT. BE01ZER, ATRITRBERART
30617t X T FE-REBRSSRRE. ARHX REMERE. LR Y EF—RIERTAZR.
Nanning is at the forefront of China-ASEAN cooperation and a core city of the Beibu Gulf Economic Zone. As of the end of 2013, CDB had

accumulatively disbursed RMB 39.6 billion to support a series of major projects in the area, including the China-ASEAN Expo exhibition
facilities, Wuxiang new district, affordable housing and the Foxconn Technology Industrial Park.

PSR SRR
INDUSTRIAL RESTRUCTURING AND UPGRADING

FUEMRRSRUFAREMREFRRAAELTNEREENEIEAR. 2013F, ATENMHALE T EH . WKk HL
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FERTUMVRIEA EHEHE~LHEHHRE ARG ER AE FESE RERT FHLARMEARIE,
EERUTREEVR. TENMSSHESETIEL LR, XF T TCUBFEE B RN IWAH 25U B 25 B0~
W EEEAIRE AL RAIE AT KB RN RE S 13T MRAESAFTME.

Industrial restructuring and upgrading is an integral part of China's economic gear-shifting efforts. In 2013, the Bank promoted restructuring in the key
industries of electronics, pharmaceutical, steel and rare earths, to promote a more rational supply-demand production capacity within those industries.
It provided financing for steel, coal, non-ferrous metals, auto manufacturing and coal-fired power plants, to support their industrial restructuring and
technological upgrades. The Bank also boosted support for the development of high-end equipment manufacturing in the area of pharmaceutical-
grade chemicals, digital control machinery and engineering machinery, by investing in projects such as TCL's equity investment in CSOT, Shanghai
Shyndec Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.'s acquisition of Zhonglian Pharmaceutical, the industry supply chain adjustment of Jiugang Group, technology
upgrading of the Northern Copper Yuanqu Smelting Plant and Jaguar-Land Rover's joint venture program.

TSRS R E 357k e B R IR S5 AR B
WISCQ's Stake Acquisition of
ThyssenKrupp's Laser Welding Business

RORFIILETZFZINE. ARERKLL
TR ESNEAEH IR A B AN SRR & ZN. 55
ERFRT¢ETEM, BZE2013FKR BRI,

The Bank committed USD 130 million in loans to support this
project, which will effectively allow Wuhan Iron & Steel Co.
(WISCO) to break the present foreign company monopoly in
certain specialty steels and lay the foundation for Chinese steel
enterprises to compete in the international market. As of the end
of 2013, CDB had fully disbursed all loans for the project.

KRB MR =
STRATEGIC EMERGING INDUSTRIES

20135, AITEIFTR AN GBI FE NI MEF =W RAFIE W BEFITER BEH RABRHN I M U K
SRARHARKIE 15 KB B MRIRI EE—T KRRRNETRER BERIRE #FETEE £YE
7 Rl B M E AR T R AR, T mER 185K AN F W EH BIEAV AN TERRYI—
BHAVEFERWE, RIRFALEERBERKESY, B S+ 0 KE, A=%xX8. FEFLREVHHAL. FH
RHFEMAZS. BOERMEY. EMVER EHPTZER FEEBEEERNE TR YL ENENR, XFTAER.
THREL PEASFENEEGEMD W EFTETEIRAM. INGH. BFIREEFSmIEEITE,

In 2013, the Bank supported the development of strategic emerging industries and advanced manufacturing through innovation in financing structures.
Collaborating with the related ministries, the Bank explored new ways of financing suitable for strategic emerging industries, such as advanced flat-
panel display, genetic engineering, digital medical equipment, biomedicine, new materials and "smart grids" in Jiangsu, Anhui, Hubei, Guangdong and
Shenzhen. Key industry players that received our financing included BOE Technology's generation 8.5 LCD production line, Wuhan's bio-industry base,
Hisun Pharmaceutical’s biological engineering and Shenzhen Accordance Pharmaceutical's project.

The Bank also worked diligently to foster growth in strategic emerging industries, by providing financing support for acquisition, research and
development projects to quality enterprises like San'an Optoelectronics and Dong Xu through the "Finance + Enterprise" program. Furthermore,
it supported the development of shipping and shipbuilding industries, by providing financing support to key players such as COSCO and China
Shipping for the upgrading of their transport structure, and to key shipbuilders such as China State Shipbuilding Corporation, China Shipping Industrial
Corporation and COSCO Shipyard, to allow them to build more environmentally-friendly ships and LNG carriers, as well as convert themselves into
high-end marine engineering manufacturers with the most advanced technologies of the industry.
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REARIEE 85 KEERAERRE RFETE
BOE Hefei 8.5-Generation TFT-LCD Project

RITRBERFIBSLETZIFZUNERER, EHRETRAEKIRETAHNALE. 013FREHTEHEES
RGLE8% . HERHFTES, BE2013FER, EXMERK10.91ZETT.

The Bank made loan commitments totaling USD 1.85 billion for the thin-film transistor LCD monitor project to assist BOE to become a leader
in the international market of flat panel displays. In 2013, BOE's total shipments of products accounted for 8% of global shipments, ranking it
No. 5 in the world. As of the end of 2013, the Bank had disbursed USD 1.09 billion in loans for this project.

HEIEZG (BT BRR AR FEEY TEmE
Bio-engineering Project of Hisun Pharmaceutical

ZHMEAMTRAREEAFEVRORZS, EHERE
EAFELSEFRER. RTRERRARMIZIT.1,000
FETT BE2013FER, EFLAMBATRARTAZTT.

This project will help enhance the competitiveness of the Chinese
pharmaceutical industry, and promote the industry to meet international
standards. The Bank made loan commitments of RMB 900 million and USD 10
million. As of the end of 2013, RMB 400 million in a syndicated loan had issued;
the Bank served as lead arranger of the syndication.

IMRR: T RERHE
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, ENERGY CONSERVATION AND EMISSIONS REDUCTION

20135, AFTHERMARZEERT, AN KUSE. BIRETF . REIGIE J5KAIE, £FHFRF. TUSHERN. BE
R BA RN AFERGERE, HRBETRE. RAXFKEKSEFTKLE RHBRACEILSES. B
RUVBRRAGENBEFEAEZFME . BE2013FR, MREDEBHRRRFART9451Z7T. ELLIBKE.8%, TE
FRAERR6,50077 I , B HE = SALERT. 71208 . — S RR30077 I, 557K 742,

To support the development of low-carbon cities in China, the Bank has continued to implement the national green-credit policy that favors
environmentally friendly projects in its lending practice, especially in areas of air pollution treatment, the recycling industry, watershed management,
sewage treatment, ecological environment protection, industrial upgrading for energy conservation and clean/renewable energy. During 2013, the
Bank provided financing support to circular economy projects such as the sewage treatment system of Changchun Water Group, Industrial Gases
Island at Karamay Petrochemical Park, and comprehensive use of calcium carbide exhaust at Xinjiang TianYe Group. As of the end of 2013, the
Bank's outstanding loans to environmental protection and energy conservation projects stood at RMB 894.5 billion, up by 5.8% year-on-year, which
contributed to savings of 65 million tons of standard coal and 170 million tons of water, and reduction of 170 million tons of carbon dioxide and 3
million tons of sulphur dioxide.

e IR IR K 1A 5K R U Ab TR T B

Huaxin Green Spring's Appliance Recycling Project

EHRFEE AT TR ERBAES %
T HBRAARTS759.08H 7T, ATREIERART
2,600 7T, B E2013FE R, ERMEARARTI00ATT.

Huaxin Green Spring is the only appliance recycling enterprise
designated by the Beijing government. The total investment of the project
was RMB 87.59 million, of which, the Bank provided RMB 26 million in
loans. As of the end of 2013, the Bank had disbursed RMB 9 million.
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« SRERfE After
IS X ESRIPIEEHHE
Chaohu-rim Ecological Protection and Restoration Project
ATREBRAR D02 X FFZM BT ESERE. BSREGES
TEER, @ 7R XESERMAENE., BE2013FR. B
RIMEARANRT40.35127T,

CDB committed a total of RMB 20.2 billion in loans to support the comprehensive
management of rivers and pollution control, which promoted the ecological construction
of the Chaohu area. As of the end of 2013, the Bank had disbursed RMB 4.035 billion.
* JAIERT Before

ALk
CULTURAL INDUSTRY

2013%F , AfTE5 XA, ERXMB SRR AT WER. BERABURPEFENIIE, HERRFEXMN~ AL
AR RREEFFToL, EHEXAFWRERR, ERIF TR HEORPRIE . ZAEHER X E~
RKIE KETAERPFNERR. BE013ER, AT W ERRIMART,568127T . AL RRELER.

In 2013, the Bank strengthened its cooperation with the Ministry of Culture and the State Administration of Cultural Heritage to promote the arts and
crafts of ethnic groups of Tibetan, Qiang and Yi and the protection of national heritage sites, by exploring new ways of financing and providing support
to leading players of the cultural industry. Key projects included the Core Protected Area of Beijing North Central Axis, the World Heritage Park at
Longmen Grottoes, and the Lu-Family Residence Protection Project in Dongyang. As of the end of 2013, the Bank had outstanding loans totaling RMB
156.8 billion to the cultural industry, making it the leading lender in this sector.
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P LR AL TS kiR K IR E
Ethnic Tujia Ecotourism Attractions

ZHE =B AR ERERIA,
BERAANRTITZT, RITRETRA
Rf2.7{Z7t. BE2013F K. E R
ARM1.91ZT.

This project was for the construction of key
tourist attractions in Hunan province. The total
investment of this project was RMB 370 million,
of which RMB 270 million was provided by CDB
in loans. As of the end of 2013, the Bank had

disbursed RMB 190 million.

S ERE UM S =
LIVELIHOODS AND SOCIAL WELLBEING

KRB TR
Poverty Alleviation Loan Disbursed
RMB 222.1 Billion

2,221

REMRETRE '

Affordable Housing Loans

Fhlb
SME Loans

6,235zt

RMB 623.5 billion lent to date 640 million m* /8.35 million new

HHATART AR METES
20,8241z5%

REMIEREZMEHSERNEAAR, BRATENZIFHNERAE. 2013
F, ATPRREBRBZMBTBFEE, QIFMARR, 5ISHSHEHEXFE
B EFEE S BHE RVMFRNBERERETBRR, RABHFLRKR,
HFEMERMERZRAERMRRART2221127T. AMEARARARTE0IZTT,
BOXHEFTEU BRRBRREMRERN,

Protecting and improving people's wellbeing is not only a significant element of China's social
development, but also a key area to which the Bank has provided tremendous support. In 2013, the
Bank actively cooperated with related authorities and local governments, created innovative financing
models and channelled funds to support areas of housing, healthcare, employment, education,
agriculture and new rural development. The Bank made further progress in poverty alleviation lending
by disbursing RMB 222.1 billion in loans to poor counties as so designated by the central and
provincial governments. In addition, emergency loans of RMB 8 billion were issued for the relief of
earthquake-hit Lushan and Ya'an and other disaster-hit areas.

BR42,5747A
25.74 million people benefited

8357

homes built

MKF1957 F eER I KA 50871

Outstanding balance of 1.95 million SMEs, seli- 5.08 million new jobs
RMB 2,082.4 billion employed vendors and
farmers benefited
== ANk — 0
AL A 1,0281M8(K). 2,680F &k 994,95 Ak
Student Loans 544 .71z ’ ’ .
RMB 54.47 billion lent to date 25 provinces /municipalities, 1,928 9.949 million university students

counties and 2,689 universities served benefited
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Rural Development Loan Balance Outstanding

B, ARM10{Z5T Bilion RMB

7258

20135, RFTAMIRAABEFRART,605127T, BAXFFTHARN 800
RESBEMEHEE. F Ukl RNETEE. HESREHEL 700 o
N X Jm B L 2 M3 N 600
AR, BE2013FER, ATRIUTRBIFHRNBRIRART14,01712 e
T RRATART7 25812T. 0
In 2013, the Bank lent RMB 160.5 billion to support projects under the government's new 300
rural community initiative, which included the development of rural infrastructure, leading 200
industry players, rural healthcare and education programs. As of the end of 2013, the 100
Bank had accumulatively disbursed RMB 1,401.7 billion in loans for rural development, 0
2010 2011 2012

and had outstanding loans totaling RMB 725.8 billion.

RERILERFRMKETI IR EKERRRERAE~LEHE
Mushroom Farming in Yinjiang's Ethnic Tujia and Miao
County of the Wuling Mountain Area

AT EREAEN, B TR E R EeR
WER BE013FR, RUTEABERART1.2ZT 5 751K
RETWEHEE. 6xRLP/NEWAEBARARARE.

Through innovative financing models, the Bank supported the development of
specialty agriculture in this region under the "CDB rural microloans" program.
As of the end of 2013, the Bank had disbursed total loans of RMB 120 million
cumulatively to help five specialized farmer cooperatives and six agro-SMEs, in
addition to allowing 638 rural families to move out of poverty.

EHRESEZREIA
DQY Eco-park Development Project

2013

ZHEREME FE. RANL EELYA—FHNEXRLF~EE tRIMRANBIELBNE  FHEEEFX
HHENERARESHKERT ERARBRKERATELR . BE013FEKR, ATRTRERHERRART27

et APV REREARTS000H7T.

This project serves as an example of a fully integrated energy recycling project that encompasses planting, breeding, food processing and
energy sourcing. It is the largest biogas power generation project in Asia, and was recognised as a UNDP/GEF biogas power generation
technology demonstration project (United Nations Development Program and the Global Environment Facility). As of the end of 2013, the
Bank had accumulatively lent RMB 270 million and underwritten SME notes amounting to RMB 50 million.
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RIEMRETLRE
AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECTS

2013 ATUXFMAXBENER, TEXFRENZELIERZR UM SRR, TEFERER, EHNELTH
SHERREER, HHBRPREARESFD-E, £ XBUETHR LXK TR LS ERNRE, SEHBE
RART1,62817C, BA X 7T ILRBLE. BKILR. RATRTRE HRZMN, SHEEFEAMAXBETE . RE
MREIERRES=FLIURFINIGE T, Bk G H60% M L.

In 2013, the Bank maintained its support to the affordable housing sector by focusing on shantytown reconstruction across China. Through product
innovation and policy enhancement, the Bank made tremendous efforts in establishing a sustainable system that provides housing security to local
residents and helps solve the housing problems of low-income families. It also achieved a major breakthrough in a special soft loan business for
shantytown redevelopment. The Bank had a total of RMB 162.8 billion in new loans to this particular sector in 2013, and supported shantytown
redevelopment in Beijing's Baiwanzhuang, Baotou's Beiliang, Heilongjiang's Harbin, Gansu's Lanzhou and Jilin. The Bank's affordable housing
portforlio, for the third straight year, exceeded RMB 100 billion in incremental outstanding balance, snatching up a 60% market share or higher in each
of the last three years.

BLINERBE ZR UG AR A 3t X e R N i IR T H

Hangzhou Railway Hub Redevelopment
RTRHERRARDOTZTHFNZIE  HERL 0P R
E19,207.A. T B BHHEMNRITM SABE RIEIRA IR . BE Y
R FEERE (RHEEM S RERRSTMIERR. BE2013
FREXMERART36.181Z7T.

CDB provided a total of RMB 6.7 billion in lending to support this project,
which benefited 4,041 families or 19,207 residents. This project also
accelerated the construction of the Hangzhou East Railway Station, a railway
network hub, improved the living environment of local farmers, and promoted
the integrated rural-urban development of rural and urban regions. As of the
end of 2013, a total of RMB 3.62 billion had been disbursed.
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REMZEIESFRRTIER
AT DB X XS E Affordable Housing Loans Outstanding
Beimalu Shantytown Redevelopment in Yantai . ART10Z5E Bilion RMB
ATREFRART125ZTXHZAE  BIREETE5H 450 436.3
FIk, BR14147, RE3S40N, RETHAXERE g 00
RN B3 T HHEFERAMESEIR, BE2013EX, w00
BRI, 250

200

The Bank committed RMB 1.25 billion to support the project, with 150
a total floor area of 85,000m?, which benefited 1,414 households 100 105.6
and resettled 3,540 people. This project played a significant role 621

50
in improving the living conditions of these Yantai residents, and 0 HRHH T i
promoting local economic and social development. As of the end of 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
2013, CDB had disbursed all loans for the project. S LRE AR S B HSIT O, AT A0 EREER

MR TR ST E0R , FE %2009 % 201 24F R 1T 2,

Note: The Bank started to disclose its affordable housing
loan figures as per the statistical calculation requirements
of the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development in
':F' / J\_I/J:\.‘JJL 2013, and adjustments were made to its 2009-2012 numbers
SME accordingly.

2013%F , AfTARMRHER W S5 6%, RF /N W HEE SRS BB R ME = @, AU M VR R NER., BE
20135F R, /NI RRRMART2.087127T. FELIBK14%, ER /Nl MELEF19577 5, BRI R A8 508
AN RRPER N USSR FER N VREARE TR,

In 2013, the Bank increased its support to small and micro enterprises by exploring new business models, innovations and products. Total loans made
to the SME sector amounted to RMB 2.08 trillion as of the end of 2013, a 14% increase from the prior year, and the Bank's lending efforts benefitted 1.95
million SMEs and self-employed vendors, and helped create 5.08 million jobs. The China Association of Small and Medium Enterprises honoured the
Bank with its award for the "Outstanding SME Lender of the Year".

SN T i el =

Micro Loans for Entrepreneurs in Jilin

RTBEE S SBF. TUMEEEEI=FNESE. IMRFLERIE B@ELhR A MEEEN L VEL
PR B E2013F R, RITRMERART15.24127T, ZFI M K26 E7 884 P eIV ELENRIR.

The Bank continued to provide financing solutions to local farmers, self-employed vendors and small/micro-enterprises. Working closely with
local governments and industry associations, the Bank created a mechanism consisting of three levels of risk sharing, interest rate discounts
and stop-loss provisions. As of the end of 2013, the Bank had accumulatively disbursed RMB 1.524 billion in loans to this project, benefitting
7,884 entrepreneurs in 26 counties across 9 prefectures.
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EDUCATION

2013, ATBEIRERSFR. CIFEEAE. BXIX
CAMESRRIVLE], - RIRSINE, ZFFEIL . R ET
RNREHNZRRVEFRIZE., SFELARPERRAR
M1252{27T, XFFAE2209ANK, HRET £ E80% MU
FREZFEEZENRRTR . RITRBBERRA
RMb544.712t. BEELE2SNE (W), 1,92818(X),
2689FT SR, X R EAFEMEFE 4497 AKX,

In 2013, the Bank continued to grow its student loan business
through various measures, including improvement in service quality,
innovations in banking management, risk compensation incentives,
expanded service coverage and support for entrepreneurship
and employment. During 2013, the Bank lent RMB 12.52 billion,
helping 2.209 million students to complete their education. The
Bank was able to satisfy the borrowing needs of 80% of students
from needy families across the country. The accumulative lending
in this sector amounted to RMB 54.47 billion, covering 25 provinces
or municipalities, 1,928 counties/districts and 2,689 colleges/
universities, and assisting 9.949 million students from financially
disadvantaged families.

i eah e b A N =

Student Loan Program in Hunan

B &FEER Student Loans

HELM(Z%H) Loans Issued in Current Year(LHS)
: WEAH (Z4h) Outstanding Loans(LHS)
—u— WHBH(EH) Market Share(RHS)
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ATB2008FESHBETRAYPOEETREBEARZRNS, BE2013FER, HEAMTRARTS.4Z
T EEEHIDBMETX, RIFABFE0,876 K, BIFE R ERTHNHO0%U L, VIZRET ERRER

HEERBFEHENR.

The Bank had carried out student loan business with the various financial aid centers across Hunan province since 2008. As of the end of
2013, the branch had disbursed RMB 540 million in loans to 90,876 students under this program, accounting for more than 90% of student
loans in the province. This program covered the entire 123 counties in the province, ensuring education opportunities for students from

financially disadvantaged families.
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EMERGENCY LENDING
REFHRR EHUX EBM(ARTMEAT)
Types of Emergency Geography Amount Lent (Million RMB)
% Floods POJI| . KiEZM Sichuan, Tianjin, etc. 3,888
&R Typhoon TR . TTEHZH Ningbo, Guangdong, etc. 2,015
INEIS IR cnak s g A . )
Pollution and Environmental Damage Incidents T FBFH Ningbo,Qingdaoetc. 800
HiFE Earthquakes 5. )11 Inner Mongolia, Sichuan, etc. 380
£ Droughts it . =% Hebei, Yunnan, and etc. 375
F5% Snowstorm M. L% Inner Mongolia, Anhui, etc. 282
BRTHERR
Outbreak of Avian Diseases Possibly Transmissible 1t . iR % i Beijing, Henan etc. 156
to Humans
RERZE Hailstorms #7358 Xinjiang 50
Hfth Others iTdt Hebei 65

FrRE R 55
INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION

20134, ATTHER LS EEBUT . DA ASRVIMEREMIRE. K. RE . ERFEATHNME &1 RikENESL L
BREKAE. PE-RERKG. SRERRTAENHF SRS DEREERR EHSHRRTEENTREXAE, K8
FERXRES PEESEWIMIAFAMER. RRRSTELY EHE" HNARTERKL. BANEE . WRER
VEREEEGR, BRFREBRIFRE. BE2013FER, INHRARH2,50512% 7T, BREAR T RARRIO301ZTT, HEEHR
FREXIMNEBBENTHA., BIMBTHEH—DPRR, BFLSRETEXGBUANR, ES106MERMHEX A
B70ORMITRIRIETRE,

EARERLYSERES ATFRF EXERF. 2FER HEFY HERER RN, MEEKFEDSTRER, RIRFAR
RRIBIEE, HEHENERNEZRDF, BE2013F R, #H KA LIFLBUFIRITMAEEI4 963 RS INAFTHR RIS
WHFHS A B ERARRITRFE RAE1002 LI RILFEEREES BREXUIRAT.

In 2013, the Bank broadened its collaboration with foreign governments, enterprises and financial institutions in key areas of infrastructure, agriculture,
social sectors and energy. During the year, the Bank made significant progress in the implementation of measures under the multilateral financial
cooperation frameworks of the Shanghai Cooperation Organization Interbank Association, China-ASEAN Interbank Association and BRICS Interbank
Cooperation Mechanism. It also promoted practical cooperation with the World Bank in Africa, and operated the China-Portugal Fund and the China-
Africa Development Fund as overseas investment platforms. The Bank continued its support of Chinese enterprises in their "Go Global" endeavors,
and promoted the internationalization of the Chinese currency, the renminbi. The Bank has always remained committed to strong risk management;
as such, it made further enhancements in its risk warning system in 2013. As a result, its foreign asset quality remained stable. As of the end of 2013,
the Bank had outstanding foreign currency loans of USD 250.5 billion and an offshore yuan-denominated loan balance of RMB 63 billion, which further
cemented its status as a pillar of cross-border financing in China. With correspondent banking relationships set up with 670 banks in 106 overseas
markets, the Bank boasted a global network of correspondent banks to support its international business.

The Bank has always concerned itself with the practical needs of partners, and thus adhered to its "building trust, sharing experiences, learning from
each other and developing jointly" principle in its international collaboration practices. Under this principle, the Bank organized various experience-
sharing workshops and talent development programs to help capacity building. As of the end of 2013, a total of 4,963 participants from governments
in Asia, Africa and Latin America had attended various seminars organized by the Bank. In addition, funded by CDB Scholarships, nearly 100 talented
youths from these developing countries came to study in China, greatly advancing cross-cultural exchanges.
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Wanbao’s Mozambique Project

ZHESEREME NI e HEA &,
EREAEFNRAORVEGEE=WATE,
BhlfE, BRAZBUHRRT SR, (2
HEFHERRTIRERE, ZWE R
#1982k, A, —HRHE4,4625 %,
HE2013F R, ERMETFH200075%TT.

This project by Wanbao Grains & Oils Co., Ltd
is by far China's largest agribusiness project in
Alfrica, one that creates an integrated chain of crop
planting, food processing and warehousing to
distribution. Once completed, it will greatly relieve
local food security issues, promote economic and
social development in the region, and improve
people's living standards. The total investment of
the project was USD 198 million, of which the Phase
I investment was USD 44.52 million. As of the end of
2013, the Bank had disbursed USD 20 million.

BIERFRRITEEEETE
Credit to West African Development Bank

RITEEEFRRTENE. 2H6,0000 BTN, HERIFFAEIEHBX
TAHUNRWVIRE BERWNT . By BRRE N R RIESE, b
BT ARER YIS, BE2013FER, EEHEN. EAZNE
RO NTRFEEOEMRERRET ALE,

The Bank provided EUR 60 million in loans in collaboration with the West African
Development Bank to support seven SME projects in the West African region,
and thousands of jobs were created for local residents as a result, covering
sectors such as agriculture processing, health care, infrastructure and tourism.
As of the end of 2013, CDB had fully disbursed the loan. (The picture shows the
infrastructure and facility expansion project at Port of Cotonou, Benin.)

Wk ERE—HmE

Vung Ang Power Plant Phase I, Vietnam
RITEIRARKB A ETZIFZME, HP AT
ME6.73(2%T. MERMERE M TEBEEESN
EHURIMEIL, ENLHEFHSRR, REPHE
FEE. BE013ER ATERMGERSE.71LETT.

The syndicated loan for this project amounted to USD 844
million. As lead arranger, CDB committed USD 673 million. The
project will help ease the electric power shortage in Vietnam,
effectively promote the social and economic development of
the local region, and deepen Sino-Vietnamese cooperation. As
of the end of 2013, the Bank had disbursed USD 571 million.



KRKER 90 RINREAFIRIE
New Volvo XC 90
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ZHEETEERNMAERATRNEEERRARRME ., ATELAZRATKLZET, HPARTHH6.4

ZETT BE2013F KR ERM T3 7212% T,

This is the first international syndicated loan project completed in Sweden by Chinese financial institutions. The total syndicated loans of the
project amounted to USD 800 million. As lead arranger, CDB committed USD 640 million in loans. As of the end of 2013, USD 372 million

had been disbursed.

HEWF

TREASURY OPERATIONS

20135, AITRIRR IR AN M ZKE RN AR T HE 0, ROGHERTIR, FER
K AARETRE fFERTEFUFHS ARTHRFLTEIX12,400.8(27T. KK
RETXZAFEZF1201ZT, KM THREBPIARAZFNFTNEK LR, §HE
IR0 RN & QI — T RITFH M REAERS  Edt R Rt T E RN
MHEE. BEBRNEITBLTARTRSE. KTEXMUCNH HBOR (BEEARD
RV AR R) AR ER2EF B 5. SOBINIH L BRI, ERAE @ REH
KIRABFREARTHRFESZT, BNITELNRBASIEER HR=FERX
178.65(L K THENINT i35, BITHRABEIIN T ERIBSET. AERLFRMEE
NRERE.

Facing the market headwinds caused by tight liquidity, the Bank adopted a flexible strategy in cost
control and diversified channels for debt issuance in 2013. CDB issued a new record high of RMB
1,240.08 billion in yuan-denominated bonds. The Bank also piloted a first-ever bond sale of RMB
12 billion on the Shanghai Stock Exchange to individual investors, who, in turn, were enabled to
make direct investment in the debt market. In addition, the Bank issued its first interbank negotiable
certificates of deposit (NCDs), in the amount of RMB 3 billion, and launched a basket of floating-rate
bonds, improving the yield curve construction and liquidity position in the interbank market. Meanwhile,
the Bank expanded its investor base and continued to issue dim sum bonds in Hong Kong, raising
RMB 4.5 billion, including the first CNH HIBOR (Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate)-benchmarked
2-year floater, which attracted subscriptions from overseas monetary authorities. Another "first" for the
Bank was an offering of over RMB 0.5 billion in private placements to investors in the ASEAN region
to assist in the cooperative building of investment and financing systems in Asia. After a lapse of three
years, the Bank's retap of foreign currency debt issues of USD 865 million created China's largest
single issuance of foreign-denominated financial debts. This also helped augment the Bank's fuding
for its international business.

T ARMRSE
Yuan-denominated Bonds Issued
RMB 1,240 Billion

12,400.8 =

MREREITR SRS
Bond Sale on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange

RMB 12 Billion

1201
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AT ARMERMEELITIERE  Renminbi Debt Issues

s FRFTE(ASM) Debt Issued in Current Year (LHS)
—u— ZR{TE(HH) Accumulative Debt Issued(RHS)
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F EGIAERL, 2007FRERTEREARTS0ZT.
Note: Due to a change in statistical criteria, the amount of debt issuance for 2007 is shown RMB 5.0 billion higher than previously reported.

2013 ERITARMERET AL B E Renminbi Debts by Market Share in 2013
BAL BOLE %

EREMFTBUF R Treasuries and Munis 31.0%
EFFfi CDB Bonds 19.9%
HAZRE Medium-term Notes 9.8%
k5% Corporate Bonds 7.9%
42HARR A% Short-term Commercial Paper 4.4%
AV $R1765 Bank Bonds: Commercial Banks 4.4%
R &% Bank Bonds: Agricultural Development Bank of China 6.0%
B O4R1768 Bank Bonds: Exim Bank of China 45%
HAthffiZx Others 12.1%
&1t Total 100%

L AREIERR. FEGRIHEEN . LEEERMIG PEIFSFFICEEE RTEA SR,
F2ARAERTEEARTMR,

Note 1: Source: www.chinabond.com.cn, www.shclearing.com, www.chinaclear.cn

Note 2: Onshore issues only.

20135, AFTHEEHEFShibortkiNT, B AIXFShiborBE AR R, £FXRARH EE26
FILRART AHXFBESAFRET2E — AR BHAZZEMET A &
SAFWBRTEATH AL H100 BEF. RIEEBERARTRZLS, £F5%

ABHARTRSBLELT. e

TEREXHART
In 2013, the Bank continued to promote the use of Shibor (Shanghai Interbank Offered Rate) in ask Annual Trading Volume
and bid prices, which effectively helped the construction of Shibor-benchmarked yield curve. Its annual RMB 26 Trillion

trading volume reached RMB 26 trillion in 2013. The Bank won the first place in cash bond trading for
the fourth consecutive year and remained a front-runner in interest rate swap business. Meanwhile, it : !673' _
was ranked among the "Top 100 Dealers of Interbank Yuan Trading". The Bank actively carried forward 1ZJ'[',

cross-border yuan-bond trading, amounting to a total volume of over RMB 10 billion.
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SETTLEMENT BUSINESSES

20135, ATRRMHAEZEMERE. BKACIETRKERERRER, SHHER
F—RIRLEEXMNER, B8 FE RE8FITERIFHRIET INRERE
BRK FELEESRGER AREGREZMALESEF AIHEERARLIEK
56%., FUEBEGRSEAMEMBEER, TEXFEXMRETR, EE5E6R
SRNH R,

In 2013, the Bank was proactive in promoting the upgrading of its operational management, revenue
creation, risk management and control systems. It strived to build a world-class operational payment
system. Settlement, clearing and accounting were stably run, and payment maintained "zero loss"
status. Meanwhile, the Bank enhanced its suite of settlement products and expanded its business
in international trade finance. As a result, settlement activity income increased by 56% year-on-year.
The Bank widened its range of counter service systems and infrastructure construction. It improved

channels of payment services for customers, which further enhanced the overall capabilities of its
integrated operational businesses.

e TEIN23

INTERMEDIARY BUSINESSES

2013%F  RITHELA BRI EIRE FHAE. S1AMDAESFELE, Fialks
FWAART121127T, BEEEEK21.7%, WANEHWEBEL., RINET2013F % —
A THBE T ERATIFIESEARTZT, EERNEENETMER AEME
FRIESFELFR, BRERT KEREFIESFMRRERTHNE—2/~MR, KRR
BRESEREFRELH, RNERERASRE=MERNRS HREEHFER
FERRE WEIG—HNERESRZTHMEERRER.

2013, ARITHFABUSIMENRE, SFERITKMEHEF26R, RKELBART
6,481127T, E P EXEMFMART3,091127T, AEMR LI EAN SN EA, b2
H—REBTAMX AT PESRIE, GEREZBDEEREL, CIFHE
HEFEST R A X REFHEBANRRNE, KOXFEBAR, AH
BEWVRTHRFIR, MAARTINR6ZT, HP AHBHX LZGHI5R ®AART
101.4127T, R EREBHELHEH. KEISFHPBRERRSE, RAIFHRSTHE
w, T HRIE— . FLRELE. LR O RYIBTBUFGR, Bt TR R AR
BE,

In 2013, the Bank further developed its fee-based intermediary businesses focused on custodian
business, debt underwriting and advisory services. The intermediary business generated RMB 12.1
billion in fee income in 2013, 21.7% more than the prior year, contributing a bigger share to the Bank's
net income and thus a more balanced profit structure. Its Phase | Kaiyuan Railway ABS of RMB 8 billion
issued in 2013 was China's first securitized product backed by a special-purpose loan, and also the
first such Chinese ABS product following the expansion of the nation's pilot offerings. Meanwhile, the
Bank cooperated with CBRC in innovations involving credit asset transfers by completing trials with
three different models of credit asset transfers--a demonstration of efficient application of assets in
stock, which is an essential step in the establishment of a trading market of credit assets.

In 2013, the Bank made a breakthrough in its bond underwriting business. It underwrote 286 bond
offerings, representing RMB 648.1 billion in volume. The Bank acted as lead underwriter for issuance
of RMB 309.1 billion in bonds. It therefore ranked first amongst domestic financial institutions in terms
of underwriting size, and also was the only Chinese financial institution amongst the top ten investment
banks in Asia Pacific. Meanwhile, the Bank adroitly matched its debt underwriting activities with its
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Increase in Settlement Income 56%

96%

fiE W R AANR T
Net Income from Intermediary Businesses
RMB 12.1 Billion

121:=

SERITKERSE
Underwrote 286 Bonds

286:=

KEREREARD
RMB 648.1 Billion in Volume

6,481:=
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lending business. CDB's past performance and sophisticated lending practices allowed it support socially motivated initiatives such as shantytown
redevelopment and other new urbanization projects and the West China development program. These included 81 issues of bonds, raising RMB
99.26 billion, of which 15 bond issues were for Xinjiang with RMB 10.14 billion raised, thereafter pushing "bonds to support Xinjiang" to a new high. The
Bank underwrote the 15-year super long-dated bonds, making greater contributions to the debt capital market development. CDB-led Munis for the

Shanghai, Shandong and Shenzhen local governments helped promote the reform of local investment and financing systems.

ERMESIES eI

FINANCIAL COOPERATION AND INNOVATION

20134 ARTTHE ISR N S EE, RIS EXSRIMTREE.

In 2013, the Bank continued to enhance its coordination between business lines to achieve synergized banking services, cooperated actively with

other financial institutions, and made new headways in business development.

%E?T 1

Cooperation
with banking
institutions

CDB

HithE1E REE1E
Cooperation Cooperation

with other entities with insurance
P companies

S5If7 PTHxRTEE(ema i) . #L4E8
RARKEEEMART64ZTT  RAVFEL=
RERBITU IS "BAEVGR"  N0REE M &5
M. ARFRBITRIMFITHTIFRIRE.

Banks ---- CDB entered into across-the-board cooperation agreements
with four other banks, including ICBC and BOC. CDB-led syndicated
loans totaled RMB 641.9 billion. The China Banking Association
named CDB "Best Performing Bank" for the past three consecutive

times. The Bank rated and granted credit lines to 20 national lenders
and 1 overseas subsidiary bank of a Chinese lender.

5¥% 2 AR KEFFIRMRK A SDEB(RERIEN &
DI, FRARKREL S, RERFARD2,14012
T, REFHEHEBAART2919HTT. NERRE A E]
HITHRFE.

Insurers ---- CDB partnered with nine general insurers, including
Ping An, PICC and China Pacific, generating RMB 29.19 million in

fee income from RMB 214 billion in written premiums. It rated and
granted credit lines to 5 insurance companies in 2013.

RESHEFERNT IFEHATMEEATERTEE.
SREEEVESTEEE, W2RIELEAT. 3RAF
EIBNE)H ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂxﬁo

Others ---- CDB tapped collaboration with asset management
companies and securities firms in asset management and financial
leasing businesses. It rated and granted credit lines to 22 securities
firms and 3 asset management companies.
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SUBSIDIARIES

2013F, ATERTARBAGIE, MAGEEHENE. 2
TR SHEREER, RME TN EMRE, A% FRMH
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In 2013, the Bank joined force with its subsidiaries. It enhanced its
integrated marketing capabilities, improved the efficiency of cross
business collaboration and expanded the work in scope and depth.
It provided clients with full-spectrum financial services and diversified
financial products, and further promoted its corporate image as an entity
serving the national priorities through varied financing facility offerings.
Synergies between the Bank and its subsidiaries were further realized,
with RMB 382.4 billion of funding in place and RMB 12.6 billion of
revenue generated as of year-end 2013.

EF&mBERIFELR
CDB Capital Co., Ltd.

EFEmARFTEAS ML T2009F8[24H . BAFTIRE
ESRAENNETRRINERATRE IMEREAR
M476{27T. 20135, ABMMAREFMEFIUHRE, L
FBRFAN . FURE . BIMIATNEESEEL KRR
SER. RNEHIERNHEESVSHER, TR TEEE
WREARRNRIRE, T RERXKEBHBRMRE, 2FHE
LT B T F280127T - ME~ W EAGIRBY L, ANt
VHRERE, RATWEEE., MEREZFAETHF WL
Tl AT, HELEEETRRA~ L IERAART
1021Z7¢ ; e EESR, PEf/NS IV ESIDTE
LH RTINS,

On August 24, 2009, the Bank founded China Development Bank
Capital Co., Ltd. (CDB Capital) as a wholly owned subsidiary, with a
registered capital of RMB 47.6 billion, in accordance with the reform
plan approved by the State Council. In 2013, CDB Capital expanded its
footprint in the new economy, and continued its business development
in the four specialty areas of urban development, industrial investment,
overseas investment and fund management. lts investments included
annual contribution to urbanization projects totaling RMB 28 billion,
including the Jinhaihu Tourism Town in Pinggu, and other Beijing small
town development projects. CDB Capital seized the opportunity to
assist in the industrial restructuring by investing in potentially game-
changing ventures of Alibaba and SF Express. It contributed a total of
RMB 10.2 billion to industrial investments through mezzanine finance.
With endeavors to expand its reach overseas, it completed the set-up of
the China-Portugal Fund and the investment in four projects under the
China-France SME Fund.

EFEEBREEAT
CDB Securities Co., Ltd.

EFESHRFTER S ML T2010F8825H, 2AFTRIE
ESRMENSENTR A2HRBEMZIESFHRIE
AE R EM ERBTRIA, SEMERAART73.71Z7T,
20135, REARIBRLERFHHANL, MWK TE W HRZF55
ROHBART2A7ZT, THHEE— . RIREITREBR
75, B AR EH 3B R AEMEART,30012
T BAERREAS . AE T BURTE & KB
BIRRER  AERTERATRBEME TR~ LS
ARMZTT, MLk &R ATRE. BEFE IIFXELE
FRBEINEZER. UEARESESEERT, #HH
EEFermalt, @FEXWELRAART10261Z7T, #
FEART44 12T BRFIEART176.93127T : 28D
KN BB E AN HCCCRIRTTEAAR.

China Development Bank Securities (CDB Securities) was established
on August 25, 2010 by the Bank through its acquisition of Stockfly
Securities Co., in accordance with CDB's reform plan approved by the
State Council. The registered capital was RMB 7.37 billion. In 2013, CDB
Securities continued to take the leading market position in terms of bond
underwriting, successfully selling 55 issues of corporate bonds, totaling
RMB 217.1 billion in volume, ranking first in that market. CDB Securities
issued state-owned corporate bonds and served as the lead underwriter
of the seventh "13 Railway Bond', totaling RMB 130.0 billion. It was the
first to introduce a "debt+credit combo" bond, which played a positive
role in preventing the risks within local government financing vehicles. As
the underwriter of the first Kaiyuan Railway ABS in the amount of RMB 8
billion, CDB Securities demonstrated an innovative asset securitization
model in order to push forward reform of the railway industry's financing
system. Moreover, CDBS Cathay Asset Management Co., Ltd. was
established to promote economic and financial cooperation across the
Taiwan Straits. As of December 31, 2013, CDB Securities' operational
income reached RMB 1.03 billion and its net profit increased to RMB 441
million, whilst its total assets increased to RMB 17.69 billion compared

with last year. Fittingly, it was upgraded from a CCC securities firm before
its CDB takeover to the present AA.

EsRemEEHRAAE

CDB Leasing Co., Ltd.

ER&mELHRA S T2008F5820B EREHM, 417
WEFRN AR ERAIHATENEAFEREEER
S IERITERIME, SEMARART0ZT, 20135,
SFERITIREART484IT, RIMFRELFTBIAR
M2,560127T ; FEMBWFEARTI7T7IZT, BHRTEAR
m1,424127T, ELEZFRFTLRIS. RIR\RESHKIL
RFCILSE, W M. mAE . IREVMBERFOE
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CDB Leasing was established on May 29, 2008 as a non-bank financial
institution with a registered capital of RMB 8.0 billion. CDB Leasing was
formerly known as Shenzhen Leasing Co., Ltd before it was acquired
by CDB. In 2013, with additional credit lines of RMB 48.4 billion granted
by banks, its credit lines in both domestic and foreign currencies
surpassed the equivalent of RMB 256 billion. Therefore, CDB Leasing
was able to boost its leasing business by RMB 37.7 billion, with total
assets standing at RMB 142.4 billion at year's end, maintaining the
market leading positionfor several consecutive years. CDB Leasing
actively developed innovative business, including asset transfer.
Its leasing business covering aircrafts, ships, commercial vehicles,
construction machinery and equipment, has become increasingly
influential over time. It generated total net profits of RMB 1.89 billion
and ROE of 17.06% in 2013. Financial News and the Institute of Finance
and Banking and Chinese Academy of Social Sciences jointly listed
CDB Leasing among "Most Influential Financial Leasing Companies
2013". It was also named by People's Daily "Outstanding Financial
Leasing Company 2013".
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China-Africa Development Fund
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The China-Africa Development Fund (CAD Fund) was launched on June
26, 2007. It is currently the only fund in China committed to investment
in Africa. The Bank solely funded Phases | and Il of the fund's capital,
in total amount of USD 3.0 billion. In 2013, the CAD Fund, with an
increase of USD 344 million in investment, continued to play a role
in guiding and assisting Chinese companies for investment in Africa,
leading to an estimated USD 1.6 billion in investment from Chinese
enterprises into Africa. In 2013, it agreed to invest USD 2.83 billion in
75 projects, potentially attracting USD 15 billion investment to Africa. It
continued to make contributions to the development of African countries
in agriculture, manufacturing, infrastructure, cultural industry and other
fields. CAD Fund, as the manager of China-Portugal Development Fund,
contributed to the economic and trade cooperation between China and
the Portuguese spoken countries.
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Village banks are an important window in the implementation of an
inclusive rural China financial system, and play an important role in the
development of the rural economy, narrowing the gap between urban
and rural areas, increasing farmers' income, and supporting SMEs.
In 2013, the village banks continued to enhance service quality and
management capabilities, strengthen risk prevention and fulfill more
social responsibilities, all the while their operating performance was
climbing steadily. As of the end of 2013, the Bank had a controlling
interest in 13 village banks and a non-controlling interest in two others.
Total assets of these village banks reached RMB 11.97 billion, which
included RMB 6.09 billion in loans. Out of the total loan portfolio, RMB
4.12 billion was agriculture-related and RMB 4.26 billion was lent
to microbusinesses, with a NPL ratio of 0.28%. These village banks
generated RMB 240 million in total net income, benefiting 29,000
farming households. They played a critical role in poverty alleviation,

bringing vitality to the rural economy and effectively improving the local
access to finance.
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HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT
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Staffing and Personnel
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In 2013, the Bank implemented the strategy of reinvigorating CDB
through new human resources, improved its staff selection process
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through a number of innovative measures and continued to break up
bottlenecks and meet the needs of its various businesses. A total of 692
new employees were recruited, including 204 with overseas experience
who would help boosted the development of CDB's international
business. CDB's HR management also improved its long-term incentive
and discipline systems, and enhanced the role of performance
evaluations in its business development. The Bank continued to
expand its operational and physical presence: this was marked by the
establishment of two sub-branches, in Yili of Xinjiang and Sanya of
Hainan, also an overseas representative office in Rio de Janeiro. The
CBRC and the pertinent Venezuelan regulator have also approved the
establishment of an office in Caracas.
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In 2013, the Bank continuously improved its science-based program of
education and training, conducting both theoretical and practical on-
the-job skills training, as most appropriate and effective for different
staff categories. It offered more online training resources, and promoted
the construction of an intranet-based training platform. The Bank
strengthened cooperation with relevant domestic and foreign institutions
for enhanced training, and carried out executive-level training to promote
professionalism consistent with international best practices. A dual review
system, reflecting the value of training programs as well as their costs,
was established to enhance the effectiveness of training evaluation.
In 2013, the Bank conducted 74 workshops, both domestically and
internationally, as well as 47,177 person-days of in-class training and
22,196 person-days of online training.

The Bank continued to provide training programs to officials from
border provinces and Old Revolutionary Base Areas in 2013.
These programs have proven to be an effective way to promote
local development, as the training participants obtained a better
understanding of China's macroeconomic and financial policies, which
in turn helped them to avail themselves of necessary knowledge to
grow their businesses and economies through "face-to-face lecture +

discussion + research" training. By the end of 2013, a total of 698 local
government (county level or above) officials had benefited from these
training programs. They were from 16 provinces such as Xinjiang, Tibet
autonomous region and Southern Jiangxi.

IT GOVERNANCE AND SYSTEM ENHANCEMENT
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In 2013, the Bank introduced a new information framework and structure
with the establishment of a new IT governance system and application
management system. In addition, it promoted the comprehensive bond
system Phase |, the comprehensive credit system Phase Il and data
storage system Phase II. The Bank also developed a new corporate
customer website, a 95593 call center, automated international
settlement and foreign trade finance system for the Hong Kong branch,
along with a centralized report submission and unified monitoring system
for rural banks. Tier-2 branches completed IT infrastructure as required
for the new Yili and Sanya branches. Also, the Bank improved its data
management system, with more channels and standards of sales
indicators, so that IT applications and services might better support
report submission and the Bank’s decision making processes. The
Bank continued to promote its IT infrastructure construction, building an
intra-city disaster recovery center in Huairou District and data center on
Beijing's Chang'an Avenue to improve the deployment of a bank-wide
network and servers and strengthen the operation and maintenance of
the automatic monitoring system. Through risk and information checks,
the Bank improved its technology-based risk and information security
monitoring capabilities throughout the entire business operations.
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In 2013, adhering to its operational philosophy of 'in service of national
strategy, effective risk management, and reasonable profitability", the Bank
further improved its overall risk management system, and established key
risk control mechanisms, including a key client list with individualized, pre-
formulated risk prevention and management plans. In addition, the Bank
promoted a risk prevention culture advocating "accountability for all" to
establish mechanisms that would include clarification, ownership, exemption
and dereliction of responsibility. The Bank constructed a risk management
structure tailored to conglomerate corporate clients to identify, classify and
assign risk management responsibilities to various competent teams in order
to achieve dynamic monitoring. Furthermore, the Bank assisted its branches
and subsidiaries in achieving sustainable development through efficient
risk management. This was achieved through performance assessment
embedded in operational management and standard operational processes.
Hence, the risk management platform and 13 sub-systems were introduced
to support risk management and maintain all monitoring indicators in line
with its plan. The system continued to be improved during the year in order
to achieve superior management performance. As of the end of 2013, the
Bank's total non-performing loans amounted to RMB 34.58 billion, with
an NPL ratio of 0.48%, which had remained at a level of below 1% for 35
consecutive quarters.
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Credit risk is the risk of loss in the event that a borrower or counterparty does

not meet its obligations in accordance with original contractual terms. By
virtue of its own unique business model, the Bank has developed a set of
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practical and effective risk management processes focusing on medium- to
long-term credit risk.

In 2013, the Bank continued to improve its credit risk management systems,
policies and procedures in line with its business development strategy, asset
structure and risk characteristics, particularly to improve risk management
capabilities concerning the Bank's core businesses. Furthermore, the Bank
continued to refine its risk measurement systems, including its credit rating
model regarding governments and guarantee corporations, as well as its
Loss Given Default (LGD) model, in support of its medium- to long-term
lending and grass-roots financing services. Through synergy between the
head office and branches, the Bank maintained a day-to-day review and
monitoring routine on credit rating issues, focusing on prevention of systemic
industry risks, local government debt risks involving local government
financing vehicles, international business risks, and grass-roots financing
risks. The Bank also conducted case studies and analysis in order to have
risk management embedded into all of the Bank's business processes as
guidance and support for the Bank's business operation and development.
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Credit Risk Classification and Measurement
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According to the regulatory requirements as stipulated in the "Guidelines on
Risk-Based Loan Classification" issued by the CBRC and the level of risk, the
Bank classifies its credit assets into five categories: pass, special mention,
sub-standard, doubtful and loss, of which the latter three categories, namely
sub-standard, doubtful and loss, are regarded as non-performing loans.
The Bank applies a risk-based asset quality assessment approach, using
established definitions, credit ratings, and situational judgement in line with
relevant standards.

As an effort to further refine its management of credit assets, the Bank
has established its credit rating system pursuant to the CBRC guidance
on internal rating-based system while catering to the Bank's distinctive
business structure. The system is a two-dimension scheme, featuring
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rating methodologies, policies, procedures, management systems, data
collection and IT support, including calculations of probability of default (PD)
based on customer rating and LGD by transaction. Meanwhile, the Bank
has maintained credit rating standards for national, sovereign and local
governments, as well as for local areas and industries to ensure a realistic
and pragmatic rating practice.

Through the development of a credit rating model for projects in the electric,
road and utility sectors, the Bank has established a quantified modeling
system, along with internal rating procedures, policies and IT systems to
achieve the computerization of modeling and processes.

In 2013, the Bank carried out comprehensive evaluation and optimization
of its government credit rating model to further improve its rating accuracy
for various levels of local governments. This strengthened the Bank's risk
management and better supported the development of urbanization.
In addition, it improved the LGD model, resulting in more accurate
quantification of risk measurement and ensuing amelioration.
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Credit Risk Management and Policy
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The Bank controls the limits and concentration of risks across its credit
portfolio by using lines of credit and upper limits to regulate exposures to
single/conglomerate corporate clients and foreign countries. It allocates
funds across industries and geographies, and monitors credit levels
routinely against risk issues. In 2013, the Bank introduced a client list of
large exposures or high risks, with contingency plans formulated focusing
on risk analysis and prevention. In addition, CDB strengthened its account
management of conglomerate clients through conscious identification and
classification. Furthermore, it established a dynamic industry-risk monitoring
mechanism with early warning triggers, in order to better track systematic
risk in over-capacity industries and industries subject to restructuring, such

as solar panel/photovoltaic manufacturing, shipbuilding, steelmaking, coal-
related industries.
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Market risk is the risk of loss to a bank's on- and off-balance sheet
businesses caused by unfavorable changes in the prices of financial
instruments, principally through changes in interest rates, foreign exchange
rates and prices of stocks and commodities. Market risks faced by the Bank
mainly include interest rate risk and foreign exchange rate risk in its banking
and trading books, and liquidity risk arising from both its on- and off-balance
sheet assets.

In 2013, the Bank had its banking and trading books separate according
to CBRC requirements and applied corresponding methods of market risk
identification, measurement, monitoring and control. The Bank also continued
to improve its market risk management system, the Summit trading system.
In addition, the Bank established an improved market risk management
system, focusing on Value at Risk (VaR) and sensitivity analysis, and carried
out stress testing, back-testing with tools such as risk limits in tracking the
market, applying corresponding resolutions as appropriate.
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Interest rate risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in the level of interest
rates or changes in the shape of yield curves that could adversely affect
the market value of financial instruments or future earnings of a bank. The
impact that a change in interest rates might have on the Bank's operations
is primarily assessed from both revenue and economic value perspectives,
using a number of methods, including analyses on interest rate re-pricing
gap, duration and basis point value and a net interest income simulation.
Interest rate risk in the banking book is managed and mitigated through
adjustment of asset and liability structure and the use of derivative products.
The management and control of interest rate risk in the trading book is
achieved through analyzing interest rate limit, VaR measurement, sensitivity,
exposure by currency, mark-to-market and profit/loss positions.

In 2013, facing the competition of market-oriented interest rates reform,
the Bank proactively carried out relevant research on internal interest rates
pricing management to improve its risk pricing and comprehensive pricing
capabilities, and cooperated with the PBoC to establish self-regulating
mechanisms. The Bank became one of the first ten core members of PBoC's
efforts in this regard.
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Forex Risk
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Foreign exchange rate risk (forex risk) is the risk of loss arising from the
fluctuation of foreign exchange rates. The Bank manages its forex risk
primarily by analyzing foreign exchange exposure and exchange rate
sensitivity, Earnings at Risk (EaR) and VaR, as well as by rebalancing its
asset and liability structure and using hedging tools.
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Liquidity Risk
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Liquidity risk is the risk that a bank is unable to fund its current obligations
and operations in the most cost-efficient manner, regardless of its solvency.
The main objective of the Bank's liquidity risk management is to control
asset-liability maturity mismatch and maintain sufficient cash flow. In order to
mitigate liquidity risk, the Bank has established a set of liquidity management
policies and models, including periodic cash flow projections, stress tests
and contingent funding mechanisms.

As approved by pertinent authorities under the State Council, the credit
rating policy regarding CDB-issued bonds has been extended till the end
of 2015, which allows the Bank to finance through bond issuance with the
same credit rating as the nation's sovereign credit rating. Furthermore, CDB
has continuously maintained an adequate level of liquidity reserves suitable
to its balance sheet structure. In addition, these reserves are regularly
reassessed, properly classified and maintained based on the Bank's liquidity
and profitability, making sure the Bank is funded in a cost-efficient manner.

In 2013, the Bank established a bank-wide coordinated mechanism, improved
the model of reserves, and launched a fully-loaded liquidity management
system that analyzes both on-balance and off-balance businesses in order to
further promote its management efficiency.
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Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from failed internal procedures, staff
and IT systems, and external events.

In 2013, the Bank enhanced its inspection on IT system risk and carried
out four separate assessments or investigations, including areas of IT
infrastructure construction, network operation and maintenance, trading
systems, business systems and human errors, to further optimize the
Bank's systems. Also, the Bank improved its management standards and
established case control and prevention policies and systems, maintaining
its "zero case" record for yet another year. The Bank continued to strengthen
its legal risk management, using legal instruments to control risks, through
accurate understanding of applicable laws and regulations, the involvement
of legal personnel at the origination stage of transactions, and embedding
legal assistance throughout the Bank's business processes, all of which
contributed to better capabilities to prevent, respond and mitigate legal risks.
In addition, the Bank further studied international rules and regulations and
the legal environments of countries in which it operates, in order to better
prevent risks in its international business operations.
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Compliance risk is the current and prospective risk to earnings or capital
arising from violations of or non-conformance with laws, rules, regulations,
prescribed practices, internal policies and procedures or ethical standards,
which risk exposes the Bank to regulatory fines and penalties, material
financial losses and diminished reputation, amongst other potential
damages.

In 2013, the Bank continued to improve its compliance and internal control
systems, with stronger emphasis on regulatory examinations and corrective
actions. The Bank successfully cooperated with regulators in the examination
and offsite assessment of its overseas businesses. Furthermore, it
conducted a bank-wide self-appraisal in the prevention and control of
operational risks followed by effective interviews with regulators. The Bank
enhanced its compliance capabilities through internal compliance reviews,
control systems in its anti-money laundering activities and management
mechanisms regarding related party transactions.
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In 2013, the Bank remained committed to its mission of "strengthening
national competitiveness and improving living standards of its people"
consistent with the principles of sustainable development. It worked to
achieve its targeted goals in promoting China's economic and social
development, focusing on serving the national strategies, providing
financing opportunities to all, offering long-term, large-amount and stable
financial support whilst transforming weak areas of the economy into
sustainable businesses.

The Bank endeavored to deliver on economic, social and environmental
commitments, further revising and improving its social responsibility plan
and social responsibility indicators, adding further social responsibilities
and sustainable development measures into its development strategy,
business procedures and internal controls. The Bank aimed at balancing
economic development, social development and environmental
protection, towards the end of supporting nationwide sustainable
development as well.

From 2007 to 2011, the Bank annually released the China Development
Bank Corporate Social Responsibility Report (CSR Report), which was
acclaimed by all stakeholders and the society at large. From 2012
forward, adhering to the social responsibility objective of sustainable
development, and following international practices, the Bank had
begun to release its Sustainability Report. In 2013, the Bank proactively
participated in activities such as the 2013 UN-Global Compact CEO
Study on Sustainability 2013 and UNEP FI Global Roundtable to better
fulfil its international social responsibilities. The Bank also joined the
"Chinese Business Community Advocates of Climate Change" and
continued to improve its standing as a model of corporate social
responsibility and sustainable development advocator among its peers
of the financial services industry.

The Bank will release its 2013 Sustainability Report to disclose its
achievements in social responsibility and sustainable development in
due course this financial year.

SBEFRR ARTSFRER"
People's Somal Responsibility Award (8th consecutive year)

PERTIRAN S ZESRNN

FERITIH S RERERESRMER

Most Responsible Financial Institution in China & Best Green Financing Award

BEEREW
Most Responsible Companies

FERE TR L IRTT

Best Bank for Supporting New Urbanization
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(1) BB MHRAT S BRNUAANETT B EERFITALPRANSMA THUESRE™ HEEIHIRAMNBERIER T IR,
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8. AMEFIEI
(1) BRSNS T

bi Sz T
2013412831 2012412831 2013412831 20124£12H31H
— BPEREK 7,058,003 6,329,935 7,044,535 6,320,113
- MAHENBGER 69,900 56,488
- Hfth 20,378 31,155
&it 7,148,281 6,417,578 7,044,535 6,320,113
B ORI B
HA . BOUHE (14,475) (8,674) (14,264) (8,470)
HETHE (203,838) (172,181) (202,819) (171,553)
(218,313) (180,855) (217,083) (180,023)
BRI GTR R EE 6,929,968 6,236,723 6,827,452 6,140,090
Hep . AERRY ARG 7S FE 5 R R K T AR 5T 14,924 20,571
(2) ZHESHANBTIRKESR
&R 20134 20124
IR, HETFHE &it I, HEF &it
FHIRT 8,674 172,181 180,855 9,204 113,686 122,890
% ($:[8]) /12BN 6,076 32,853 38,929 (278) 58,548 58,270
REFHEN - 4 4 1 6 7
%38 (104) - (104) (179) - (179)
BN 1 - 1
RPN E L F S5 m % E (117) - (117) (121) - (121)
SNHITEZER (55) (1,200) (1,255) 47 (59) (12)
FERRE 14,475 203,838 218,313 8,674 172,181 180,855
pi 20134 20124
ETRTA, HEFHE &it T, AEFY &it
FHIRE 8,470 171,553 180,023 9,024 113,094 122,118
% ($:[8]) /12BN 5,965 32,465 38,430 (301) 58,519 58,218
%58 = = > (179 - (179)
LA N 1 - 1 - - -
I MNE L FSE D (117 - (117) (121) - (121)
SN EZER (55) (1,199) (1,254) 47 (60) (13)

FRREN 14,264 202,819 217,083 8,470 171,553 180,023
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8. RHSFFER — &

(3) EHASTRANEKI RN T :

ZAEH iEiEA
IMNAMA INMAEIE 1Z=345 SFEME &it
20134£12831H
ERGEK 719 96 254 13 1,082
RIEGERK 1,118 528 80 1,877 3,603
MHFELRA TR
— HEHRTEEK 3,279 375 438 933 5,025
— FBHRTERK 3,209 749 226 1,307 5,491
&it 8,325 1,748 998 4130 15,201
20124E12H31H
ERREHR 672 8 263 73 1,016
RIEEERR 45 43 383 1,023 1,494
B LR BE R
— AR 487 29 1,367 268 2151
— FHRTEEK 493 104 1,593 337 2,527
ait 1,697 184 3,606 1,701 7,188
T 161HA
IMNARA MAEIE 1Z34F SEME &it
20134£12H31H
(Bl eN 682 7 254 13 956
RIEEERR 1,117 527 77 1,876 3,597
HHFELRH BE3K
— HEIRTERK 2,297 97 83 932 3,409
— FHRR 3,209 749 226 1,307 5,491
&it 7,305 1,380 640 4,128 13,453
20124£12831H
ERGEK 672 8 263 73 1,016
RIEGERK 44 40 382 1,023 1,489
BRI TR
— AR 74 20 1,132 163 1,389
— FHGR 493 104 1,593 337 2,527
&it 1,283 172 3,370 1,596 6,421
MR FHRASSHF LB, MIZERE DL DBEATER. T U0 SR ERNERMER, WRBOMEAGTEE, WIZEREBE
9. TIHHERRAES
¥iS T
2013412H31H 20124128315 2013412831F 20124£12H31H
At 55
BURF BOFEBUFH A s 95,629 80,985 95,504 80,956
SR G 7,235 2,849 7,220 2,781
YA 33,794 27,059 23,367 19,646
Hith 272 454 - -
/Nt 136,930 111,347 126,181 103,383
NETH 10,412 10,591 - -
BEeR% B} 17 B 17
&it 147,342 121,955 126,181 103,400
F20135F12A31H ., AKARATIHEEESRE = EIHRNREAERDAAART179.37Z T EART1.59ZT (01246128318 -

ARM167.95(ZTTRART1.59(Z7T).
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10. FHFHEFHA

BUFF R AEBUFHAS R 1,486
NERFE 3,808 3,698
&it 5,384 3,698

1. BRI 5

&R AT
o 00ERASE 0RFI2ANE 0FRANA 012612808
R U T BUER R I - 1,507 - 1,507
SRIAD RS 3,060 3,060 3,060 3,060
AEfEE 1,005 2,549 722 2,298
FERE IS 1,103 703 908 508
TR = g K HoAth 7,535 2,945 - -
&it 12,703 10,764 4,690 7,373
L R R R @11) (170) (72) (70)
R R AR R K E T E 12,492 10,594 4,618 7,303
12, KHEARRIIE 35
R EE ] AT
o cFURASIA 0FRANE 21FZANA 012F12A3E
FAT ) - - 87,325 87,253
KEMSERLRE @) 1,597 1,353 101 89
H AR @) 5,752 5,761 13 13
&it 7,349 7,114 87,439 87,355
R KRR A EAEE (927) (927) (18,966) (18,966)
KEARRANIR 2 % 80 6,422 6,187 68,473 68,389
(1) FoH
o EuASIE 202F1ANE
EF ¢rmERITEAT 47,625 47,625
TELERHRA S 24,000 24,000
EFESHERRTAS 7974 7974
ERSRHEERRAS 6,997 6,997
AERTT 729 657
BYMRNARRAERIEAT 0 -
&it 87,325 87,253
B KERRE AU TR B & (18,953) (18,953)
FAEIR A A 68,372 68,300

() ATEEFARNBRAER BRI,
(i) AT T A ERARHERMAT

FHIHRE 68,300 55,675
N 72 12,625
FRRA 68,372 68,300
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SRR

I\ MERFREZTEMHE -5
12, KEBRRARIR S — &

(2) REMAERIERE

R AT
KEMEESWER 1,597 1,353 101 89
B KERRAUE R E A&
EEMEEMWIRTSH 1,597 1,353 101 89

() ARATBHEMNSE LW REAESIIRMOT .

REESHEAFLBRAE R E KB T REEE =X AR™ 3000  20%[E)iERE 20%
ERFSRERARAERRELT EESPN T KRAEEREN ARM 1250  40%|aiEHE 40%
TR RURBRA S REAK  HBTHE TSRS ES 34 25%ElERH 25%
S imns = ENXNES H.HEF o N
FRIERIEAEIEGRA T LIESpN P AR 200  35%[EERH 35%
R ELRATAERITERTE AT AR E KB RET AR™T 200 35%HEIEFH 35%

(i) FEARATHRENSELWRATHERMAT

AEH b
FHRE 1,353 3,930 89 70
i 244 407 12 21
badd = (2,984) > @)
FEREH 1,597 1,353 101 89

(3) Efhigiug®

AEH b
HARRAGE R 5,752 5761 13 13
B KRR BB A& (927) (927) (13) (13)
HABAIE TR AN 4825 4,834

() AEARARTHMABEIUEREHEROT .

&R AT
FEXRE 4834 5,633 - 10
#n - 158 s
D ©) (957) = (10)

FRRA 4,825 4834
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13. BB &
A EEH]
EEEGY DI ERgE  YTREIRE EEIR ait
FRE
201341818 7,679 1,160 298 36,024 7,354 52,515
ARELEIN 1,433 405 45 7,587 3,809 13,279
AFEARIREN/ ($H) 8,506 - - - (8,506)
RER DR (1) @1 @1 (7,211) @) (7,340)
2013412315 17,607 1,474 322 36,400 2,651 58,454
KitirIA
201341 B1H (1,165) (516) 1) (4,102) - (5,894)
RETHRE (475) (203) (39) (1,855) - 2,572)
KERBDE 2 26 11 1,575 - 1,614
20134E12 531 H (1,638) (693) (139) (4,382) - (6,852)
e 1
2013F1/81H 6,514 644 187 31,922 7,354 46,621
20134E12 8315 15,969 781 183 32,018 2,651 51,602
AT
BEEH DRIEE TR & EETRE &it
R
201341 81H 7112 984 246 7,343 15,685
AN 1,376 37 38 3,759 5,544
REARTREN/ (BH) 8,506 - - (8,506)
RERBDE (11 (35) ) ®) (60)
20134123315 16,983 1,320 275 2,591 21,169
FitifiA
201341810 (1,064) (435) (90) - (1,589)
RETHEM (442) (177) 32) - (651)
RERDER 2 14 7 - 23
2013£E12831H (1,504) (598) (115) - (2,217)
HER
201341818 6,048 549 156 7,343 14,096
20134128311 15,479 722 160 2,591 18,952

F2013F12A 318120125 12A 31 H , AEFA R ATEE A = H A FAEEA R M E AEANE EE >,
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14. TREF

AEH
o e beeRR e &t
FE
2013¢E1A18 526 1,927 107 2,560
AN 128 508 4 640
REFDE > - =
2013#E12H31H 654 2,435 111 3,200
RitHs
20131 A18 (143) (130) (18) (291)
ARETTRE (59) 1) @ (112)
REFDER -
201346128311 (202) (181) (20) (403)
HE
201351 H1H 383 1,797 89 2,269
20134E12831H 452 2,254 91 2,797
TR PESHER (FF) 1-10 31-47 1-10
by
o e beeRR e &t
FiE
2013418117 491 1,421 101 2,013
AL 102 508 2 612
REFDER =
201342128315 593 1,929 103 2,625
RitHiH
2013418117 (130) (98) (18) (246)
RETHRE (59) @) ) (95)
REFDER =
20134£12831H (183) (139) (19) B41)
AR
201341811 361 1,323 83 1,767
20134128315 410 1,790 84 2,284
FISRESHERR (FF) 1-10 31-46 1-10
15. @&

EH
o [weARA] AR
HMEFESHBRAE] 629 629
HIERSREFHRAS 560 560
Hits 57 59
&t 1,246 1,248

2013 AR AKERET A DT RRAS R RELEST 7 RENK, REXAFEFERE.
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16. BIEFTEHRT R A

T SRR MHE

REH T
20134£12831F 20124£12H31H 2013412831F 20124E12H31H
BERBRE~ 40,485 32,946 41122 33,398
BIEFTEFAGR (109) (178)
P 40,376 32,768 41,122 33,398
(1) BEFEHNTHBERNT:
AEHF T
20134 20124 20134 20124
FEXRE 32,768 18,949 33,398 18,793
TEAN R 7,194 14,171 7,087 14,501
PN ERE 414 (351) 637 104
FMF AT (1)
FERRA 40,376 32,768 41,122 33,398
(2) BEFEHE=RAGREARTIB IR T:
AL 2013412 831H 20124612 831H
RN/ (RN ) ERTEE R BEMEBHES/ (AR Wi/ (AR ZRitER BERSHAT/ (iR
BRIEFTISHE R~
BHRREES 143,046 35,761 113,443 28,361
Tt ESMATRELES 17,932 4,483 16,795 4,198
Tt iR 3,771 943 3,355 839
Hth R = mEAE 1,558 389 2,222 556
Hth 723 176 1,051 261
MARMETEEETFITA
AR LBAT AR MEEH R (1.237) eed (657)
T ESRMEB S AAMEED (122) (30) (2,447) 612)
&it 161,959 40,485 131,792 32,946
BRIEFTERL SR
THEESRASAANET 380 95
MARMETRBEEZFITA
LIRS MSBAT AR NMEED (%6) 4) (927) (232)
Hith (659) (85) (324) (41)
&it (755) (109) (871) (178)
1T 2013412831H 2012412831
FHRAN/ (RN ERTEER  BEATERESE/ (LfR) RN/ (AR ZREER BERSHRES/ (AR
BRI FTSRL R
RERBEES 142,562 35,641 112,980 28,245
KEBRAR R RBEES 18,966 4741 18,966 4741
it 3,771 943 3,355 839
THEESRAFAANETH 3,239 810 691 173
HEEE SRR REES 154 38 159 39
Hth B = mEEE 72 18 70 18
MARMETEEETFITA
LR M ERAT AR EET (.275) (1.969) 2827) (657)
&it 164,489 41,122 133,594 33,398
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17. Bt~

A EEH T
2013412H31H 20124128315 2013412831F 20124£12H31H

T FRER &K 5,062 5,603 - -
TR LR BRI 2215 5139 1,071 4,533
ERAFUEFURESNE = 703 703 508 508
AR PEEENS 361 234 - -
TR B AR FE 3K 263 10 - 57
& lcd 5 g 157 162 - -
KEIFREZE 124 126 33 23
HERBFIRANBGK 5 21,379 5 21,379
Hith 2215 2,477 899 406
ait 11,105 35,833 2,516 26,906
B R R EEE (78) (139) (20) (20)
Hth R =85 11,027 35,694 2,496 26,886
18. BFEREES
& 20134

FEVH AFEHRE/ R ANERN/EHE LELE) FERHY
RILRFRFEIR 180,855 38,929 (216) (1,255) 218,313
T E SR~ 16,795 1,142 - 17,937
KHARAR 927 - 927
R BRI 170 43 - @ 211
R F R 142 - 142
Hithdz = 139 45 (106) 78
&it 198,886 40,301 (322) (1,257) 237,608
b 201345

EMH AEHR/EE REEN/EHE LELE) FERHY
B GERR AR 180,023 38,430 (116) (1,254) 217,083
KEIR AR 7 18,966 - - - 18,966
THEE ST~ 159 - - - 159
IS RIS S 70 4 - @) 72
Heth = 20 - - 20
&it 199,238 38,434 (116) (1,256) 236,300
19. Bl & HAth & B TEREIR

¥iS AT
20134E12831H 20124£12H31H  2013412H31H 20124:12H31H

BEAHEAMEBRT 217,238 275,841 217,374 276,416
BAIERTERIA 102,198 105,755 102,874 106,277
BN MRS T 91,484 87,697 91,484 87,697
&it 410,920 469,293 411,732 470,390
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20. [ BATAIELfth & RAAAGMETR

AEH 4T
ERHAMRTRIERITERIIGERK 421575 399,551 320,300 307,803
BN RITRIERITERALIGEK 21,524 13,765 4979 5219
BIMRITER-LAER 9,472 10,492 9,472 10,492
SNEBUFER 2,538 2,837 2,538 2,837
&it 455,109 426,645 337,289 326,351
21 IRNESE
AER Fix
FESNEABRITIRN 33,311 20,058 33,311 20,058
EREARITIRA 2,305 10,722 2,305 10,222
&it 35,616 30,780 35,616 30,280

22, EHEME R~

AER Fix
i 17,760 5,620 9,700 -
B AR R R 7,330 11,448 - -
&it 25,090 17,068 9,700 -
23. R 7FEr
AER &7
W EERTFRR 491,836 455,765 489,368 456,816
1 EEATFRR 80,891 57,946 82,702 57,790
W ARIES TR 8,895 5,637 8,619 5,430
BEARTRIIHILERFE 102,560 89,016 102,560 89,016
&t 684,182 608,364 683,249 609,052

24, RIZRLER

AER AT
SR 25,654 26,834 25,254 26,549
=NZEy 3yl 7,920 7,493 7,870 7,455
Hith 190 254 189 248
&it 33,764 34,581 33,313 34,252

25. FfHFR

FEH 1T
o OI3FI2A3NA 012612A3H  DBFRANA 2012612838
REFIE 97,108 85,400 97,091 85,403
Ep7CAINsY 2,356 2795 1,611 2,061
B X E fth SR ADFFRGR A 2 1,801 2451 1,801 2,451
DiecZ el 1,939 1,312 1,923 1,299
SEH E SRR TR 83 217 1 -
WAREFIE 213 160 213 160
Hfth 15 9 - -

&it 103,515 92,344 102,640 91,374
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26. Fuit faf

AEH AT
20134212831 20124£12H31H 2013412831 20124£12H31H
& ABRTNT i 2,564 2,296 2,889 2,527
ERPFFRREIMESIRIE 882 812 882 812
&it 3,446 3,108 3,771 3,339
27. RrfHES
Fi T
2013412H31F 2012412831 2013412831 2012412H31H
SRR (1 5,721,077 5,182,608 5,712,537 5,173,641
RAPRB RS (2) 119,513 119,589 119,513 119,589
&it 5,840,590 5,302,197 5,832,050 5,293,230
(1) RftErEE
20134£12831H
£1TH E|HAH FIZEX &% RER
BATHETART SRS 2001-2013 2014-2063 2.65-6.05 5,687,073
ERERXTART&RGRS 2012-2013 2015-2032 2.69-4.50 10,481
BEATSHETIND SRES 2013 2018 1.49 5,253
BN EITINT @RS 2004-2005 2014-2015 4.75-5.00 9,730
KTRITRFELT 5,712,537
FATKRITNETEE 2012 2017-2022 2.00-3.25 9,050
B FRABFERTRITNGRS (510)
RNEF R TR R 5,721,077
20124£12831H
£1TH EIHAH FIZE X &% RER
BATHEITARTSEGS 2001-2012 2013-2062 2.65-5.50 5,148,238
ERETARTERES 2010-2012 2013-2032 2.70-4.30 10,986
RBAWHETINT GRS 2006-2010 2013 1.09-1.63 4,404
BINTIH R FTINT SRR 2004-2005 2014-2015 4.75-5.00 10,013
RTRTRFET 5,173,641
FABRITHETEE 2012 2017-2022 2.00-3.25 9,337
B FRABFHERTRITNGS (370)
AEARTHREEM 5,182,608

F20135F12A31H, ATERAEZTHARTmMAFHEREAESIETAART650.00127T(2012F12A318  ARM989.20
L) erfs, ZERFHNEATRSHEALGRSEIHBNEE AHBEEZHRHENER. NRTHFHFFAENCEERLE
NIEREERR, ATUFABIEHZARSHENFE, rEEMESYTRIIEEEK.

F20135F 128318, ATEREANLRTHARTSMASFTEEAEESTAIT AART612.00127T(2012F12A318 « ART912.00
L) MERRE, XEREHE AFGRSFE ALEAE B AR HHE NS B RERAREEER VIR ERENE
FABEIERNESEHERNETEREHA.
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27. FifitE% - &

(2) RS

RERRAFAT 20134£12831H
BREITARTRSE 2004-2012 2019-2062 3.82-6.05 119,513
2012412A831H
BERNEFTARTRS 2004-2012 2019-2062 3.82-6.05 119,589
AITETHREEEYRA AFATRTBRENER., AAEBREHBERTRTERENF, ShENZEmfESIAREER
BKFE.

28. Hfithfafk

ZEH T
ERM B F RN HMES 6,447 4,681 6,447 4,681
ARRIES 3,967 2,144 -
NAARRER 1,664 5,842 -
RIPLSESHK 1,212 850 -
TR B TR 808 1,324 - -
ERAFEHURES NG 703 703 508 508
TR F L RAE 665 689 665 689
REEBUWAS 147 269 147 269
Hith 6,131 6,109 3,051 1,088
&it 21,744 22,611 10,818 7,235

‘%
el

F e A R E M EED 153,908
PRSI A FRTEAT 146,092
SEMSREESESRS 6,711
&it 306,711

30. /AR

EH 20134 20124

BEA SN 3,355 - - 3,355 3,355 - - 3,355
HEHESRAT A ANERN S 1,708 - (1,966) (258) 377 1,331 - 1,708
oIt E SR T A RN ERSHEERZ M (422) 424 - 2 (71) - (351) (422)
HethH AN 28 - - 28 6) 34 - 28
&it 4,669 424 (1,966) 3,127 3,655 1,365 (351) 4,669
AT 20134 20124

A 3,355 - - 3,355 3,355 - - 3,355
EHESRASAANETN S (700) - (2,549)  (3,249) (285) - (415) (700)
THEESRAT A ANERSNIERZ N 173 637 - 810 69 104 - 173

&it 2,828 637 (2,549) 916 3,139 104 (415) 2,828
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3. BRAR
RIFEREOEENE, £TIERRAVSITDEN TRSFIBRIN0%ENEERR AR, ARTEERRARRITTARITRAR
50% A LB, TR, SRFASHAE, ATRBIEEREFARITATRIATHSRABEEATRAEA, HRIERAE, TEF
HEERKARFBDOTRAN2E%. Hh ATERFASHERBEIERAAR,

32. —fRME A&

A EH 4T
20134E12831F 20124£12831H 2013412831 H 20124:12831H
47 (1) 96,460 68,484 96,460 68,484
FATF (2) 1,061 222
ait 97,521 68,706 96,460 68,484

(1) AITEEMBE SR b EESTHREERNE) (W£[2012]205)WHNE . ARERE S REESHEM L Ry —RREEZ ARSRIMRTERIRFIBER
W7 AR M BT R R L. R E— RN A B R MR TR R = FE R RFA1.5% . o] A EEI AL, RN L REFBIL5E.

@ HAEXEENE AKETARERDERINEFRR—ESTIEN RN S,

33. RAELFIE

A EEH T

20134 20124 20134 20124

FYRE 84,479 61,636 77,146 57,152
IR AR5 FE 79,584 62,888 75,243 59,824
W IRREEATR (13,506) (10,375) (13,506) (10,375)
RE—R XA (28,815) (18,635) (27,976) (18,473)
BRI E (14,956) (11,035) (14,956) (10,982)
FERRH 106,786 84,479 95,951 77,146

(1) 20134 I ER
AIT2013EEAFAARM752.43 {2t h B REBGAERAANRESARM7524 27T, REGEERBEAREF. 2013EFEH
EAREFRRASHAE,

(2) 20124 IR
2013F10A31H IR ASHERTT2012FE EF AN E RN T -

() WAEFT2012FE4FEARMTE98.24(Z T HEE, REVAZERR ATREARM0.82127T, REERR A AREARM59.82{27T.
Fo0126 12831 B . ERMEEREATREEITARE A,
(i) BER—MAR A E AR T279.761Z7T.
(ii) SRR E IS RFIAR T 149.56/25T.
(3) Ei2013512 31 Bk HEANE P AL FA I BMATEZEN RS ARETITART?. 72125 (201241231 5. ART5.811Z5T).
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34. FIRFIIAN

A EEH AT
20134 20124 20134 20124
EISUON
RIS 397,642 363,157 389,561 356,572
HHRERENRESRR ™ 15,682 7,523 15,656 7,462
B RARTT R AR E LRI 11,876 12,561 11,341 12,089
FAER R (1) 4913 3,664 4,717 3,565
INF 430,113 386,905 421,275 379,688
FEZH
RiTlRe: (227,798) (203,380) (227,533) (203,394)
[ BUR A1 H th S B a7k (12,086) (10,903) (6,253) (5,137)
Bk R H At SRS FERER I (10,921) (11,991) (10,917) (11,993)
R R (6,818) (5,343) (6,775) (5,313)
Hith (1,018) (878) (452) (307)
Nt (258,641) (232,495) (251,930) (226,144)
ISl ON 171,472 154,410 169,345 153,544
FEWAREIE. ERBEHES A~ F BN 146 136 121 133
(1) GAER FE F RN BIE T E & SRA >~ 158 R HHA R BRI R T SN,
3B, FEHERAERIEN
AREHF AT
20134 20124 20134 20124
FEHERASEN
TR 3,510 2,238 3,503 2,243
Z S EERS 3,274 2,512 2,959 2,396
ERRIERIBRE 3,254 2,057 3,254 2,097
R[5 A4 18 % 1,028 1,295 814 1,168
RIDFLIEFH W FRA 88 77 - -
Hith 1,783 2216 1,434 1,794
N7y 12,937 10,395 11,964 9,698
FERRASSTH
FEHEZH (670) (314) (521) (229)
et (153) (127 (151) (114)
Nt (823) (441) (672) (343)
FHHRAESHFBN 12,114 9,954 11,292 9,355
36. {E U
A& 4T
20134 20124 20134 20124
PTHESRT A 10,051 10,715 10,059 10,715
MAnET 2 BEEEDNIT AL HRENSRE = 2,893 2,721 983 1,881
RN ESRA 1,328 755 79 177
KRR R 146 247 16 13

&it 14,418 14,438 11,137 12,786
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37. ARMEE ARG

.ﬁ.
i
=
E
i

LTESR TR 2,032 (7.615) 1,696 (7,645)
UAAMETEBREEIITASBRENSRE ™ 350 137 (48) (183)
&it 2,382 (7,478) 1,648 (7,828)

38. L

CRBEAITEBUR-MARTE~ENRE. AERABEFHEINCITESR TAXNREXINOL SN XESNCETESR T
B ENE SIS RAKIRED HIIAE RERE R ARNMERHRE F.

39. Hftll SN

FEH AT
[ ON 4,349 3,737 3 3
A2 ON 635 681 294 287
&it 4984 4418 297 290

40. Bl Fi & R it hn

FEH P
B FL 20,242 18,342 20,005 18,183
WP EER 1,418 1,284 1,401 1,273
e =Rl 1,009 916 1,000 910
Hith 163 141 158 138
&it 22,832 20,683 22,564 20,504

M. EREIRSE

AEH Py
RI%EA 4,583 3,960 4,025 3,500
THEER 1,313 1,382 1,173 1,232
FIFHHEZE A 984 662 882 567
FHEHE 730 622 599 540
VEEER 450 436 438 427
ZEik# 438 499 360 427
LTRSS 325 228 167 160
Be 274 206 241 182
Hith 958 1,122 857 994

&it 10,055 9,117 8,742 8,029
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I\ B HRRE R BMEE -4

42. FFERERA

A& pixy
R GERR AR 38,929 58,270 38,430 58,218
TR ESRT = 1,142 - =
RNUFLE 142 - -
NGRS R 43 (103) 4 (120)
Hth# = 45 (92) -
&it 40,301 58,075 38,434 58,098

43. Frf5HisRH

&M &1T
LHAFr SR 33,082 34,460 31,909 33,816
% RS RL 2 F (7,194) (14,171) (7,087) (14,501)
&it 25,888 20,289 24,802 19,315

AEFARKTHRERBASSITHENATROT.

A& Fixy
FATFIE 105,805 83,383 100,065 79,139
WA ER R E TSR % A 26,451 20,846 25016 19,785
FAERAREBEA = £ R (341) (33) -
SRULNLAFLE (1,195) (893) (741) (656)
REGIA ST HRINE I 1 22 RO BL 2 0 202 140 -
RETHRINAY 2R FA R H A YL 520 771 229 547 186
P8R EtH 25,888 20,289 24,822 19,315

b Sl T
TN Il o=

Tt E SRR

— AAMETHITARMLE AR (1,813) 1,512 (2,470) (238)

— BIET AR AL A B X HASE N IR A% ET (115) (179) (79) (177

- EREHHFEHE 414 (351) 637 104
Mt (1,514) 982 1912 (311)
Hp AR - 34 -
SR FRITEEL (289) 14 5 31

&it (1,803) 1,030 (1,907) (280)




102 W&ERRME

I\ MEHREETBMIE -4

45. BEmERITER
(1) BEFEETALEEDNETE

EE P
20134 20124 20134 20124
HFE 79,917 63,094 75,243 59,824
hn: R AER 40,301 58,075 38,434 58,098
PrIRFIRESH 2,942 2,252 882 567
BB ER TR EMKERR =k 2 (177 2 @)
ARMEENIHR S (2,382) 7,478 (1,648) 7,828
FERETEN = ENT SRS 222,628 199,907 222,815 199,829
RRE (1,474) (1,002) 95) (190)
3RS/ TURAY S AR (7,194) (14,171) (7,087) (14,501)
LB M T B I AR (740,937) (1,003,207) (723,494) (953,250)
LE M AT E A N 41,565 294,396 29,577 256,688
ZEENTENNETRES (364,632) (393,355) (365,371) (385,114)
(2) RERAEENWEZIIER
FEH &
20134 20124 20134 20124
Re RN EENYNFERRE 546,029 582,298 524,625 562,485
B MERASENINENRI (582,298) (286,467) (562,485) (271,606)
N& RIMEEMY 4G INET (36,269) 295,831 (37,860) 290,879
Q) FRFHERERTHIAERNEENYEIE:
& P
20134£12H31F 20124E12A31F 20134&12H31F 20124128317
EFNE 20 20 1 1
AR F AT HITE R P SRR TR 42,148 90,585 41,984 90,367
RIGRIEEABE =4 A8:
- INBRESMA~ 330,411 264,465 330,200 264,335
— FHRE LRI 137,079 178,461 116,694 159,249
- FfEHEE 36,010 48,533 35,746 48,533
AR SEREMNE 361 234
&it 546,029 582,298 524,625 562,485




A SRR S

REATERZIAT W S EHITIR -

© BT

BiARS AL EERS L

RIEERS AERSRBRRSF.

FEERTHHRS SNLHHR S FHETHXH REIMNEZRFTERHRAT NHEEHE.

© BRI S ADBEEBAIRALS.

WEIREMHE 103

ZABEEGREATNRTLSES . KTHRFVESEASYSE, AFRRTISERUARARNK. FRRS. RIERS . BiEsS
RITFEHFLSARTVRTLEEIEASKE. Rl

OFiAIES AOEEFERTIHAEVSREAEHRELSE.
O irFHEI%E ADEERBIEFNELLE BE VS RIEHRHFVSE,

AEH

BT BRBUERLE HAElE EHWE AR ait
20134
ST ON 421,757 780 6,868 200 508 430,113
FIEZH (252,053) (328) (5,700) (183) (377) (258,641)
F BN ET 169,704 452 1,168 17 131 171,472
HAp 3N S F BN EE 169,525 433 1,497 17 171,472

43 EBIEIF BN SRR 179 19 (329) 131
FHEERMLFBRN 11,296 528 (75) 470 (105) 12,114
A ggﬁ}%\%ﬁ%&ﬁ 11,128 528 (15) 473 12,114
IEBIEIFEER RAAE BN 168 (60) @) (105)

HAthlg A (10,286) 2,982 4,782 540 268 (1,714)
Bk (70,423) (1,946) (3,386) (437) 71 (76,121)
B SN SR 28 15 10 1 54
F38 25 100,319 2,031 2,499 591 365 105,805
HrIRFNHE 898 28 1,988 28 2942
FAME S H 6,444 301 8,396 47 15,188
A ER K 38,468 1,337 440 56 40,301
20134£12 8311
BAEM™ 8,027,108 74,207 142,379 17,693 (73,434) 8,187,953
B 7,479,774 12,104 130,250 9,424 (5,549) 7,626,003
20134
PSEINTEZE L ON
PERER 141,837 904 1,972 490 145,203
&E 140 29 55 224
HbEREMX 38,676 28 (545) 38,159
&it 180,653 961 1,482 490 183,586
20134128311
ERENFE =B
PERER 22,847 276 7,404 220 30,747
BE 61 59 120
HbERZMX 25,354 25,354
&it 22,908 335 32,758 220 56,221
KHEIRRAR
PERER 101 5,955 6,056
HbEREMX 366 366
&it 101 6,321 6,422




104 WEREME

N STEBHRE — X

AR -4E
SRITIS RIS HEE EHE  AHRIFE &it
20124
IV ON 380,006 468 5,707 178 546 386,905
FEXH (226,218) (a71) (5,569) (108) (429) (232,495)
F RIS 153,788 297 138 70 117 154,410
A 35 F SRS 153,673 291 376 70 - 154,410
I3 EBIEIF BN 115 6 (238) - 117 -
FEBERAEERN 9,365 233 (59) 497 (82) 9,954
Hh RS FEHRRAEABN 9,230 233 ®) 499 - 9,954
IyEBIEF L2k R &SN 135 - (51) @) (82) -
HABBA 4712 1,562 4216 423 (64) 10,849
Bl (88,582) (496) (2,680) (358) 269 (91,847)
ERIBN R L] 4 2 10 1 - 17
FE S 79,287 1,598 1,625 633 240 83,383
HrIRFIRESH 582 31 1,621 18 - 2,252
NS 4,486 12 10,821 31 - 15,350
H P RAER K 58,131 17 125 - (198) 58,075
20124E12 8315
B 7,375,564 65,832 140,824 15,002 (76,983) 7,520,329
BR 6,886,937 6,224 130,837 7,120 (9,375) 7,021,743
20124
PSRN EZ L ON
hERR 154,622 369 399 569 - 155,959
aHE 29 23 143 - - 195
HthEREMHX 8,252 132 (174) - - 8,210
ait 162,903 524 368 569 - 164,364
20124E12 8315
FERER= B
HhEER 20,467 317 4,167 127 - 25,078
& 63 62 - - - 125
HERK X - - 28,469 - - 28,469
ait 20,530 379 32,636 127 - 53,672
KHRAIL R
hEERR 89 5,781 - - - 5,870
aE - 1 - - - 1
HtER KX - 316 - - - 316
ait 89 6,098 - - - 6,187

I FF RN ZFEMERINEER IR 5% RN BB N 5 F 2R BN IR TIN5 F LR RS
ERIA T CRBEEA” TR HEREMBE,



TH5iREMNE 105

T XEAXERRZS

—_

. B
F20135F 128318  BEHE A 4750.18%HIBAR (20124512831 B :50.18%).

REASMEH#THAE LSS T EEREN WY BRI EELAATHMIRLBVBEBLTNER., FA~AGHRRE, 255
BIEERTEILAN T -

EfRER 26,635 20,653
R BOERERIA (& R U F2) B 1,718
FIZEX 8] (%)

EfER 2.38-4.32 2.15-4.48
R BT ER I 3 3
FEWA 706 358
FEHRRALBAN 12 7
B 16 39

2. iC&RTA

LCEASRPERABRFTEASINESATAS, EMEAFELR, EMAELAARTS28209Z7T. LLAEESHRITN, #TkK
IR HR  ANEEMFUMELER. CEASRKRPEBRFRETEN RTINS .

F20135E 128318 ST/ 5455 A1747 63%M AR (201245123 31H . 47.63%).

REASLEAEMTHEELSR S, N—REXSMEAENEM REFFHLERET. TRAFAGERE AREFENLEATIX
IRFFERERLNT

HHESRmA~ 6,993 7,521
FIZ X 8] (%) 314-4.2 3.14-4.2

GISCON 268 271
BRI _ ;

3. SFAANLS
RITRFARFNEFEEE5FARRMIIRMAT

RIMGERRANEER 7,923 6,163
TR AR 5,021 6,497
Bk & E A S FaAAF EGR 1,077 988
R 510 370
PIESRA 390 692
ISZelbst 33 23
FHE LRI 30 33
RAFIE 21 3

Hith = 20 61




106 W&EiRaRME

T XEAXRERLZS — 4
3. 5FRANLS - &

FITAERMETEE 5T ARNKEFSIRMOT .

GISCON
FEZH
FEHERMBERN
FEHRHERMBEIH

20134 201248
325 254
(37) (44)
115 70
(16) (4)

AT E5FREZENZTHIPER—REFWFRMNER L SEFRT. AERARNBZHERFERHEHYSRERNHISIRE.

4. SREMSEARNRZS

F2013F 1231 HR2013FE  AEA EHKEMGERTINXHREDR I HRIHITEK.

T— HEETRAE
1L R

Fo0135F12A318, AKARKTHEES TEEFAEN, ATEERIAHZEFFEFANREFTRERT N RERAR AT

SRAREERRTEERTM.

2. BEMRE

AR 4T
2013412831 2012412831 2013412831 20124E12H31H
BRAIE B
- BHEREH 3,156 3,003
- BEARNT 42,252 28,040
EE R =R
- BitEREY 43 1,036 43 1,023
- EARNT 11,372 20,127 542 1,030
ait 56,823 52,296 585 2,053
3. (ER&IE
P &7
20134E12831H 20124E12831H 2013412831 2012412831
TR 1,917,987 1,948,220 1,917,987 1,948,220
FrHRE 78,361 119,189 93,261 129,889
RITARRILCE 33,010 16,856 32,939 16,669
FrEFIE 18,702 11,889 18,702 11,889
&it 2,048,060 2,096,154 2,062,889 2,106,667
4, SZEMRERIE
ERFRGRRAL ARARKTHINMATHATHENLERESNERNT.
P T
20134£12831F 20124£12H31H 2013412H31F 2012412H31H
— A 513 454 370 376
—EfF 302 277 207 231
—E=4F 165 163 114 17
=FEME 89 265 45 168
&it 1,069 1,159 736 892
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5. mEHMESFiE

WEiREMhE 107

THF AR LE ST T BHEMNR AT ESAERET .

AR AR
6. 1Y

(1) 1EAERIEY A=

THRFRGRERR B AESZE E R~ KENMED T -

P S
AL A AR TR IR

&it

AEH
20134 201248
4,106 4,725
20134128315 20124812319
19,814 6,434
11,703 13,003
31,517 19,437

F20135F 128310, AEFALE BMErE ~RIKENMEN AR T250.9127T (20126128318 : ART170.681Z7T). FIEEM

ST E RS FE R H.
(2) WEEYHELRY

F2013F 12831 B R20125F 128 31H , AEFA LT HEKH BT U EHFRESMIFN RS TIESFRAY.

= KEEE

1. RN
FAERWEEEDERSHEMAR AERELETRET
STIX LSRRG R HASH T RG] BisfikE, K2
R R S OEE, ARV SthA T EmiEE
BRE. FiASENERENRESRBHERGTE,
R TTRER D R B X 55 R0 RFI R0,

REFAFTEURTTRIRHEEFRIINFIRGSEE
A HEASERT PHE—Z P E BRI EH
=, £EBR, PEARRTHAFHESME TR SHEE
I, MEGHNETHE. KEARESSA~NHEES
REBRBRIRETHFMAARFHER T BILRITRE R
RIS RO RERR R & A DUB AN .

ARREERNEFRE, AKARTT —LEANE 2T
AERMTARS. SREHITLH. M MAERERMF R TR
A, AEFARNEEEBURRE 7 1E S AN REME
HIFR, BRI TEMEMNAES R GR LN R FPREH
AITER, RRURBIFD TN . AR5 E EH X
EEBGRMALG, RNIRERRTS . ~RATL, H5IAER
EXEUTHTENGEE, ARHA@KKEESFMNPE2E
A ERRE RE MR R TR,
2. (SRR

FEA AR ERNRERIEE FHRX S FHEARER
FRTRAAKBATRIENEEREONE . EHRNKRZ

AEAVSARNFEENR, BLEERNEANKGSEEZEE
E., EARREESETRRERE R ER LS, MR
REMEMERN RS VS, RIMEMITEGIMEFRER M
ERABRBEAEERANRE.

AEAZRRBESRPHAMITRERBREERES] Ho5%H
VEHeRy TERTRER, SRFATTE BUR. R B2
Bk, TXHRGE. ZERA-SEMTERER. DEERN
FERBARERNE A ERTRIIHEE AR AR RIUR AR A
TS AR, BN, ATRIETFRCERSESE, EFETERIT
B FROTR T BUFTER b IR T U IPRF AP
2013FE, AEAFEAREERNBRERERREETARE,
() ERRBERTE
() RIRGTRANERR
AEAETRESHEN (RRNEDKIESD) EERARE.
ZHERSEUERRDBUATENMAREES . BF. X, X
RTRENRK HRDERR. TEMIRRERNTRBINE A
TR,
o IH . BRARBETERE, RARBEAMREERART
BEIRRS R AURIE.

o XiE REBRABNARNBEERRALS, BHEE—LT
BEX R R M I E .



108 W&EiRaRME

T= NEEE -4
ERRE - 4
() fEARRIITE - 5

2.

(2

—

(1) RGN — 42

o R AERAMEREN LB RRE, TeREHE
BEVBALZETEERRAS, BERITER, t
THESER—EREK.

o T . ERATEEHEERTRAR, BERITIER,
HHEERERBRARK.

MK EXRBTE T RNERR VIS REERER
I RBNRTERE, R G AR EBRY

AR RS D RRTFE R RE . HEAERB
EX. BAFRARERWRANCREASSHRN, 5
AGEEETESTNEAE, FEERYSEE. F
SEE. AUBREFNURRTESERRTENAS
REKFHEN, AEAMERA> RERGHAE
B, EHEAERARE. AEREERTNERSR
BRI RO ERRRE.

(i) EERATE SR TR

ARBGENTFR, FEEPRULRPRRE M
DSNBIF R R WS B AR RE, RATXE
AR HHERIFEAREAS NEN, RETROR
HUNHARAEER, ARARIELBIRNREA
RE NN PG — R B,

(iif) BEFRE . TR FF S IERRITR LR

S5RRNEENTE B AEABREEAIEILHE
MAMTRERREERTRKE. FHRE. FHER
WERMSRITAR L ERNERRE
15 AR PRETH= HIFNE TRBUR
REEAX A TIRAEERREHTRAEENES

FEES, HAHRENRGNFNER, URTLMHIE
B,

AEACBYBANNRFAEEER, HEMNEARS
EREFHTEEREEE, WL IMARE
FTARARE. RANRIERR., AEFAEHER R
REEKFHRR I EH LRI EBTRAASEN.

SHEAENERNREFESE T HBDEIRRTE
SMEEHE—D R, FEERNASIVERHRIER
ZEEHREBRFTER. RN, X TRAEMSE
PGB E ks,

b

RERAFENNTENERE LT HEDS TES
AREEERE, BENHUAMEEE A REARAE
he e ERNERBEATEE. BN, REBUE
FERMUERRGERTEAEAETEEANENTTR.

jull

~

(3)

Htb RAREH R E BN ZRIEEI mMmT .
(i) B

REHFET —FIERAREERNBERTEE, RAEEBX
A8, hREEGNEREERERARMRTURY . £EH
X EGFERAFMN T EZURERNEEREEHET
BIEIES] FFEHE DRI SR,

AR TR AMFIRBF W R, Gk 4. b= L
AR RE IS RS FRARNMIE %,

BAMERIMBER Z MY E M SRR~ IR, BerT
BEARSHMUIAE. BEBRLT BKUERTAASGRMER
IFRMASIFHHESFSEOSR TR, R BRMEM
BRERRHER,

(OREEEESZSE
EREXKENIZENERRETAESHESMTNE L.
55 R R BT (5 FRIEME T AT RSEAVRIE, BIASRE K
BRLTEBRTENE=THARNESHAAIM, RERKIE
SEFERMERRE. £—LERT AEASERRIES
U D IR EZBUR S AR B E AR, RIEESTRER
FHERENRRESTN—EE D LR, HMERKE
BURT & P HEAKE.

ERAXKEEEREEEREAMARR. RITKALLE. RE
MEMEE., AEA@IENEEREARE S ST DS IRE
AMERABRM, KT, BTERSEERRENRITIUR
TEAREBREBFENERSR, ARAXFRIMZBER
ARESHRRTEMRAEANGEREAXKELSH. BT
KPERRENERRERES TRAGRKIE, KEEAMNE
AR E RO BT ISR

HEREEETHRER

FREFF RERPIROBEARERZUNET=. 201)()FFF
REMABFRESEXDEMBEN. IMIXDHEERRE
THEM. 6Q3)FrIRNHEHEREGFAE(D LS ITENE225)
PR E R VISR,

AEFANBRAEEDREN T EMESMERN SR A~
T, SR WBERER, HATIEMAE. NEBWATR
SPEANA, BIHEHNREESRBIEITHE X%
BEMPEN. WENRBESRAEARH AR RYIN
B HA T RIA = AT T kS8

BETHEEE . () ERSHFEABEFRRMOR~EE |
LR (i) R B A BRI R, BT ERTREHHLE
W AR HIMT R SR AR TR,



WEIREMHE 109

T= KEEE -4
2. fERRKE - 4

(4) AEEREHAR S EMERBSREENR X ER KRS
TARFNREER RAEAREHROMNERNT:

A EEH] AT

2013412831 2012412H31H 2013412831 20124£12H31H
FKHME
TR R JRERFTFRIN 42,836 91,234 41,984 90,367
FERE LRI 402,439 459,976 380,894 439,199
FHHES 87,469 72,433 87,206 70,733
A RMETTEBH TSI AL RE SR> 25,532 34912 23,180 33,620
PTE SRR~ 14,927 15,712 15,264 16,392
EINBRESRE 346,295 292,981 344,951 292,009
R GERR AR 6,929,968 6,236,723 6,827,452 6,140,090
TR E SRR 136,930 111,347 126,181 103,383
HEEIHEIER 5,384 3,698 5,384 3,698
R BRI 12,492 10,594 4618 7,303
Hthrh = 36,021 56,994 27,817 47,974
RAWME AT 8,040,293 7,386,604 7,884,931 7,244,768
FIMTH
TYRRRE 1,917,987 1,948,220 1,917,987 1,948,220
FFHRE 78,361 119,189 93,261 129,889
RITRHILCE 33,010 16,856 32,939 16,669
FHEERIE 18,702 11,889 18,702 11,889
FIMIE AT 2,048,060 2,096,154 2,062,889 2,106,667
2it 10,088,353 9,482,758 9,947,820 9,351,435

EFRDFFIRT T2013F 12831 B KX20126F12831 B, ARBAERAER THEANERE, BIARE RIEAHE RS E
ERERERNERANRSEE. XTRSNHEENE, ERNERERETAS NHERKESETESE.

(5) RAEERANETR
R ARMER DGR AR AERRRIEBRARND HERNT

AEH

20134£12H31H TEA 1Z=55 SEME &it
ERTEHR 207,699 346,400 1,272,955 1,827,054
RIEGTRK 186,078 205,598 605,096 996,772
IR G 45,407 223974 774,773 1,044,154
BT 37,822 101,473 3,141,006 3,280,301

&it 477,006 877,445 5,793,830 7,148,281

20124£12H31H TER 1Z55 SEE &it
ERATERK 121,178 326,897 1,275,898 1,723,973
RIEGERR 103,881 198,935 501,379 804,195
ARG 52,536 150,254 640,870 843,660
R 17,465 84,020 2,944,265 3,045,750
&it 295,060 760,106 5,362,412 6,417,578
AT

2013412H31H TEA 1Z=55 SEME ait
ERER 203,889 342,745 1,274,251 1,820,885
{RIEGER 177,035 204,428 605,085 986,548
IR BT 10,757 189,442 760,965 961,164
BURGTR 37,882 96,266 3,141,790 3,275,938

ait 429,563 832,881 5,782,091 7,044,535
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T REERE -4
2. ERARK - 4
(5) BHLHREBEK — 4

T4
20124£12H31H TERA 1Z54 S E ait
ERATER 119,044 324,396 1,277,478 1,720,918
RIETER 101,252 191,513 501,368 794,133
HEHR TR 10,740 123,707 626,298 760,745
RRTER 15,326 84,273 2,944,718 3,044,317
ait 246,362 723,889 5,349,862 6,320,113
KRR MNESIZE AR B EERT AT .
AEEH AT
2013412831 20124£12H31H 2013412831  2012412H31H
RSt R A (i) 7,112,090 6,396,918 7,009,848 6,300,219
EHARRIE (if) 1,607 1,264 933 845
[SV:RE (iif) 34,584 19,396 33,754 19,049
ait 7,148,281 6,417,578 7,044,535 6,320,113
B R B (218,313) (180,855) (217,083) (180,023)
He BTG (14,475) (8,674) (14,264) (8,470)
HETHE (203,838) (172,181) (202,819) (171,553)
R GERR MBS 6,929,968 6,236,723 6,827,452 6,140,090
() BEREHAthRR & BB R R R ER
BRIt R R £ BENK MR IZR NG RE T B S AEARTHR = RED KT,
A EH AT
20134£12H31F 2012412315 20134128318 20124:12/31H
EH 6,390,617 5,713,810 6,291,075 5,619,758
*F 721,473 683,108 718,773 680,461
ait 7,112,090 6,396,918 7,009,848 6,300,219
(il JEHAAR R E A R BER ISR
—RME . BRIEGFEEMBEWIESE, SHOR NI EMERHNERHA—EWNEAEXRERE. F20135F12A318. &%
HEHA0R UM B AR FINR AN LK MR AR BER ST A ART13.53(27T (201251283180 - ARM10.22{Z7w), KT ETURE
THEUR, MARKIRE | ARRABZERRPFESEOX N E BRBENTR, €T AHART254{Z7T (20128128318 - A
R2.421Z7T), RBEFRARBERAE KK IAREEIME S FIRFMEXIREK  BOTZE MBI TR NAEAERERE.
EMFERFAEFIaHERT AT
A EH AT
2013412831 20124512831 20134812831  20124£12H31H
HEHAGOK I P 1,353 1,022 679 603
JBHA9OR U £ 254 242 254 242
&it 1,607 1,264 933 845

BRY 2 ANE 673 418




T KREEE -4
2.

RN - &

(5) BRIGEFFNEIR

(i) ERER KR

WEiREMhE 111

ERENK TR HERIERT RN T .
AR EEH AT
2013412H31H 20124812 H31F 201341231 F 20124128317
ERERN KRR 34,584 19,396 33,754 19,049
B B R A& (14,475) (8,674) (14,264) (8,470)
B 20,109 10,722 19,490 10,579
BRY2AANE 12,280 6,790 11,906 6,647
PR ERBEM R TR AR RIS EL BT ERENR, AR T BEAEE.
(iv) B TERFER
BEUERFAREEEIARYSRAUBUUBLERRBEIREREINERLT, 2EEASERAETHEETEFRHEX.
SAEBE SRR AWM ERARTESEET A FIIROTME A, XLEEETREERHE TN, FEEARKIIAER
WA AHNE, EUSHEEATRBNEATRER, URRERE, WEARTER T HERE 29, RRER
BWIAENTRER. F20135F12A310 . AKAEERK LT AART6E8.741Z7T (2012&12)%31 H: ARM62.94Z7T).
(6) fAN R A
TR a5 RERB R RN T .
I EEH]
20134128310 20124128311
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HEHHRRE MEEBEAREE, EARREN TR
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Ljﬁﬁgggiiié% 31,983 - 736 6,504 10,680 8,590 1,634 - 60,127
INEBEESmA> - - 231214 111,352 5811 17 - - 348,394
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- - - - 186 3,620 536 - 4,342
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RITARFILE 3,791 8177 21,042 - - - 33,010
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND DIRECTORY OF
BRANCHES & SUBSIDIARIES

BREXS

General Meetings of Shareholders

EES

Board of Directors |

BEEQOHNE
Board of Directors Office

BREER

Executive Management

{

{

{

{

BT R (SRR ZREHL) BURMRE I E (AXIBT)
Executive Office Center for Financial Policy Research Department Planning Department
Research & Development
I I I I
HEH R EER THEES TE—B
Treasury & Financial Market Risk Management Credit Review Department Project Appraisal
Department Department Department |
I I I I
EiREELESE Bl FEEREE BEEEER
Global Cooperation Large Corporate Client Information Technology Operations Department
Department Department Department
\ |
THESEER BRATEE
Administrative Affairs Retired Staff Department
Department
I I I I
Em21T RET AL 21T (AT

Beijing Branch

Tianjin Branch

Hebei Branch

Shanxi Branch

w
REIST

Heilongjiang Branch

I
L5517

Shanghai Branch

I

LT
Jiangsu Branch

I

IN1T
Suzhou Branch

I

I

I

Es1T LT RS 1T BERAMT
Xiamen Branch Jiangxi Branch Shandong Branch Qingdao Branch
I I I I
w57 I AT BEST BERSMT
Shenzhen Branch Guangxi Branch Hainan Branch Chonggqing Branch
\ \ \ \
HRST AT FigHT TEMT

Gansu Branch

Xinjiang Branch

Qinghai Branch

Ningxia Branch

\
BEEMT

Hong Kong Branch

!
FE R

Cairo Representative Office

\

Moscow Representative Office

\
BN AR

Rio de Janeiro Representative Office
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE AND DIRECTORY OF BRANCHES & SUBSIDIARIES

hEs

Board of Supervisors |

BELNNE
Board of Supervisors Office

N N N \

WERRER miHERER EEESE e
Business Development Market Development & Equity Legal Department Finance & Accounting
Department Investment Department Department
I I I |
WHE_F WHHZF EREER EfFERE
Project Appraisal Project Appraisal Loan Management International Finance
Department Il Department Il Department Department
I I I |
AR AEF fag=d) HEEIE
Audit Department Human Resources Compliance Department Education & Training
Department Department
I I I |
SE=p X TTo1T KEDIT HERST
Inner Mongolia Branch Liaoning Branch Dalian Branch Jilin Branch
I I I |
HLT TRST ZRAIT BEDT
Zhejiang Branch Ningbo Branch Anhui Branch Fujian Branch
I I I |
ST #5217 R ST I HRST
Henan Branch Hubei Branch Hunan Branch Guangdong Branch
I I I |
N34T "M IT =BT BRFE 51T
Sichuan Branch Guizhou Branch Yunnan Branch Shaanxi Branch
|
BB T
Tibet Branch
FEIRE AT EF&RARSEAT CDB Capital Co., Ltd.

Group Subsidiaries EFFE4EREELT  CDB Securities Co., Ltd.
E$R&mIEEHMR/ART CDB Leasing Co., Ltd.
hiEARELHRAT  China-Africa Development Fund

13RAHEIRIT 13 Village Banks
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=S4T

BEIJING BRANCH

it ER B AKX E XA KRE168SITFRESE

Add: 8/F, COSCO Mansion, No.158 Fuxingmennei Street,
Xicheng District, Beijing

137 (Tel): (010) 63223057

f£H (Fax): (010) 66412282

#B 4% (Zip): 100031

KEIT
TIANJIN BRANCH
Hhiib: RiEH X RKEEIS NG RREFOAE26E
Add: 26/F, Huanbohai Development Centre A, 9
Binshui Road, Hexi District, Tianjin
8% (Tel): (022) 85681234
£ H (Fax): (022) 88355858
#B 4% (Zip): 300061

LS 1T
HEBEI BRANCH
ik AR ETHREFEKROSHE HBEE

Add: Building B Yuyuan Plaza, 9 Yuhuaxi Road, Shijiazhuang

£835 (Tel): (0311) 85288100
f£H (Fax): (0311) 85288112
HB 4% (Zip): 050051

WD T

SHANXI BRANCH

ik KJRT #1085
Add: 108 Fuxi Street, Taiyuan
8% (Tel): (0351) 4937222
f£E (Fax): (0351) 4937224
R 4% (Zip): 030002

HERE DT

INNER MONGOLIA BRANCH
ik PRER T TR #1555
Add: 55 Xinhuadong Street, Huhhot
3% (Tel): (0471) 3310014

f£E (Fax): (0471) 3310021

B 4% (Zip): 010010

TTH1T

LIAONING BRANCH

ik SEPA T X EEAE1095

Add: 109 Qingnian Street, Shenhe District, Shenyang
8% (Tel): (024) 22959955

& H (Fax): (024) 22953371

#R 4% (Zip): 110014

KEFAT
DALIAN BRANCH
ik KETH LR AREE15-17SERR£AE25R
Add: 25/F, International Finance Plaza, 15-17
Renmin Road, Zhongshan District, Dalian
8137 (Tel): (0411) 82810918
fEH (Fax): (0411) 82633839
R 4% (Zip): 116001

EHRST

JILIN BRANCH

il KE TR KEE3995

Add: 399 Nanhu Road, Changchun
137 (Tel): (0431) 85279600

12 H (Fax): (0431) 85279700

B4 (Zip): 130022

BRiIHT

HEILONGJIANG BRANCH

it MG RIRT R R XTI’ 1315

Add: 131 Xiangjiang Road, Nangang District, Harbin
11 (Tel): (0451) 53907900

f£E (Fax): (0451) 53907808

#B 4% (Zip): 150090

LigatT

SHANGHAI BRANCH

ik g A 68S

Add: 68 Puming Road, Shanghai
B iE (Tel): (021) 58883655

f£HE (Fax): (021) 58883659

B %5 (Zip): 200120

LT

JIANGSU BRANCH

ik BRAIR T #2325

Add: 232 Jiangdongzhong Road, Nanjing
815 (Tel): (025) 83276222

2 H (Fax): (025) 83276204

HR 4% (Zip): 210019

FINEIT
SUZHOU BRANCH
ik M T T E X AESER 158 S BV ST H11-12F
Add: 11-12F Zhiye Business Plaza, No.158
Wangdun Road,Suzhou Industrial Park
B 1 (Tel): (0512) 67887142
fEH (Fax): (0512) 67887114
HR 4% (Zip): 215028



LT

ZHEJIANG BRANCH

Hhik: N TS T X% 2 85695 K E 7 A E324%

Add: 32/F, 69 Chengxing Road, Jianggan District, Hangzhou
8% (Tel): (0571) 89778000

f£H (Fax): (0571) 89778068

#B 4 (Zip): 310020

T T

NINGBO BRANCH

it FETIAXESRILEE5775

Add: No.577 Haiyan Road,Jiangdong District,Ningbo
8% (Tel): (0574) 83872888

f£H (Fax): (0574) 83872100

HB 4R (Zip): 315040

RENT

ANHUI BRANCH

it &RET k2465
Add: 246 Wuhu Road, Hefei
B iE (Tel): (0551) 2867889
f£H (Fax): (0551) 2875868
BB 4R (Zip): 230061

BENT

FUJIAN BRANCH

ot M T AMEE111 S EA KE29-33F

Add: 29/F-33/F, Yifa Mansion, 111 Wusi Road, Fuzhou
8% (Tel): (0591) 87802712

f£H (Fax): (0591) 87856844

HR 4R (Zip): 350003

E1547
XIAMEN BRANCH

ik BT ERX B TE 1005 WG (BT E 10 ) 35-39/F

Add: 35/F-39/F Forture Centre, NO.100 Lujiang Road, Siming Distric
81 (Tel): (0592) 2688819

f£E (Fax): (0592) 2393111

B4 (Zip): 361001

LA AT

JIANGXI BRANCH

il B E T LFEK68S

Add: 68 Zhongshanxi Road, Nanchang
8% (Tel): (0791) 86592323

f£HE (Fax): (0791) 86592333

HE 4% (Zip): 330009

ARZEAGETNGE RS R
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WWFRS1T

SHANDONG BRANCH

Hhlt: R D ER L BE2-1 S IR AEO- 122

Add: 9/F-12/F, Shandong Mansion, 2-1 Maanshan Road, Jinan
1% (Tel): (0531) 85198100

f£H (Fax): (0531) 85198282

#B 4 (Zip): 250002

BEST

QINGDAO BRANCH

it FHHREEKISSHI7E

Add: 17/F, 15 Donghaixi Road, Qingdao
B (Tel): (0532) 81978288

f£H (Fax): (0532) 81978288

HE 4R (Zip): 266071

AR ST

HENAN BRANCH

Hhilk: X8 T € 7K B 2665

Add: 266 JinShui Road, Zhengzhou
% (Tel): (0371) 66000999

f£ K (Fax): (0371) 66000888

#R 4% (Zip): 450008

#ALS1T

HUBEI BRANCH

ik RIXNTREX T8I SEREERE

Add: Chutian Media Plaza, 181 Donghu Road, Wuchang District, Wuhan
B iE (Tel): (027) 86759555

£ E (Fax): (027) 86759666

R 4% (Zip): 430077

R ST

HUNAN BRANCH

ik KiP T RE P _RI106S R AE

Add: Xianghao Plaza, 106, Block 2, Furongzhong Road, Changsha
1% (Tel): (0731) 84906658

£ H (Fax): (0731) 84906699

HB 4R (Zip): 410005

I Hm3T
GUANGDONG BRANCH
itk N R X HIHAEFE100-1 58 BRI HAK23A
Add: 23A, Building A Winner Plaza, 100-1 Huangpu
Road West, Tianhe District, Guangzhou
1% (Tel): (020) 38633017
f£H (Fax): (020) 38633000
#B 4R (Zip): 510627
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AT
SHENZHEN BRANCH
otk R TR 510935 F{EKE11-152

Add: 11/F-15/F, Citic Building, 1093 Shennanzhong Road,Shenzhen

837 (Tel): (0755) 25985666
f£ A (Fax): (0755) 25987800
HE 4% (Zip): 518031

I AT

GUANGXI BRANCH

ik T HREAE1495
Add: 149 Minzu Street, Nanning
8% (Tel): (0771) 8018300

f£E (Fax): (0771) 8018510

R 4% (Zip): 530028

BEST

HAINAN BRANCH

it BO T FEXKIGHEF1S

Add: Jia 1 Changyi Road, Xiuying District, Haikou
31 (Tel): (0898) 68510780

£ E (Fax): (0898) 68551933

B4R (Zip): 570311

BRAMT

CHONGQING BRANCH

ik EXRTTIEX SrE1S

Add: 1 Financial Street, Jiangbei District, Chongging
8% (Tel): (023) 67858000

f£ & (Fax): (023) 67858114

B4R (Zip): 400023

)l 34T
SICHUAN BRANCH

il RE T AR B MER27S

Add: 27 of the 4th Block, Renminnan Road, Chengdu
81 (Tel): (028) 86029998

f£E (Fax): (028) 86029617

R 4% (Zip): 610041

RMT

GUIZHOU BRANCH

ik SRATH R LUFEE18S K EFEREISE

Add: 15/F, Pacific Plaza, 18 Zhongshanxi Road, Guiyang
8% (Tel): (0851) 8651559

f£HA (Fax): (0851) 8651605

B 4% (Zip): 550001

ZET

YUNNAN BRANCH

Hhit: REAT#EEK 1765

Add: 176 Guangfu Road, Kunming
1% (Tel): (0871) 63634094

f£H (Fax): (0871) 63634001

HB 4R (Zip): 650228

BEFT 1T

SHAANXI BRANCH

ik AR e —B2SERARRITAE
Add: CDB Plaza, 2 Hi-Tec Road, Xi'an

B83% (Tel): (029) 87660578

f£H (Fax): (029) 87660581

HB 4R (Zip): 710075

HRHT
GANSU BRANCH

it = MHEEEEK17285

Add: 1728 Nanchang Road, Lanzhou
817 (Tel): (0931) 8866628

f£E (Fax): (0931) 8866237

B 4% (Zip): 730030

BT

XINJIANG BRANCH

ik ZEARFHF LEEISBEERARRITAE
Add: CDB Plaza, 333 Zhongshan Road, Urumaqi
B83F (Tel): (0991) 2335001

f£E (Fax): (0991) 2335002

#B 4% (Zip): 830002

BEST

QINGHAI BRANCH
it ATHECHK2S
Add: 2 Kunlun Road, Xining
8% (Tel): (0971) 6161900
f£H (Fax): (0971) 6161900
#B %% (Zip): 810001

TEST

NINGXIA BRANCH

ik RIHERXFAREILEHS
Add: 1 Yinjiaqubei Street, Jinfeng District, Yinchuan
BiF (Tel): (0951) 5695815
f£H (Fax): (0951) 5695813
B4 (Zip): 750004



ET AT

TIBET BRANCH

ik hr =T /\— R E&28A

Add: 28A Bayi South Road, Lhasa
B1E (Tel): (0891) 6623818

f£HE (Fax): (0891) 6623818

8 4% (Zip): 850000

EEDT
HONG KONG BRANCH
ik FEEPRERETI SERFRSRFPO—HA331E
Add: 33/F One International Finance Centre,

1 Harbour View Street, Central, Hong Kong
B11E (Tel): (00852) 28016218
f£HE (Fax): (00852) 25304083

FE KA
CAIRO REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

Hhit: 38R I B E e R T4 18 41 S 51, 28T

Add: Apartment No. 1 & 2, Building 41 (A), St. 18, Maadi,

Sarayat, Cairo, Egypt
B % (Tel): (002-02) 23802799
f£H (Fax): (002-02) 23787475

RERHRLE
MOSCOW REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

it HEHRBEH T RRLEERREHS

Add: Novatorov str.1, Moscow 119421, Russian Federation

B2 1 (Tel): (007-495) 9894612
f&H (Fax): (007-495) 9894611

BARRFARERL
RIO DE JANEIRO REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE
Hhiib: B LR A Aol X EL N B Gk #9555 10/=

Add: 10th Floor, Presidente Vargas St., No.955,Central District,

Rio de Janeiro City
B3 3F (Tel): (055-21) 982839080

ARZEAGETNGE RS R
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EFEmEREERE

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK CAPITAL CO., LTD.

it EER T AR SRAEH7SEERRSM A0

Add: 10/F, Winland International Finance Centre, 7
Financial Street, Xicheng District, Beijing

B1i% (Tel): (010) 88308477

f£E (Fax): (010) 66553276

B4R (Zip): 100033

EFIESTRFELT

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK SECURITIES CO., LTD.

ik AR T HRBRFEEAH1SRKEL RO AEEE

Add: 25/F, Raffles City Beijing Office Tower, 1 Dongzhimen South
Street, Dongcheng District, Beijing

837 (Tel): (010) 51789101

f£E (Fax): (010) 51789110

B4R (Zip): 100007

EsREmEEERAA

CDB LEASING CO,, LTD.

ik SR 4R E X 55 H 86009 S it 57 Hi049-52F

Add: 49-52F, New World Centre, 6009 Yitian Road,
Futian District, Shenzhen, Guangdong

11 (Tel): (0755) 23980999

f&HE (Fax): (0755) 23980900

tB 4% (Zip): 518026

HERRES

CHINA-AFRICA DEVELOPMENT FUND

ik LRI AKX EX AR S YRR HOREI-11E

Add: 10/F-11/F, Tower C, Chemsunny World Trade Centre, 28
Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing

3% (Tel): (010) 59566800

f£H (Fax): (010) 59566969

HB 4% (Zip): 100031

ERAFE R ERITRAFRA R

DALATE CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

ik M5 SRR ST IA R4S MG Al S RIA EE2 SRR

Add: Ground Floor, 2 Dongdajiayuan, Xiyuan Rd., Shulinzhao Town,
Dalate County, Ordos, Inner Mongolia

3% (Tel): (0477) 3969785

f£E (Fax): (0477) 3969786

B 4% (Zip): 014300
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AEEFHERITRBBRAA
ZHENLAI CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

it HIE BT EEE X #7480S

Add: 480 Xinxing South Street, Zhenlai, Baicheng, Jilin
3% (Tel): (0436) 5077104

f£H (Fax): (0436) 5077105

B4 (Zip): 137300

X OEFF R WAHRRITRH B R AR
LONGKOU NANSHAN CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

it WZRE A AR WL T EE L FEESS

Add: 3 Nanshanzhong Road, Nanshan Industrial Park, Longkou, Shandong
B8 1 (Tel): (0535) 8808508

£ H (Fax): (0535) 8808508

B4R (Zip): 265706

KAEFHEBRITROFRAT

DAYE CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.
ik AL RETARERE1045

Add: 104 Daye Road, Daye, Hubei

B iE (Tel): (0714) 8725699

£ H (Fax): (0714) 8725699

B4R (Zip): 435100

EREFHERTERZELA
YICHENG CDB VILLAGE BANK CO.,LTD.
it At ER T — g RS

Add: Yiyang Gallery Street, Yicheng, Hubei
3% (Tel): (0710) 4221000

f£ & (Fax): (0710) 4221000

B4R (Zip): 441400

HE EFAHERITRGARA R

MILUO CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

it M EH T T ARBERS

Add: 1 Dazhong South Road, Miluo, Yueyang City, Hunan
B3 (Tel): (0730) 5559999

f5E (Fax): (0730) 5250180

HB 4R (Zip): 414400

T INCEAERITRBE R =

PINGLIANG JINGCHUAN HUITONG VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.
ik HRERINIEREEH18S

Add: 18 Anding Street, Jingchuan County, Gansu

837 (Tel): (0933) 3321929

f£H (Fax): (0933) 3321925

HB 4R (Zip): 744300

KBEFHEBRITERRELT

DATONG CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

it FHERBEFLEARIK70-45

Add: 70-4 Renmin Road, Qiaotou Town, Datong County, Qinghai
B 1% (Tel): (0971) 7830961

f£H (Fax): (0971) 7830961

B4 (Zip): 810100

BN E FFAHESRI TR B BR A

TONGZHOU CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

it EETBMNE B EEEF6S

Add: Jia 66 Yangzhuang Nanli, Tongzhou District, Beijing
817 (Tel): (010) 52998500

f£H (Fax): (010) 52998500

B4R (Zip): 101121

AR EFHHERITROGRAF
XIQING CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

ik REHAEEXFILEFIERER NS EKIBEERERD

Add: Ground floor, Jin Sha Shui Yu Hua Cheng, South of
Zhongbei Street, Zhongbei Town, Xiging District, Tianjin

B335 (Tel): (022) 58967002

£ H (Fax): (022) 58967008

#B 4% (Zip): 300112

I EFHERITRO-GRLE
BEILUN CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

ik FE TS X #ARE837-8475

Add: 837-847, Xinda Road, Beilun District, Ningbo City
B 1% (Tel): (0574) 86856785

f£H (Fax): (0574) 86856783

HE 4% (Zip): 315800

BHREFFERITEREELR

BAZHONG CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.
ik PO)1E B T M X 4235

Add: 23 Xihua Road, Bazhou District, Bazhong City
B 1% (Tel): (0827) 3333655

f£H (Fax): (0827) 3333155

#B 4 (Zip): 636000

HEEFHEBRITERIRELT

Pl COUNTY CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

ik )i EEE R EE AT RS

Add: 1/F, R&D Building of 19MCC, Pitong Town, Pi County
B 1% (Tel): (028) 61410770

f£H (Fax): (028) 61773021

#B 4% (Zip): 611730



139

By %
APPENDICES

T EiHIRIRG (RRERY SR EENRFHEHFITHRE)
BHRUHRE RRERY SR EENHH)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED IFRS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED IFRS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



140

Deloitte
(X9

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants LLP
30/F Bund Center

222 Yan An Road East

Shanghai 200002,PRC

DTT(A)(14)0012

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK CORPORATION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of China Development Bank Corporation (the "Bank") and its subsidiaries
(collectively, referred to as the "Group") set out on pages 141 to 194, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management of the Bank is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2013,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
Shanghai, China
30 April 2014



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 141

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

(Al amounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

Notes 2013 (res ta2t(:dZ)
Interest income 6 430,113 386,905
Interest expense 6 (258,641) (232,495)
Net interest income 6 171,472 154,410
Fee and commission income 7 12,937 10,395
Fee and commission expense 7 (823) (441)
Net fee and commission income 7 12,114 9,954
Net trading and foreign exchange (losses)/gain 8 (10,418) 4,291
Net gain on financial instruments designated as at fair value through profit or loss 1,544 523
Dividend income 9 996 957
Net gain on investment securities 10 1,134 596
Other income, net 11 2,111 462
Operating income 178,953 171,193
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures 46 27
Operating expenses 12 (32,850) (29,724)
Impairment losses on assets 13 (40,301) (58,075)
Profit before income tax 105,848 83,421
Income tax expense 14 (25,894) (20,294)
Net profit 79,954 63,127
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Bank 79,621 62,921
Non-controlling interests 333 206
79,954 63,127

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.



142 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

(Allamounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

2012
e (restated)
Profit for the year 79,954 63,127
Other comprehensive income
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (289) 14
Net (losses)/gain on available-for-sale financial assets (1,928) 1,370
Other comprehensive income - 34
Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income 414 (351)
Subtotal (1,803) 1,067
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Early retirement benefits and supplemental retirement benefits (17) (55)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income for the year, net of tax (1,820) 1,012
Total comprehensive income for the year 78,134 64,139
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Shareholders of the Bank 77,774 63,931
Non-controlling interests 360 208
78,134 64,139

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

(Al amounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

ASSETS
Cash and balances with the central bank
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions
Placements with banks and other financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial assets
Financial assets held under resale agreements
Loans and advances to customers, net
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity investments
Debt securities classified as receivables
Interest in associates and joint ventures
Property and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Notes

15

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

42,856 91,254
402,439 459,976
87,469 72,433
57,515 63,738
14,927 15,712
346,295 292,981
6,929,968 6,236,723
152,159 126,781
5,384 3,698
12,492 10,594
1,597 1,353
50,750 45,743
40,722 33,189
42,665 65,419
8,187,238 7,519,594




144 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - continued
AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

(Allamounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

31 December 2012

Notes 31 December 2013 (restated)
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 29 410,920 469,293
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 30 455,109 426,645
Placements from banks 31 35,616 30,780
Derivative financial liabilities 19 10,504 13,196
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 32 25,090 17,068
Due to customers 33 684,182 608,364
Debt securities issued 34 5,840,590 5,302,197
Current tax liabilities 25,654 26,834
Deferred tax liabilities 27 109 178
Other liabilities 35 138,229 127,188
Total liabilities 7,626,003 7,021,743
Equity
Capital and reserves attributable to shareholders of the Bank
Share capital 36 306,711 306,711
Capital reserves (9,667) (9,650)
Investment revaluation reserve 37 5,720 7,262
Surplus reserve 38 45,590 32,084
General reserve 38 97,521 68,706
Retained earnings 39 113,145 90,801
Currency translation differences (529) (241)
Total equity attributable to shareholders of the Bank 558,491 495,673
Non-controlling interests 2,744 2,178
Total equity 561,235 497,851
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 8,187,238 7,519,594

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements on pages 141 to 194 are signed on its behalf by:

Hu Huaibang Zheng Zhijie Li Jiping Yang Baohua
Chairman Vice Chairman, Executive Vice President, Head of Finance
President in charge of the finance function



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

(All amounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

Notes

At 1 January 2013
Net profit

Other comprehensive
income

Total comprehensive income
for2013

Issue of new shares

Dividends 39
Appropriation to surplus reserve 39
Appropriation to general reserve 39
At 31 December 2013

At 1 January 2012(restated)

Net profit

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive
income for 2012

Issue of new shares
Dividends 39

Appropriation to surplus
reserve

39

Appropriation to general reserve 39

At 31 December
2012(restated)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to shareholders of the Bank

Non-
Share  Capital IREE TS Surplus General Retained i) controlling Total
. revaluation f translation interests
capital reserves reserve reserve e€arnings
reserve differences

306,711 (9,650) 7,262 32,084 68,706 90,801 (241) 2,178 497,851
- - - - - 79,621 - 333 79,954

- (17) (1,542) - - - (288) 27 (1,820)

- (17) (1,542) - - 79,621 (288) 360 78,134

- - - - - - - 220 220

- - - - - (14,956) - (14)  (14,970)

- - - 13506 - (135506) - - -

- - - - 28,815 (28,815 - - -
306,711 (9,667) 5,720 45,590 97,521 113,145 (529) 2,744 561,235
306,711 (9,629) 6,245 21,709 50,071 67,925 (255) 1,723 444500
- - - - - 62,921 - 206 63,127

- (21) 1,017 - - - 14 2 1,012

- (21) 1,017 - - 62,921 14 208 64,139

- - - - - - - 256 256

- - - - - (11,035 - 9  (11,044)

- - - 10375 - (10,375) - - -
- = - - 18635 (18,635) - = -
306,711 (9,650) 7,262 32,084 68,706 90,801 (241) 2,178 497,851

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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146 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

(Al amounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

Notes 2013 (resé&g‘;
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 105,848 83,421
Adjustments:
Impairment losses on assets 40,301 58,075
Depreciation and amortisation 2,922 2,231
Interest expense for debt securities issued 227,798 203,380
Interest expense for borrowings from governments and financial institutions 12,086 10,903
Interest income for investment securities (4,913) (3,664)
Net gain on investment securities (1,134) (596)
Net losses/(gain) on disposal of property and equipment and other assets 8 (178)
Dividend income (996) (957)
Movements in working capital:
Net (increase)/decrease in balances with the central bank and deposits with banks and other financial institutions 16,666 (47,211)
Net increase in financial assets held under resale agreements (53,314) (150,712)
Net (increase)/decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 7,008 (5,193)
Net increase in loans and advances to customers (731,401) (890,705)
Net increase in placements with banks and other financial institutions (30,048) (82,815)
Net decrease in other assets 27,539 129,141
Net increase in due to customers and deposits from banks and other financial institutions 17,426 206,019
Net increase in placements from banks 17,480 22,364
Net increase in financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 8,022 10,063
Net increase in other liabilities 8,332 30,392
Income tax paid (34,262) (17,313)
Net cash outflows from operating activities (364,632) (393,355)
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash paid for purchases of investment securities (257,999) (295,650)
Cash received from proceeds from disposal of investment securities 246,293 269,223
Cash received from returns on investment securities 5,836 4,096
Cash paid for purchases of property and equipment and other assets (2,384) (4,028)
Cash received from proceeds from disposal of property and equipment and other assets 90 119
Cash paid to other investing activities (114) -
Net cash inflows from investing activities (8,278) (26,240)
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from proceeds from debt securities 1,170,546 1,245,706
Cash received from borrowed funds 88,814 76,333
Capital contribution by non-controlling interests 162 73
Cash paid for repayments of debt securities and borrowed funds (701,930) (420,952)
Cash payment for interest on debt securities and borrowed funds (201,488) (174,503)
Dividends paid to shareholders (14,956) (11,035)
Net cash inflows from financing activities 341,148 715,622
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (4,507) (196)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (36,269) 295,831
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year 582,298 286,467
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of year 40 546,029 582,298

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

(All amounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

China Development Bank Corporation (the "Bank") is a joint stock
commercial bank established jointly by the Ministry of Finance (the
'"MOF") and Central Huijin Investment Ltd. ("Huijin"). The Bank was
formerly known as China Development Bank, a wholly state-owned
policy bank, established on 17 March 1994 in the People's Republic of
China. In accordance with the Master Implementation Plan for the Joint
Stock Reform (the "Joint Stock Reform Plan") approved by the State
Council of the PRC, China Development Bank was converted into a joint
stock corporation on 11 December 2008.

The Bank is licensed (No. B0999H111000001) as a financial institution
by the China Banking Regulatory Commission (the "CBRC") and is
registered with a business enterprise license (No. 100000000016686)
issued by the State Administration of Industry and Commerce of the
PRC. The Bank is registered and headquartered in Beijing.

The Bank and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group") align their business
focus with national economic strategy, and are dedicated to the mission

of strengthening the competitiveness of China and improving the
living standards of its people in support of the State's key medium- to
long-term strategies and policies, through their medium-to long-term
lending, investment, securities and leasing activities. The Group is
dedicated to promoting the development of the market through well-
planned financing, balancing established techniques and pioneering
initiatives. In support of the State's policies to implement disciplined
development and build a harmonious society, the Group directs funding
to the construction of critical infrastructure, as well as helping China's
economy transform and rebalance growth. The Group's funding goes to
promoting coordinated regional development, urbanisation, affordable
housing projects, small and medium-sized entities("SME"), agriculture,
rural communities and farmers, as well as special programmes for
education, medical and health care and environmental protection. In
response to the call of the State to encourage domestic enterprises
to "Go Global", the Group also engages in a wide range of activities
focused on international cooperation.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ('IFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the followingnew and revised IFRSs.

Amendments to IFRS 7

IFRS 10

IFRS 11

IFRS 12

IAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

IAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12

Joint Arrangements

Disclosures- Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Consolidated Financial Statements

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance

IFRS 13

Amendments to IFRSs
Amendments to IAS 1

IAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

Fair Value Measurement

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
Employee Benefits

Specific transitional provisions are applicable to first-time application of IAS 19 (as revised in 2011). The Group has applied the relevant transitional
provisions and restated the comparative amounts on a retrospective basis. The impact of the retrospective application is set out in Note2 Adoption of
new and revised IFRSs: Comparatives.

The adoption of other new and revised IFRSs has no material impact on the Group's financial performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IAS 32

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7

IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27
Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IAS 36

Amendments to IAS 39

IFRIC 21

Amendments to IFRSs

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities'

Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transaction Disclosures®
Financial Instruments®

Investment Entities’

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions?

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets'
Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting’
Levies'

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle*

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle?

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
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148 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("IFRSs") - continued

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective - continued

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

3 Available for application - the mandatory effective date will be
determined when the outstanding phases of IFRS 9 are finalised.

* Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
limited exceptions.

® Effective for first annual IFRS financial statements beginning on or after
1 January 2016.

Management anticipate that the adoption of these new and revised
IFRSs but not yet effective will have no material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements,except for the IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments as described below:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes
the requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities and for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for hedge accounting.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described as follows:

* IFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that
have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that
is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

» With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as
at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the amount
of changes in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes
in the financial liability's credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Previously, under IAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types
of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible
for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle of an ‘economic relationship'.
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity's risk
management activities have also been introduced.

Management anticipate that the adoption of IFRS 9 in the future may
have a significant impact on the amounts reported in respect of the
Group's financial assets and financial liabilities. Regarding the Group's
financial assets, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
that effect until a detailed review has been completed.

Comparatives

The Group has applied IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits
for the first time in the current year. Pursuant to the amendments,
retrospective adjustments were made to certain items in equity as at
31 December 2012 and 1 January 2012, and certain items in profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2012 were restated. Comparative consolidated financial statements are
presented based on the restated figures.

31 December 2012

Before restatement  Impact of restatement Restated
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to shareholders of the Bank
Capital reserves (9,713) 63 (9,650)
Retained earmnings 90,864 (63) 90,801
Effects on total equity 497,851 - 497,851

1 January 2012

Before restatement  Impact of restatement Restated
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to shareholders of the Bank
Capital reserves (9,747) 118 (9,629)
Retained earmnings 68,043 (118) 67,925
Effects on total equity 444,500 - 444,500




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("IFRSs") - continued

Comparatives - continued

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
Operating expenses
Net profit

2012
Before restatement  Impact of restatement Restated
(29,779) 55 (29,724)
63,072 55 63,127

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs. The significant accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(1) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are at fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realizable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.

The preparation of financial statements under IFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in Note 4.

(2) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

* has power over the investee;

* is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

* has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee unilaterally.

The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether or not the Company's voting rights in an investee
are sufficient to give it power, including:

* the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size
and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

* potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or
other parties;

* rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

* any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Company has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders' meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains control until the date when
the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(2) Basis of consolidation - continued

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under IAS 39, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

(8) Interest in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or
a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. When the Group's share of losses
of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group's investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date
when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or
when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
Any retained portion of an investment in an associate or a joint venture
that has not been classified as held for sale is accounted for using
the equity method. Upon disposal or partial disposal of the Group's
interest in an associate or a joint venture in which the Group lost
significant influence or joint control and discontinued the use of equity
method, any retained interest that is within the scope of IAS 39 is
measured at fair value on that date, the difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture at the date, and the proceeds
from disposing of such interest (or partial interest) in the associate
or joint venture and the fair value of the retained interest is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate
or joint venture.In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the Group lost significant
influence or joint control over the investee.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement of the previously held interest or the retained interest
to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related
to the Group.

(4) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for services provided in



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(4) Revenue recognition - continued

6

the normal course of business, net of sales related taxes. Specific
recognition criteria for different nature of revenue are disclosed below.

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial
instruments, except for those classified as held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss, are recognised
within "Interest income" and "Interest expense" in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the related service has been provided.

(6) Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of domestic operation is Renminbi
("RMB"). Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's overseas operations are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the "functional currency"). The presentation currency of the
Group is RMB.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gain and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of monetary items denominated in
foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, and other changes in the carrying
amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at
historical cost in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at
the date that fair value is determined. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets classified as available-for-sale are
included in other comprehensive income. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

S

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from RMB are translated as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

* assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position, except the retained earnings, other
items in shareholders' equity are translated at the rate prevailing at
the date when they occurred;

* income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss are
translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the date when the
items occurred; and

* all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

(7) Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before income tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from gooduwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they related to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(7) Taxation - continued

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

(8) Employee benefits
(@) Social welfare

Social welfare expenditure refers to payments for employees'
social welfare system established by the Government, including
social insurance, housing funds and other social welfare
contributions.

(b) Annuity scheme

In addition to the government-sponsored pension plan, the
employees of domestic institutions participate in annuity scheme
set up by the Bank with the approval of the MOF and the record of
the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security. The Bank
made annuity contributions with reference to employees' salaries,
and the contributions are expensed in profit or loss when incurred.

=

Early retirement benefits and supplemental retirement benefits

Early retirement benefits refer to the expenses on benefits paid
to those employees who have not reached retirement age
but accepted an early retirement arrangement approved by
management of the Bank. Early retirement benefits are made from
the date of early retirement through the normal retirement date.

The Group has paid supplemental retirement benefits to retired
employees as of 31 December 2011 whom are out of the annuity
scheme. Supplemental retirement benefits include supplemental
pension income payments and medical expense coverage.

The liability related to the above early retirement obligations and
supplemental benefit obligations existing at the end of each
reporting period, is calculated by independent actuary using
the projected unit credit method and is recorded as a liability in
the consolidated statement of financial position. Actuarial gain
and losses arising from changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

(9) Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when an entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: including financial assets at FVTPL, held-to-
maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets and
loans and receivables. Investment securities comprise held-
to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets and
debt securities classified as receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and

is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market-place. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to the fair value of the financial assets, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL have two subcategories, including financial
assets held for trading and those designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

Afinancial asset is classified as held for trading if:

* it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the
near future; or

* itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking; or

* itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

* such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

 the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's documented
risk management or investment strategy, and information about the
grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

* it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the entire combined contract (asset
or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

The equity investment of the venture capital subsidiaries may be
classicised as a financial asset held for trading or a financial asset
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition if it meets the conditions
above.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with changes in fair
value arising from re-measurement recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes any dividends or interest earned on financial assets.

(i) Held to maturity investments

Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets traded in
active markets, with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Group's management has the positive intention and ability to
hold to maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses.



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(9) Financial assets - continued
(@) Classification - continued
(i) Held to maturity investments - continued

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant periods. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or
discounts.

(iiiy Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated as such or are not
classified in any of the other categories.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary financial assets
relating to interest income calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on available-for-sale equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the investment
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.

(iv) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses.

(b) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets excluding those fair valued through profit or
loss is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
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"loss event') and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
assets is impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about the following loss events:

* significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

* abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

» the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

* the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties;

* observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot
yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the group,
including adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
group, a decrease in property price for the mortgages in the relevant
area or national or local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the group;

* any significant change with an adverse effect that has taken place in
the technological, market, economic or legal environment in which
the issuer operates and indicates that the cost of investments in
equity instruments may not be recovered;

* asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of equity instrument
investments; or

» other objective evidence indicating impairment of the financial asset.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and
individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

(i) Assets carried at amortised cost

The impairment loss for financial assets carried at amortised cost is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. If
a loan or held to maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(9) Financial assets - continued
(b) Impairment of financial assets - continued

(i) Assets carried at amortized cost - continued

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that
may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the
collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of
the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group and historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the
basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of current
conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical
loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions
in the historical period that do not currently exist.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in related
observable data from period to period (for example, changes
in property prices, payment status, or other factors indicative
of changes in the probability of losses in the group and their
magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowance for impairment losses. Such loans are written off after
all the necessary procedures have been completed and the
amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. The reversal shall not result in the carrying amount of the
financial asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed.

(i) Assets classified as available-for-sale

If objective evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and is measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. With respect to equity instruments, such reversals
are made through the investment revaluation reserve within
other comprehensive income. If there is objective evidence that
an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted equity

investment that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the impairment loss should not be
reversed.

(c) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of
its continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in the Group, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

(10) Financial liabilities and equity instrument

Financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when an entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are deducted from the fair value of the financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group's financial liabilities are generally classified into
financial liabilities at FVTPL and other financial liabilities. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.

(@) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial liabilities held for trading and those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

The criteria for a financial liability to be classified as held for
trading and designated as at FVTPL are the same as those
for a financial asset to be classified as held for trading and
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising on re-measurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any interest
paid on the financial liabilities.

(b) Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(10) Financial liabilities and equity instrument - continued

(c) Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(d) Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

(11) Derivative financial instruments and embedded derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated
as separate derivatives when their characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are separately
accounted for at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

(12) Determination of fair value

The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. For financial instruments
traded in active markets, the determination of fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities is based on quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations. For financial instruments traded in inactive
markets, fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Valuation techniques include the use of recent transaction
prices, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and
other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants.

(16) Property and equipment

The Group's property and equipment comprise buildings, office
equipment, motor vehicles, aircraft and communication equipment
and construction in progress.

All property and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
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(13) Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised initially
at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of obligation under the
contract, as determined in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the revenue recognition policy.

(14) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

(15) Repurchase agreements and agreements to resale

Financial assets sold subject to repurchase agreements continue to
be recognised, and are recorded as financial assets as appropriate.
The corresponding liability is included in "financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements". Financial assets held under agreements
to resell are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the corresponding cash paid is recorded as "financial assets
held under resale agreements' as appropriate.

The difference between purchase and sale price is recognised as interest
expense or income in profit or loss over the life of the agreements using
the effective interest method.

or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down
the cost of such assets to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Useful lives Residual value Annual depreciation rates
Buildings 20 - 35 years 0% - 5% 2.77%-5%
Office equipment 3-10years 0% - 5% 9.5%-33%
Motor vehicles 4 -6 years 0% - 5% 16%-25%
Aircraft and communication equipment 4 -20 years 3% - 15% 4.25%-24.25%

Properties in the course of construction for supply of services or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.

Such properties are classified to the appropriate category of property and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(16) Property and equipment - continued

Gain and losses on disposal of property and equipment are
determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These
are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(17) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents refer to short term highly liquid assets,
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(18) Leases
(a) Lease classification

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

(b) Finance lease

When the Group is the lessor under a finance lease, the present
value of the aggregation of the minimum lease payment
receivable from the lessee, unguaranteed residual value and
initial direct costs is recognised as a receivable in "Loans and
advances'. The difference between the gross receivable and
the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned
finance income. Unearned finance income is recognised over
the term of the lease using an interest rate which reflects a
constant rate of return. Contingent rentals are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(c) Operating lease

When the Group is the lessee under an operating lease,
rental expenses are charged in "Operating expenses" in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

When the Group is the lessor under operating leases, the assets
subject to the operating leases are still accounted for as the
Group's assets. Rental income is recognised as "Other income,
net" in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

(19) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment loss, including computer software and
other intangible assets.

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment. These costs are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives with the amortisation
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the useful lives
and amortisation method of intangible assets with finite useful lives.

(20) Gooduwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to

each of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

(21) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount (cash-generating unit), the carrying amount of the
asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately.

(22) Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss when (i) the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation, as a result of past events, (ii) it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, and (jii) a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect is material).

Provisions related with financial guarantee contracts are measured
at similar transaction, historical loss experience and management
adjustment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements and key estimation uncertainty
that the management has made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements and/or in
the next twelve months.

(1) Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment
periodically, unless circumstances indicate possible impairment at
an interim date. In determining whether an impairment loss should
be recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
Group makes judgements as to whether there is any observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease can
be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence
may include observable data indicating that there has been an
adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group, or
national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on assets in the group. Management uses estimates based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio
when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of
future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

(2) Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets carried at amortised cost

The Group determines the impairment of investment securities
according to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. The determination of impairment requires a high
degree of judgment on the part of the management. In making this

5. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Bank are as follows:

judgment, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost,
underlying asset quality of the investee (for example, delinquency
ratio and loss coverage ratio), and the financial health and near-
term business outlook (for example, industry performance and
credit ratings). In determining whether the previously recognised
impairment loss was recovered and should be reversed, the Group
makes judgements as to whether the decrease of the impairment
loss can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor's
credit rating).

(3) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets is determined by using valuation techniques. These include
the use of recent arm's length transactions, discounted cash flow
analysis, and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants. To the extent practical, the Group uses only observable
market data, however, areas such as credit risk of the Group and
the counterparty, volatilities and correlations require management to
make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the estimated fair value of financial instruments.

(4) Held-to-maturity investments

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Group's
management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity as held-to-maturity investments. This classification requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity.
If the Group fails to hold these investments to maturity other than for
specific circumstances (such as selling an insignificant amount close
to maturity), it will be required to reclassify the entire portfolio of held-
to-maturity investments as available-for-sale financial assets.

Income taxes

o
a
-~

Significant estimates are required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group makes
estimates for items of uncertainty taking into account existing taxation
laws and the responses from the government. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such a determination is
made.

Name of company incorggar::oc: Regisﬁ':?f}ﬁﬁg::)l % of interest held Principal business
China Development Bank Capital Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB47,625  100% directly held Equity investment
CDB Leasing Co,, Ltd. Mainland China RMB8,000  88.95% directly held Leasing
China-Africa Development Fund Mainland China RMB20,335 100% indirectly held ~ Fund investment & management
CDB Securities Co., Ltd Mainland China RMB7,370  100% directly held Brokerage and underwriting
Upper Chance Group Limited Hong Kong, China GBP1,584 100% directly held Investment holding

As at 31 December 2013, the Bank directly invests in 13 village banks as subsidiaries (31 December 2012: 13 village banks).
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6. NET INTEREST INCOME

2013 2012
Interest income
Loans and advances to customers 397,642 363,157
Placements with banks and other financial institutions and financial assets held under resale agreements 15,682 7,523
Balances with the central bank and deposits with banks and other financial institutions 11,876 12,561
Investment securities* 4913 3,664
Total 430,113 386,905
Interest expense
Debt securities issued (227,798) (203,380)
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions (12,086) (10,903)
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions (10,921) (11,991)
Due to customers (6,818) (5,343)
Others (1,018) (878)
Total (258,641) (232,495)
Net interest income 171,472 154,410
Interest income included:Identified impaired financial assets 146 136

* Interest income of investment securities includes interest income of available-for-sale financial assets, held-to-maturity investments and debt
securities classified as receivables.

7. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

2013 2012
Fee and commission income
Loan arrangement fee 3,510 2,238
Fiduciary service fee 3,274 2,512
Guarantee and credit commitment fee 3,254 2,057
Consultancy and advisory fee 1,028 1,295
Brokerage fee 88 77
Others 1,783 2,216
Total 12,937 10,395
Fee and commission expense
Banking charges (670) (314)
Commission expense (153) (127)
Total (823) (441)
Net fee and commission income 12114 9,954
8. NET TRADING AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAIN/(LOSSES)
2013 2012
Net gain on foreign exchange derivatives 13,319 2,210
Net gain on financial assets held-for-trading 997 1,720
Net (losses)/gain on interest rate derivatives (1,240) 845
Net gain on other derivatives 4 45
Foreign exchange losses (23,498) (529)

Total (10,418) 4,291
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9. DIVIDEND INCOME

Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss 702 615
Available-for-sale equity investments 294 342
Total 996 957

10. NET GAIN ON INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 1,134 596
Total 1,134 596

11. OTHER INCOME, NET

Rental income, net 4,349 3,737
Others (2,238) (3,275)
Total 2111 462

12. OPERATING EXPENSES

Business tax and surcharges 22,832 20,683
Staff costs 4,566 3,905
Administration expenses 1,313 1,382
Rental expenses 730 622
Depreciation and amortisation 964 641
Supervision fee 450 436
Travel expenses 438 499
Service fees 325 228
Stamp duty and other taxes 274 206
Others 958 1,122
Total 32,850 29,724

13. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON ASSETS

Loans and advances to customers 38,929 58,270
Available-for-sale financial assets 1,142 -
Debt securities classified as receivables 43 (103)
Other assets 187 (92)

Total 40,301 58,075
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax 33,082 34,460
Deferred tax (note 27) (7,188) (14,166)
Total 25,894 20,294

The income tax expense can be reconciled to profit per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

Profit before tax 105,848 83,421
Tax calculated at the statutory rate of 25% 26,462 20,855
Effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries (341) (33)
Non-taxable income (1,195) (893)
Deductible temporary differences not recognised 771 140
Tax effects of expenses not deductible for tax purpose and others 197 225
Total 25,894 20,294

15. CASH AND BALANCES WITH THE CENTRAL BANK

Cash in hand 20 20
Statutory reserve with the central bank 688 649
Balances with the central bank, other than statutory reserve 1) 42,148 90,585
Total 42,856 91,254

(1) Balances with the central bank, other than statutory reserve, are funds placed in the central bank for business, including allocation of business fund, local
clearing, cross-system fund transfer between different places and cash deposit and withdrawal.

16. DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Deposits with:
Domestic banks 338,036 321,493
Other domestic financial institutions 351 347
Overseas banks 64,052 138,136
Total 402,439 459,976

As at 31 December 2013, the restricted deposits with banks and other financial institutions of the Group is amounting to RMB1,349 million (31 December 2012:
RMB1,013 million), mainly guarantee deposits.

17. PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Placements with:
Domestic banks 53,019 45,233
Other domestic financial institutions 34,400 26,200
Overseas banks 50 1,000

Total 87,469 72,433
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets held-for-trading
Government and quasi-government bonds
Debt securities issued by financial institutions
Corporate bonds
Stock and fund
Subtotal

Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss
Equity investments
Wealth management products and others
Subtotal

Total

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised on the consolidated
statement of financial position but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the instruments
and, therefore, do not indicate the Group's exposure to credit or market risks. The fair values of derivative instruments become favorable (assets) or
unfavorable (liabilities) as a result of market fluctuations and foreign exchange rate movements relative to their terms. The aggregated contractual or
notional amounts of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which instruments are favorable or unfavorable, and thus the aggregated
fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate from time to time. The table below provides a detailed breakdown of the contractual

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

4,673 7,354
185 9
20,674 27,192
90 98
25,622 34,653
31,893 28,728
= 357
31,893 29,085
57,515 63,738

or notional amount and the fair values of the Group's derivative financial instruments outstanding at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Contractual/ Fair value Contractual/ Fair value
notional notional
amount Assets  Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
Exchange rate derivatives
Currency swaps(including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 675,858 6,698 (2,735) 469,658 3,517 (2,454)
Other currency derivatives 189,427 826 (121) 202,004 517 (225)
Subtotal 865,285 7,524 (2,856) 671,662 4,034 (2,679)
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps 349,837 6,960 (7,221) 366,627 10,887 (9,739)
Interest rate options 12,840 427 (427) 13,237 778 (778)
Subtotal 362,677 7,387 (7,648) 379,864 11,665 (10,517)
Credit derivatives
Credit default swaps - - - 365 1 -
Other derivatives 42 16 - 42 12 -
Total 1,228,004 14,927 (10,504) 1,051,933 15,712 (13,196)

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

Analysed by type of collateral:

Securities

31 December 2013

346,295

31 December 2012

292,981
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21. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, NET

The composition of loans and advance to customers is as follows:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Loans and advances to customers

- Loans to customers 7,058,003 6,329,935
- Finance lease receivable 69,900 56,488
- Others 20,378 31,155
7,148,281 6,417,578
Less: Allowance for impairment losses
- Individually assessed (14,475) (8,674)
- Collectively assessed (203,838) (172,181)
(218,313) (180,855)
Loans and advances to customers, net 6,929,968 6,236,723
Included:
Finance lease receivable pledged as collateral 14,924 20,571

Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

2013 2012

ol | Cole | gyl ool
At 1 January 8,674 172,181 180,855 9,204 113,686 122,890
Net (reversal)/charge for the year 6,076 32,853 38,929 (278) 58,548 58,270
Transfer-in - 4 4 1 6 7
Write-off (104) = (104) (79) - (179)
Recovery of loans written off 1 - 1 - - -
Unwinding of discount on allowance (117) - (117) (121) - (121)
Foreign exchange differences (55) (1,200) (1,255) 47 (59) (12)
At 31 December 14,475 203,838 218,313 8,674 172,181 180,855

The past due loans and advance to customers by collateral types are set out below:
Past due

31 December 2013 Within 3 months ~ 3-12 months 1-3 years Over 3 years Total
Unsecured loans 719 96 254 13 1,082
Guaranteed loans 1,118 528 80 1,877 3,603
Loans secured by mortgage 3,279 86 438 933 5,025
Pledged loans 3,209 749 226 1,307 5,491
Total 8,325 1,748 998 4,130 15,201
31 December 2012
Unsecured loans 672 8 263 73 1,016
Guaranteed loans 45 43 383 1,023 1,494
Loans secured by mortgage 487 29 1,367 268 2,151
Pledged loans 493 104 1,593 337 2,527
Total 1,697 184 3,606 1,701 7,188

The loans and advances to customers are classified as past-due if the principal or the interest is past due. For the installment repayment loans and
advances to customers, if partial installment repayment is past due, the total balance of the loans and advances is classified as past-due.
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 95,629 80,985
Financial institutions 7,235 2,849
Corporations 33,794 27,059
Others 272 454
Subtotal 136,930 111,347

Equity instruments

at fair value 10,412 10,591
at cost 4,817 4,826
Fund investments - 17
Total 152,159 126,781

As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets included allowance for impairment losses of RMB18,864 million (31
December 2012: RMB17,722 million).

23. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 1,486 -
Corporations 3,898 3,698
Total 5,384 3,698

24. DEBT SECURITIES CLASSIFIED AS RECEIVABLES

Receivable from the MOF - 1,507
Debt securities issued by financial institution 3,060 3,060
Corporate bonds 1,005 2,549
Credit asset-backed security 1,103 703
Wealth management products and others 7,535 2,945
Subtotal 12,703 10,764
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (211) (170)
Total 12,492 10,594

25. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The balance of interest in associates and joint ventures is as follows:

Investment cost 1,597 1,353

Less: Allowance for impairment losses = -

Interest in associates and joint ventures 1,597 1,353
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25. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES - continued

Movements of interest in associates and joint ventures are set out as below:

At 1 January 858 3,930
Addition 244 407
Disposal - (2,984)
At 31 December 1,697 1,353

Particulars of the principal associates and joint ventures of the Group were as follows:

Registered o 8
Name of company capital fl’ (:‘t‘sm;gg
(in million) ¢
Tianjin Eco-City Investment & Mainland China RMB3,000 20% indirectly 20% Land and infrastructure
Development Co., Ltd. held development

40% indirectly Investment management and

CDB Jintai Capital Investment Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB1,250 held 40% aevisory
o .

Beijing Far East Instrument Company Ltd. Mainland China usb34 ESAEIES Y 25% METEE O.f ele_ctromc e
held electrical instruments

China-Africa Xinyin Investment . . 35% indirectly o Investment in nonferrous metals
Management Co., Ltd. MENTEREIET RMB200 held 35% in Africa

o
Longgang Guoan Rural Bank Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB200 35% directly 35% Banking

Shenzhen held
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26. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The net book value of property and equipment consisted of the following:

Cost

At 1 January 2013 6,935 1,201 307 36,016 7,356 51,815
Additions 1,433 405 45 7,586 3,809 13,278
Transfer 8,506 - - - (8,506) -
Disposals (4) (96) (23) (7,211) (6) (7,340)
At 31 December 2013 16,870 1,510 329 36,391 2,653 57,753

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2013 (1,262) (565) (150) (4,095) . (6,072)
Additions (456) (197) 37) (1,855) . (2,545)
Disposals 2 26 11 1,575 - 1,614
At 31 December 2013 (1,716) (736) (176) (4,375) - (7,003)

Net book value

At 31 December 2013 15,154 774 153 32,016 2,653 50,750

At 1 January 2013 5,673 636 157 31,921 7,356 45,743

Cost

At 1 January 2012 5,763 1,005 261 25,235 7,741 40,005
Additions 213 225 71 11,465 1,385 13,309
Transfer 1,183 - - - (1,183) -
Disposals (224) (29) (25) (684) (537) (1,499)
At 31 December 2012 6,935 1,201 307 36,016 7,356 51,815

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2012 1,072) (433) (138) (2,502) - (4,145)
Additions (243) (150) (29) (1,601) - (2,023)
Disposals 53 18 17 8 - 96
At 31 December 2012 (1,.262) (565) (150) (4,005) . (6,072)

Net book value

At 31 December 2012 5,673 636 157 31,921 7,356 45,743

At 1 January 2012 4,691 572 123 22,733 7,741 35,860

27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Deferred tax assets 40,722 33,189

Deferred tax liabilities (109) (178)

Total 40,613 33,011
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27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - continued

(1) The movements of the deferred income tax asset and liability account are as follows:

At 1 January 33,011 19,197
Credit to profit or loss 7,188 14,166
Charge to other comprehensive income 414 (351)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - (1)
At 31 December 40,613 33,011

(2) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following items:

As at 31 December 2013 As at 31 December 2012

Deferred tax assets
Allowance for impaired loans 143,046 35,761 113,443 28,361
Allowance for impaired available-for-sale financial assets 17,932 4,483 16,795 4,198
Provision for losses 3,771 943 3,355 839
Allowance for other impaired assets 1,558 389 2,222 556
Others 1,670 413 2,024 504

Fair value changes of financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (4.949) (1.237) (2.627) (657)
Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets (122) (30) (2,447) 612)
Total 162,906 40,722 132,765 33,189
Deferred tax liabilities
Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets = = 380 95
Fair vglue changes of financial assets at fair value through ) (24) ©27) (232)
profit or loss
Others (659) (85) (324) (41)

Total (755) (109) (871) (178)
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28. OTHER ASSETS

Interest receivable 27,829 26,300
Prepayment for leasing equipment 5,062 5,603
Land use rights 2,225 1,768
Prepayment to vendors 2,215 5139
Goodwill (1) 1,246 1,248
The continuing involvement of loan-based securitization assets 703 703
Other intangible assets 524 453
Security trading deposits 361 234
Prepayment for equity investment 263 10
Deferred assets 124 126
Investment Property 113 118
Receivable from sales of debt securities 5 21,379
Others 2,215 2,477
Total 42,885 65,558
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (220) (139)
Other assets, net 42,665 65,419

(1) The goodwill is mainly attributable to CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. and CDB Securities Co., Ltd. As at 31 December 2013, the goodwill attributable to CDB Leasing Co., Ltd.
and CDB Securities Co., Ltd. is RMB560 million and RMB629 million respectively. At the end of 2013, the Group performed goodwill impairment test based on cashflow
forecast of subsidiaries. No impairment losses on goodwill were recognised.

29. DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Deposits from:
Domestic banks 217,238 275,841
Other domestic financial institutions 102,198 105,755
Overseas banks 91,484 87,697
Total 410,920 469,293

30. BORROWINGS FROM GOVERNMENTS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Borrowings from:

Domestic banks and other financial institutions 421,575 399,551
Foreign banks and other financial institutions 21,524 13,765
Foreign banks - import credit 9,472 10,492
Foreign governments 2,538 2,837
Total 455,109 426,645

31. PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS

Placements from:
Overseas banks 33,311 20,058
Domestic banks 2,305 10,722

Total 35,616 30,780
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32. FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Analysed by type of collateral:

Securities 17,760 5,620
Finance lease receivable 7,330 11,448
Total 25,090 17,068

33. DUE TO CUSTOMERS

Demand deposits 491,836 455,765
Term deposits 80,891 57,946
Guarantee deposits 8,895 5,637
Certificates of deposit issued in Hong Kong 102,560 89,016
Total 684,182 608,364

34. DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

Debt securities issued (1) 5,721,077 5,182,608
Subordinated bonds issued (2) 119,513 119,589
Total 5,840,590 5,302,197

(1) Debt securities issued

31 December 2013

RMB bonds issued in domestic market 2001-2013 2014-2063 2.65-6.05 5,687,073
RMB bonds issued in Hong Kong 2012-2013 2015-2032 2.69-4.50 10,481
Foreign currency bonds issued in domestic market 2013 2018 1.49 5,253
Foreign currency bonds issued in overseas market 2004-2005 2014-2015 4.75-5.00 9,730
Debt securities issued, gross 5,712,537
Add: USD bills issued by subsidiary 2012 2017-2022 2.00-3.25 9,050
Less: Debt securities purchased by subsidiaries (510)
Debt securities issued, net 5,721,077

31 December 2012

RMB bonds issued in domestic market 2001-2012 2013-2062 2.65-5.50 5,148,238
RMB bonds issued in Hong Kong 2010-2012 2013-2032 2.70-4.30 10,986
Foreign currency bonds issued in domestic market 2006-2010 2013 1.09-1.63 4,404
Foreign currency bonds issued in overseas market 2004-2005 2014-2015 4.75-5.00 10,013
Debt securities issued, gross 5,173,641
Add: USD bills issued by subsidiary 2012 2017-2022 2.00-3.25 9,337
Less: Debt securities purchased by subsidiaries (370)

Debt securities issued, net 5,182,608




34. DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED - continued

(1) Debt securities issued - continued
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As at 31 December 2013, RMB financial bonds issued in domestic market with provisions allowing the bond holders to redeem them prior to
the bonds' maturity amounted to RMB65,000 million (31 December 2012: RMB98,920million). If the bond holders choose not to exercise their
redemption option on a specified redemption date, the Bank is obligated to pay higher interest rates on some of the bonds. None of the other

bonds are subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities.

As at 31 December 2013, RMB financial bonds issued in domestic market amounted to RMB61,200 million (31 December 2012: RMB91,200
million). The bond holders could convert part or all of securities at face value to the certain securities on the arranged date or within the valid term

with the same effective date and maturity.

(2) Subordinated bonds issued

31 December 2013

Issuance date Maturity date Interest rate range(%) Amount

RMB subordinated bonds issued in domestic market 2004-2012 2019-2062 3.82-6.05 119,513
31 December 2012

Issuance date Maturity date  Interest rate range(%) Amount

RMB subordinated bonds issued in domestic market 2004-2012 2019-2062 3.82-6.05 119,589

Subordinated debts have provisions which allow the Bank to redeem them prior to maturity. If the Bank chooses not to exercise its redemption
option on a specified date, it is obligated to pay higher interest rates on the debts.

35. OTHER LIABILITIES

Interest payable

Business tax and surcharges payable

Deferred government subsidies for education loans
Lease security deposit

Provision for losses on financial guarantees

Purchase payable to leasing equipment vendor
Accrued staff cost

Payable for security purchases on behalf of customers
Advances received for lease projects

The continuing involvement of loan-based securitization liabilities
Advance received for fee and commission

Payable to fiduciary business customers

Others

Total

36. SHARE CAPITAL

The MOF

Huijin

National Council for Social Security Fund
Total

37. INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE

At 1 January

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
Net gain reclassified to profit or loss on disposal

Less: Deferred income taxes

At 31 December

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

103,515 92,344
7,920 7,493
7,329 5,493
3,967 2,144
2,564 2,296
1,664 5,842
1414 1,378
1212 850

808 1,324
703 703

665 689

147 269
6,321 6,363
138,229 127,188

31 December 2012/31 December 2013

153,908
146,092

6,711

306,711

2013 2012
7,262 6,245
(1,851) 1,510
(115) (142)
424 (351)
5,720 7,262
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38. RESERVES

(1) Statutory and general surplus reserve

According to relevant laws and regulations, the Bank is required to appropriate 10% of net profit, as reported in its statutory financial statements,
to statutory surplus reserve. When statutory surplus reserve accounts for more than 50% of the Bank's capital, the Bank would not be required to
further appropriate statutory surplus reserve. Upon approval from Shareholders' General Meeting, the statutory surplus reserve appropriated by
the Bank can be used to supplement any losses of the Bank or to contribute to the Bank's capital, with the remaining balance being no less than
25% of share capital. In addition, the Bank appropriates general surplus reserve as approved in the Shareholders' General Meeting.

(2) General reserve

The Bank
Subsidiaries
Total

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

96,460 68,484
1,061 222
97,521 68,706

Pursuant to circulars issued by the MOF in 2012, the Bank is required to maintain adequate reserves for unforeseeable risks and future losses.
Therefore, a general banking reserve has been established by the Bank through appropriation from retained earnings. In principle, the general
banking reserve balance should not be lower than 1.5% of the ending balance of gross risk-bearing assets at year end, and should be set aside

within a transitional period of five years.

Pursuant to the relevant regulatory requirements in the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate certain amounts of its net profit

as general reserve.

39. RETAINED EARNINGS

At 1 January

Add: Net profit

Less: Appropriation to surplus reserve
Appropriation to general reserve
Dividends

At 31 December

40. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances:

Cash
Disposable balances with the central bank
Balances with an original maturity of less than three months:
- Financial assets held under resale agreements
- Deposits with banks and other financial institutions
- Placements with banks and other financial institutions
Security trading deposits
Total

31 December 2013 31 December 2012(restated)

90,801 67,925
79,621 62,921
(13,506) (10,375)
(28,815) (18,635)
(14,956) (11,035)
113,145 90,801

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

20 20
42,148 90,585
330,411 264,465
137,079 178,461
36,010 48,633
361 234
546,029 582,298




41. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group reviews the internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Segment information is presented on the same
basis as the Group's management and internal reporting.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an arm's
length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated
in head office. Income and expenses directly associated with each
segment are included in determining operating segment performance.

In accordance with IFRS 8, the Group has the following operating
segments: banking, equity investment, leasing and securities.

The Group's main operating segments are set out below:

(1) Banking operations
This segment consists of corporate banking, debt issuance and
treasury operations. The corporate banking operations consist
of lending, deposits, agency services, consulting and advisory
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services, cash management, remittance and settlement, custody and
guarantee services. Debt issuance is the main source of funding to
corporate banking operations. The treasury operations consist of
money market transactions, foreign exchange transactions, bond
market transactions, customer-based interest rate and foreign
exchange derivative tfransactions and asset and liability management.

(2) Equity investment

This segment consists of equity investment activities.
(3) Leasing operations
This segment consists of finance lease and operating lease business.

(4) Securities operations

This segment consists of security brokerage, proprietary trading and
underwriting operations.

Equity Securities  Consolidation
2013 Banking investment Leasing operations and adjustments Total
Interest income 421,757 780 6,868 200 508 430,113
Interest expense (252,053) (328) (5,700) (183) (377) (258,641)
Net interest income 169,704 452 1,168 17 131 171,472
Include: Net interest income from customers 169,525 433 1,497 17 - 171,472
Inter-segment net interest income/(expenses) 179 19 (329) - 131 -
Net fee and commission income 11,296 528 (75) 470 (105) 12,114
Include: Net fee and commission from customers 11,128 528 (15) 473 - 12,114
Inter-segment net fee and commission 168 - (60) ©)) (105) -
Other income/(expense), net (10,764) 2,981 2,285 541 370 (4,587)
Operating expenses and Impairment losses on assets (69,874) (1,930) (879) (437) (31) (73,151)
Profit before income tax 100,362 2,031 2,499 591 365 105,848
Other information:
Depreciation and amortisation 878 28 1,988 28 - 2,922
Capital expenditure 6,444 301 8,396 47 - 15,188
Impairment losses on assets 38,468 1,337 440 - 56 40,301
31 December 2013
Total assets 8,027,108 73,492 142,379 17,693 (73,434) 8,187,238
Total liabilities 7,479,774 12,104 130,250 9,424 (5,549) 7,626,003
2013
Total net income from external customers*
Mainland China 141,837 904 1,972 490 - 145,203
Hong Kong 140 29 55 - - 224
Other countries/jurisdictions 38,676 28 (545) - - 38,159
Total 180,653 961 1,482 490 - 183,586
31 December 2013
Non-current assets**
Mainland China 21,948 276 7,404 220 - 29,848
Hong Kong 61 59 - - - 120
Other countries/jurisdictions - - 25,354 - - 25,354
Total 22,009 335 32,758 220 - 55,322
Interest in associates and joint ventures
Mainland China 101 1,437 - - - 1,538
Hong Kong - - - - - -
Other countries/jurisdictions - 59 - - - 59
Total 101 1,496 - - - 1,597
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41. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

(4) Securities operations - continued

2012(restated)
Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income

Include: Net interest income from customers

Inter-segment net interest income/(expenses)

Net fee and commission income

Include: Net fee and commission from customers

Inter-segment net fee and commission

Other income/(expense), net

Operating expenses and Impairment losses on assets

Profit before income tax

Other information:
Depreciation and amortisation
Capital expenditure
Impairment losses on assets
31 December 2012

Total assets

Total liabilities

2012

Total net income from external customers™
Mainland China

Hong Kong

Other countries/jurisdictions
Total

31 December 2012
Non-current assets**
Mainland China

Hong Kong

Other countries/jurisdictions
Total

Interest in associates and joint ventures
Mainland China

Hong Kong

Other countries/jurisdictions

Total

Equity Securities Consolidation

Banking investment Leasing operations and adjustments Total
380,006 468 5,707 178 546 386,905
(226,218) (A71) (5,569) (108) (429)  (232,495)
153,788 297 138 70 117 154,410
153,673 291 376 70 - 154,410
115 6 (238) - 17 -
9,365 233 (59) 497 (82 9,954
9,230 233 8) 499 - 9,954
135 - (51) @) 82) -
2,813 1,608 2,067 424 (56) 6,856
(86,689) (492) (521) (358) 261 (87,799)
79,277 1,646 1,625 633 240 83,421
561 31 1,621 18 - 2,231
4,486 12 10,821 31 - 15,350
58,131 17 125 - (198) 58,075
7,374,837 65,824 140,824 15,092 (76,983) 7,519,594
6,886,937 6,224 130,837 7,120 (9,375) 7,021,743
154,622 369 399 569 - 155,959
29 23 143 - - 195

8,252 132 (174) - - 8,210
162,903 524 368 569 - 164,364
19,541 317 4,167 127 - 24,152
63 62 - - - 125

- - 28,469 - - 28,469

19,604 379 32,636 127 - 52,746

89 1,263 - - - 1,352

- 1 - - - 1

89 1,264 - - - 1,353

* Total net income from customers is generated from outside the Group, including net interest income, net fee and commission income from customers.

** Non-current assets include property and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill and other assets.
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42. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial
or operational decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control.

(1) Ministry of Finance
As at 31 December 2013, the MOF owned a 50.18% of the issued share capital of the Bank (31 December 2012: 50.18%).
The Group enters into transactions with the MOF in its ordinary course of business, including subscription and redemption of treasury bonds as

well as a receivable from the MOF. Details of transactions with the MOF are as follows:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Treasury bonds issued by the MOF 26,635 20,653
Receivable from the MOF, including accrued interest - 1,718
Interest rate range (%)
Treasury bonds issued by the MOF 2.38-4.32 2.15-4.48
Receivable from the MOF 3 3
2013 2012
Interest income 706 358
Fee and commission income 12 7
Net trading gain 16 39
(2) Huijin

Huijin is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation, with a registered capital of RMB828,209 million in Beijing. lts principal
activities are equity investments as authorised by the State Council without engaging in other commercial operations. Huijin exercises the rights
and fulfills the obligations as an investor of the Bank on behalf of the PRC Government.

As at 31 December 2013, Huijin owned a 47.63% of the issued share capital of the Bank (31 December 2012: 47.63%).

Transaction between the Group and Huijin are carried out in ordinary course of business. Details of investment in bonds issued by Huijin are as

follows:

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Available-for-sale financial assets 6,993 7,521
Interest rate range (%) 3.14-4.2 3.14-4.2

2013 2012
Interest income 268 271

Net trading gain

1

(3) Transaction with subsidiaries

Included in the following captions of the Bank's statement of financial position are balances with subsidiaries.

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Loans and advances to customers, net 7,923 6,163
Due to customers 5,021 6,497
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 1,077 988
Debt securities issued 510 370
Derivative financial assets 390 692
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 30 33
Other assets

- Interest receivable 33 23

- Other receivables 20 61
Other liabilities

- Interest payable 21 3
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42. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

(3) Transaction with subsidiaries - continued

Included in the following captions of the Bank's statement of profit or loss are transactions with subsidiaries.

2013 2012
Interest income 325 254
Interest expense (37) (44)
Fee and commission income 115 70

Fee and commission expense

(16)

“

43.

Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries are carried out on general commercial terms in ordinary course of business. All transactions
or balances with subsidiaries are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.
Transactions with associates and joint ventures

The Group's transactions and balances with associates and joint ventures for the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 were insignificant.

Transactions with other government-related entities

Management considers that transactions with other government related entities are activities conducted in the ordinary course of business,
and that the dealings of the Group have not been significantly or unduly affected by the fact that the Group and those entities are government
related. The Group has also established pricing policies for products and services and such pricing policies do not depend on whether or not
the customers are government related entities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Legal proceedings

As at 31 December 2013, the Group was involved in certain lawsuits arising from its normal business operations. After consulting legal
professionals, management of the Group believes that the ultimate outcome of these lawsuits will not have a material impact on the financial

position and operating result of the Group.

(2) Capital commitments

Capital commitment in respect of equity investments

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

- authorised but not contracted for 3,156 3,093

- contracted but not provided for 42,252 28,040
Capital commitment in respect of property and equipment

- authorised but not contracted for 43 1,036

- contracted but not provided for 11,372 20,127
Total 56,823 52,296

(3) Credit commitments

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Loan commitments 1,917,987 1,948,220
Letters of guarantee issued 78,361 119,189
Bank bill acceptance 33,010 16,856
Letters of credit issued 18,702 11,889
Total 2,048,060 2,096,154

(4) Operating lease commitments

At the end of each reporting period, the Group as lessee has the following non-cancelable operating lease commitments:

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Within one year 513 454
After one year but within two years 302 277
After two years but within three years 165 163
After three years 89 265
Total 1,069 1,159
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43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS - continued

®)

Finance lease commitments

At the end of each reporting period, the Group as lessor has the following non-cancelable finance lease commitments:

Contractual amount

(6)

Collateral

(a) Assets pledged

31 December 2013
4,106

31 December 2012
4,725

The carrying amount of assets pledged as collateral under repurchase agreement at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

Securities

Finance lease receivable
Total

44,

(1

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

19,814 6,434
11,703 13,003
31,517 19,437

As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of financial assets sold under repurchase agreements by the Group was RMB25,090 million (2012:
RMB17,068 million). All repurchase agreements are due within 5 years from the effective date of these agreements.

(b) Collateral accepted

The Group has no cash and securities received as collateral can be resold or re-pledged in connection with purchase of assets under resale
agreements and security lending business at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Strategies adopted in managing financial risks

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, identification, monitoring and
reporting of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk
is core to the financial business of the Group, and operational risks
are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group's
aim is, therefore, to achieve an appropriate balance between risk
and return and minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

The Group raises funds primarily through the issuance of debts with
different maturities at both fixed and floating rates, and seeks to
eamn interest margins by investing these funds in State medium- to
long-term lending projects in infrastructure sectors, basic industries
and pillar industries. With the basic saving and lending interest rate
regulated by the central bank, and debt issuing rates fluctuating,
the Group seeks to increase its net interest margins by issuing
different varieties of bonds and reducing its cost of funding to the
extent possible.

The Group carries out a range of vanilla derivative financial
instruments transactions, including currency forward, currency and
interest rate swaps, interest rate floor options to meet the needs
of risk management as well as the needs of its customers. The
Group's risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse risk, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice. The most important types of
financial risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

(2) Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk which is the risk that a
customer or counterparty will cause a financial loss for the Group by
failing to discharge an obligation or falling in its credit rating. Credit
risk is the most important risk for the Group's business, management
therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. Credit
exposures arise principally in lending activities that lead to loans and
advances, and investment activities that bring debt securities and
derivatives into the Group's asset portfolio. There is also credit risk in
off-balance sheet financial instruments, such as loan commitments
and financial guarantees.

Following the internal credit rating directives and guidelines issued
by the CBRC, and considering its unique business features, the
Group establishes a credit rating framework including credit rating
methodologies, policies, procedures, control management, data
collection and IT supporting. This is a two dimensional risk rating
framework that assesses both customer credit rating based on
the probability of default and the project credit rating based on
the estimated loss given default. To ensure the accuracy and
completeness of rating results, the Group also established internal
guidelines for country rating, sovereign rating, local government
rating, district rating and industry rating.

In 2013, there is no material change to the Group's risk management
strategy and approach.

(@) Credit risk measurement
(i) Loans and advances

The Group measures and manages the credit quality of
loans and advances based on the "Guiding Principles on the
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
(2) Creditrisk - continued
(@) Credit risk measurement - continued

(i) Loans and advances - continued

Classification of Loan Risk Management" issued by the CBRC,
which requires banks to classify loans into the following five
grades: "pass", "special-mention", "substandard", "doubtful"
and "loss", among which loans classified in the "substandard",
"doubtful" and "loss" grades are regarded as non-performing

loans.

e 'pass": Borrowers can honour the terms of their loans.
There is no reason to doubt their ability to repay principal
and interest in full on a timely basis.

* 'special-mention": Borrowers are able to service their loans
currently, although repayment may be adversely affected
by specific factors.

* 'substandard": Borrowers' abilities to service their loans are
in question as they cannot rely entirely on normal business
revenue to repay principal and interest. Losses may occur
even when collateral or guarantees are invoked.

* "doubtful': Borrowers cannot repay principal and interest in
full and significant losses will need to be recognised even
when collateral or guarantees are invoked.

* 'loss" Only a small portion or no principal and interest
can be recovered after taking all possible measures and
exhausting all legal remedies.

The Group uses risk based methodology to evaluate the quality
of loan assets. The classification methodology takes into
consideration of different factors including core definition, credit
rating and significant events. The classification is a leverage of
quantitative and qualitative factors, including various financial
factors, non-financial factors, industrial and regional differences,
as well as the Bank's management ability. The Group reviews
its credit assets on a timely basis, and such assets are
centrally monitored by the Loan Management Department
and International Financial Department, and reported to
management for approval.

(i) Debt securities and derivatives

For debt securities, the Group manages the credit risk exposure
by using its internal rating system, and also taking external
ratings such as Standard & Poor's rating or their equivalents into
account. Investments in debt securities are viewed as a way to
gain a better credit quality mapping and, at the same time, to
maintain a readily available source of funding to meet funding
requirements. The derivative credit risk exposure is managed
as part of the overall lending limits set for customers.

(i) Loan commitments, letters of guarantee issued, letters of
credit issued and bank bill acceptance

For loan commitments, letters of guarantee issued, letters of
credit issued and bank bill acceptance, the Group generally
manages the credit risk using the five-grade system and its
internal credit rating system in the same way as it manages
loans and advances.

Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group manages limits and controls concentrations of

credit risk wherever they are identifiable, in particular, to individual
counterparties and groups, and to industries and geographical
regions.

The Group has processed in place the credit limit management
framework to assess the levels of credit risk it undertakes in relation to
single borrowers and group clients, to allocate the economic capital
for industries and branches, and also to set the appropriate credit limit
by country. Such risks are monitored periodically and are subject to
review at the Governors' Meeting of Risk Management.

The exposure to any one customer is further restricted by sub-limits
covering on and off-balance sheet exposures, and daily delivery risk
limits in relation to the trading and non-trading portfolio of treasury
business. Actual exposures are monitored against limits regularly.

To manage its credit risk, the Group applies rigorous underwriting
procedures to each loan application and has developed a disciplined
credit risk management process. Exposure to credit risk is managed
through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential
borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations.
Exposure to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining collateral
and guarantees.

Other specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below.

(i) Collateral

The Group employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate
credit risk. The most traditional of these is the taking of collateral for
advances, which is common practice. The Group has implemented
guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit
risk mitigation, and reviews the valuation of collateral periodically.

The principal collateral types are charges over rights and business
assets such as toll collection rights, real estate, land use rights, equity
securities, cash deposits and machinery.

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and
advances is determined by the nature of the instrument. Debt
securities are generally unsecured with the exception of asset backed
securities and similar instruments, which are secured by pools of
financial assets.

(i) Credit related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds
are available to a customer as required. Guarantees and letters of
credit, which represent irrevocable assurance that the Group will make
payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations
to third parties, carry the same credit risk as loans. In some cases,
guarantee deposits are received by the Group to lessen the credit
risks related to certain of these commitments provided by the Group.
The guarantee deposit which is a certain percentage of the notional
amount of the guarantee and letters of credit and other credit related
commitments is determined by the creditworthiness of the customer.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of
authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, bank bill
acceptance, guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit
risk on commitments to extend credit, the Group is potentially
exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused commitments.



44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
(2) Creditrisk - continued
(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies - continued
(ii) Credit related commitments - continued

However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total
unused commitments since most commitments to extend
credit are contingent upon customers maintaining their level
of creditworthiness. The Group monitors the term to maturity
of credit commitments because longer-term commitments
generally have a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term
commitments.

(c) Impairment and provisioning policies

The impairment allowance shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position at year end is derived from asset
quality grading mentioned in Note 44.(2)(a)(i), which assists
management to determine whether objective evidence of
impairment exists under IAS 39, based on the principles set out
in Note 3.(10)(b).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group's policy requires the review of individual financial assets
that are above materiality thresholds at least quarterly or more regularly
when individual circumstances require. Impairment allowances on
individually assessed accounts are determined by an evaluation of the
incurred loss at balance-sheet date on a case-by-case basis and are
applied to all individually significant accounts. The assessment normally
encompasses collateral held and the anticipated receipts for that
individual account.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for: (i)
portfolios of assets that are individually below materiality thresholds;
and (i) losses that have been incurred but have not yet been identified,
by using the available historical experience, experienced judgment and
statistical techniques.

(d) Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

Credit risk exposures relating to financial assets are as follows:
Balances with the central bank

Deposits with banks and other financial institutions
Placements with banks and other financial statements
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial assets

Financial assets held under resale agreements

Loans and advances to customers, net
Available-for-sale financial assets

Held-to-maturity investments

Debt securities classified as receivables

Other financial assets

Subtotal

Credit risk exposures relating to credit commitments are as follows:

Loan commitments

Letters of guarantee issued
Bank bill acceptance
Letters of credit issued
Subtotal

Total

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

42,836 91,234
402,439 459,976
87,469 72,433
25,632 34,912
14,927 15,712
346,295 292,981
6,929,968 6,236,723
136,930 111,347
5,384 3,698
12,492 10,594
36,021 56,994
8,040,293 7,386,604
1,917,987 1,948,220
78,361 119,189
33,010 16,856
18,702 11,889
2,048,060 2,096,154
10,088,353 9,482,758

The above table represents a worst case scenario of credit risk exposure to the Group at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, without
taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For on-balance sheet assets, the exposures set out above are
based on net carrying amounts as reported in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
(2) Creditrisk - continued

(e) Loans and advances to customers

The gross amount of loans and advances to customers by types of collateral and maturity is as follows:

Within 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
As at 31 December 2013
Unsecured loans 207,699 346,400 1,272,955 1,827,054
Guaranteed loans 186,078 205,598 605,096 996,772
Loans secured by mortgage 45,407 223974 774,773 1,044,154
Pledged loans 37,822 101,473 3,141,006 3,280,301
Total 477,006 877,445 5,793,830 7,148,281
As at 31 December 2012
Unsecured loans 121,178 326,897 1,275,898 1,723,973
Guaranteed loans 103,881 198,935 501,379 804,195
Loans secured by mortgage 52,536 150,254 640,870 843,660
Pledged loans 17,465 84,020 2,944,265 3,045,750
Total 295,060 760,106 5,362,412 6,417,578

Distribution of loans and advances to customers in terms of credit quality is as follows:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Neither past due nor impaired (i) 7,112,090 6,396,918

Past due but not impaired (i) 1,607 1,264

Impaired (iii) 34,584 19,396

Total 7,148,281 6,417,578
Less: allowance for impairment losses

- Individually assessed (14,475) (8,674)

- Collectively assessed (203,838) (172,181)

Total (218,313) (180,855)

Loans and advances to customers, net 6,929,968 6,236,723

(i) Loans and advances to customers neither past due nor impaired

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances to customers that were neither past due nor impaired can be assessed with reference
to the asset quality grading system adopted by the Group.

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Pass grade 6,390,617 5,713,810
Special-mention grade 721,473 683,108
Total 7,112,090 6,396,918

(i) Loans and advances to customers past due but not impaired

In general, past due of less than 90 days for loans and advances to customers does not necessarily indicate impairment, unless other
information is available to indicate the contrary. The past-due loans of RMB1,353 million (2012: RMB1,022 million) were individually assessed
and no impairment was identified. Over 90 days past-due student loans totalling RMB254 million (2012: RMB242 million) were not identified
as impaired. In accordance with relevant policy requirements, certain losses from student loans could be compensated by government
subsidies. Therefore, these past-due student loans were not identified as impaired loans.
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(2) Creditrisk - continued
(e) Loans and advances to customers - continued

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(i) Loans and advances to customers past due but not impaired - continued

The gross amount of loans and advances to customers that were past due but not impaired is as follows:

Past due up to 90 days
Past due over 90 days

Total

Fair value of collaterals

(i) Loans and advances to customers impaired

Impaired loans and advances to customers are listed below:

Impaired loans and advances to customers

Less: individually assessed impairment allowance
Total

Fair value of collaterals

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

1,353 1,022
2564 242
1,607 1,264
673 418

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

34,584 19,396
(14,475) (8,674)
20,109 10,722
12,280 6,790

All impaired loans are individually assessed and the impairment allowance is provided accordingly.

(iv) Restructured loans and advances to customers renegotiated

Restructured loans and advances to customers are loans that have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower's financial position.
Restructuring policies are based on indicators or criteria which, in the judgment of management, indicate that payment will most likely
continue. These policies are kept under continuous review. All restructured loans are subject to a surveillance period of six months. During
the surveillance period, restructured loans remain as non-performing loans. After the surveillance period, restructured loans will not be
classified as non-performing loans upon review if certain criteria are met. As at 31 December 2013, the total renegotiated loans amounted to

RMB6,874 million (31 December 2012: RMB6,294 million).

(f) Investment in debt securities

Distribution of debt securities in terms of credit quality is as follows:

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Neither past due nor impaired (i) 180,050 160,419
Impaired (i) 499 302
Total 180,549 160,721
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (211) (170)
Carrying amount of debt securities 180,338 160,551
(i) Debt securities neither past due nor impaired
31 December 2013

Financial assets at Available-for- Held-to- Debt securities
fair value through sale financial maturity classified as Total

profit or loss assets investments receivables

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 4,673 95,629 1,486 - 101,788
Financial institutions 185 7,235 - 3,060 10,480
Corporations 20,674 33,794 3,898 706 59,072
Credit asset-backed security - - - 1,103 1,103
Wealth management products and others - 272 - 7,335 7,607
Total 25,532 136,930 5,384 12,204 180,050
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

(2) Credit risk - continued
(f) Investment in debt securities - continued

(i) Debt securities neither past due nor impaired - continued

31 December 2012
Held-to-

maturity
investments

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 7,354 80,985 - - 88,339
Financial institutions 9 2,849 - 3,060 5918
Corporations 27,192 27,059 3,698 2,247 60,196
Receivable from the MOF - - - 1,507 1,507
Credit asset-backed security - - - 703 703
Wealth management products and others 357 454 - 2,945 3,756
Total 34912 111,347 3,698 10,462 160,419

(ii) Debt securities impaired

Debt securities issued by:

Corporations 299 299
Wealth management products and others 200 200
Total 499 499

Debt securities issued by:

Corporations 302 302

Wealth management products and others - -

Total 302 302




44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

(2) Creditrisk - continued

(f) Investment in debt securities - continued

Debt securities analysed by credit rating from independent rating agencies is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2013
Debt securities issued by:
Governments and quasi-governments
Financial institutions
Corporations
Credit asset-backed security
Wealth management products and others
Total
As at 31 December 2012
Debt securities issued by:
Governments and quasi-governments
Financial institutions
Corporations
Receivable from the MOF
Credit asset-backed security
Wealth management products and others
Total

(1) The unrated debt securities issued by PRC Government and PRC government bodies are from issuers such as MOF, central bank, PRC

policy banks and Huijin.

(2) The other unrated debt securities mainly represent subordinated bonds issued by insurance companies, principal guaranteed wealth

Unrated
MA A v Cmeel  otew  Tom
- - - - 101,788 - 101,788
7,084 320 - - - 3,076 10,480
47,008 9,265 458 - - 2,435 59,166
- - - - - 1,103 1,103
- - - - - 7,801 7,801
54,092 9,585 458 - 101,788 14,415 180,338
2,264 - - - 86,075 - 88,339
2,196 594 - - - 3,128 5918
47,023 5,722 115 - - 7,468 60,328
- - - - 1,507 - 1,507
- - - - - 703 703
209 245 - - - 3,302 3,756
51,692 6,561 115 - 87,582 14,601 160,551

management products issued by banks and private placement notes (PPN).

(g) Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(i) Financial assets by geographical distribution

Balances with the central bank

Deposits with banks and other financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative financial assets

Financial assets held under resale agreements

Loans and advances to customers, net
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity investments

Debt securities classified as receivables
Other financial assets

As at 31 December 2013

As at 31 December 2012

Eastern China includes Beijing, Liaoning, Hebei, Tianjin, Shandong, Shanghai, Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Fujian, Guangdong, Hainan, Dalian,
Shenzhen, Qingdao, Ningbo, Suzhou and Xiamen.

Eastern China  Central China  Western China Overseas Total
28,344 9,031 5,461 - 42,836
334,890 921 1,176 65,452 402,439
85,163 1,383 873 50 87,469
23,483 1,258 791 - 25,5632
9,995 536 213 4,183 14,927
309,003 22,391 14,901 - 346,295
2,774,696 1,361,180 1,714,378 1,079,714 6,929,968
131,566 2,816 2,548 - 136,930
4,884 - 500 - 5,384
10,602 250 1,490 150 12,492
20,689 4,398 7,300 3,634 36,021
3,733,315 1,404,164 1,749,631 1,153,183 8,040,293
3,405,426 1,257,110 1,539,913 1,184,155 7,386,604

Central China includes Jilin, Heilongjiang, Shanxi, Henan, Hubei, Anhui, Hunan and Jiangxi.

Western China includes Xinjiang, Tibet, Gansu, Qinghai, Ningxia, Inner Mongolia, Shaanxi, Sichuan, Chongging, Guizhou, Yunnan and

Guangxi.

Overseas refers to regions outside Mainland China, including Hong Kong and other countries and jurisdictions.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

(2) Creditrisk - continued

(g) Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure - continued

(i) Financial assets by customer's industry distribution

Loans and advances to customers

Road transportation

Water conservation, environmental protection and public utilities

Electric power, heating and water production and supply
Petroleum, petrochemical and chemical industry
Manufacturing industry

Railway transportation

Mining industry

Other transportation

Finance

Urban public transportation

Education

Telecommunication and other information transmission service
Others

Total

Less: allowance for impairment losses

Loans and advances, net

Financial assets other than loans and advances to customers

As at 31 December 2013

Balances with the central bank

Deposits with banks and other financial institutions
Placements with banks and other financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial assets

Financial assets held under resale agreements
Available-for-sale financial assets

Held-to-maturity investments

Debt securities classified as receivables

Other financial assets

Total

As at 31 December 2012

Balances with the central bank

Deposits with banks and other financial institutions
Placements with banks and other financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial assets

Financial assets held under resale agreements
Available-for-sale financial assets

Held-to-maturity investments

Debt securities classified as receivables

Other financial assets

Total

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Amount % Amount %
1,244,814 17 1,122,720 17
1,114,194 16 1,066,421 17

856,013 12 819,600 13

555,182 8 528,600 8

568,975 8 516,018 8

541,062 8 451,766 7

352,822 5 312,954 5

212,040 3 200,969 3

189,628 3 189,320 3

213,351 3 166,384 2

110,957 2 113,165 2

92,083 1 104,308 2
1,097,160 14 825,363 13
7,148,281 100 6,417,578 100
(218,313) (180,855)
6,929,968 6,236,723
Gov_ernment and . Fipar:lcial Corporation Total
quasi-government institutions and others

42,836 - - 42,836

- 402,439 - 402,439

= 87,469 = 87,469

4,673 185 20,674 25,632
6,370 5317 3,240 14,927
= 345,338 957 346,295
95,629 7,235 34,066 136,930
1,486 - 3,898 5,384

= 3,060 9,432 12,492
1,406 6,135 28,480 36,021
152,400 857,178 100,747 1,110,325
90,979 255 - 91,234
- 459,976 - 459,976

- 72,433 - 72,433

7,354 366 27,192 34,912
3,958 5,090 6,664 15,712
- 292,851 130 292,981
80,985 2,849 27,513 111,347
- - 3,698 3,698

1,507 6,005 3,082 10,594
5,338 23,727 27,929 56,994
190,121 863,552 96,208 1,149,881
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(3) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss, in respect of the Group's on and off-
balance sheet activities, arising from movements in market rates
including interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and stock prices.
Market risk arises from both the Group's proprietary and customer
driven business.

The objective of the Group's market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within an acceptable range
to optimise return on risk. The aim is to ensure the Group could
operate safely and soundly under a reasonable market risk level and
undertake market risk consistent with the market risk management
capabilities and capital capacity.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken in the
Group using risk limits approved by the Board of Management
and its affiliated committee. The Governors' Meeting on Risk
Management and Asset & Liability Committee ("ALCQO") will
supervise overall market risk by holding meetings and reviewing risk
management reports periodically to ensure that all market risks are
consolidated and considered.

Classification between trading portfolios and banking portfolios

The Group's exposures to market risk mainly exist in its trading
portfolios and banking portfolios.

Trading portfolios consist of positions in financial instruments held
either with trading intent or in order to economically hedge other
elements of the trading portfolio. Banking portfolios consist of
financial instruments held not with trading intent which are not
recorded in trading portfolios.

The market risks arising from trading and non-trading activities
are managed by the Risk Management Department and the
Treasury Department within the scope of their respective roles and
responsibilities. The Risk Management Department assumes the
responsibility for the overall risk management and the periodical
submission of the market risk reports to the Governors' Meeting
of Risk Management. The Treasury Department assumes the
responsibility for the overall asset and liability management and the
periodical submission of the interest rate risk and foreign exchange
risk reports to the Governors' Meeting of ALCO.

Market risk measurement tools and management approaches

Market risk is measured using VaR and sensitivity analysis
indicators, and monitored through risk limits.

Trading portfolios

In addition to VaR calculated for trading portfolios, the Group
monitors and manages its various risk exposures using risk limits,
sensitivity analysis, and stress testing.

VaR is an estimate of potential maximum losses which might arise
from unfavourable market movements within certain holding period
and confidence level.

The Group performs daily back testing for its market risk
measurement model, to verify its accuracy and reliability. The back
testing result will be reported to senior management periodically.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As a supplement to VaR, the Group adopts stress testing approach.
Stress testing scenarios are developed based on the Group's unique
business features, and are designed to estimate the potential maximum
losses from extremely unfavourable conditions. The Group also
continues adjusting and refining its trading portfolios stress testing
scenarios and measurements to capture impact of market price volatility
on VaR, and to improve its ability in identifying market risks.

The Group sets risk limits based on its risk management capabilities
over interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and capital capacity. The
Group also establishes appropriate risk limits for each trading product
combination, trading desk and each trader. The Risk Management
Department is responsible for the identification and measurement of
various risk exposures from all trading products, and the day-to-day
monitoring of the execution of the risk limits.

Banking portfolios

The Group monitors the market risk for banking portfolios mainly through
the use of VaR for foreign exchange risk and sensitivity analysis for
foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. The Risk Management
Department is responsible of foreign exchange risks VaR calculation and
reports the results to Governors' Meeting of Risk Management regularly.
The Treasury Department is responsible for the accurate and timely
identification and measurement of interest rate risk and foreign exchange
risk using gap analysis, sensitivity analysis, and EaR/VaR, and prepares
the quarterly assets and liabilities analysis report to the ALCO.

For sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk,
please refer to (3)(a) interest rate risk and (3)(b) foreign exchange risk
(including trading portfolios and banking portfolios).

(@) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk of the banking portfolio is the risk of loss in the overall
gain and economic value of the banking portfolio arising from adverse
movements in interest rate and duration structure, etc.

Currently, benchmark interest rates for loans and deposits within
Mainland China are set by the central bank. The Group operates
its business predominantly in China under the interest rate scheme
regulated by the central bank. Generally speaking, the interest rates
of interest bearing assets and liabilities with the same currency and
maturity date will move in the same direction. According to the central
bank regulations, interest rates on deposits denominated in RMB can
be set up to 10% higher than the central bank benchmark interest
rates, as for the interest rates on loans denominated in RMB there is
not restriction since 201 July 2013. The central bank has not adjusted
the benchmark interest rates for deposits and loans downwards during
the year ended 31 December 2013.

The banking portfolios interest rate risk is principally managed
based on impact of interest rate change on operation of income and
economic value, by using gap analysis, duration analysis, BP analysis
and net interest income simulation model. The Group implements
asset & liability management and hedging instrument to mitigate the
interest rate exposure of banking portfolios. The trading portfolios
market risk is mainly managed and monitored by interest rate limits,
VaR measurement, sensitivity analysis, foreign currency exposure
analysis, mark-to-market and breakeven analysis.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
(8) Market risk - continued
(@) Interest rate risk - continued

Analysis of interest rate risk is complicated by assumptions made  In terms of measuring and managing the interest rate risk, the Group
regarding optionality in certain product areas, and behavioural regularly measures interest rate repricing gaps, portfolio duration and
assumptions regarding the economic duration of liabilities which are monitors the sensitivity of projected net interest income and fair value
contractually repayable on demand, for example, current accounts. changes under varying interest rate scenarios (simulation modeling).

The prospective change in future net interest income will be reflected

in the current realisable value of these positions, should they be sold

or closed prior to maturity.

Repricing Gap Analysis

The table below summarises the Group's exposure to interest rate risk. It includes the Group's financial instruments at carrying amounts, categorised
by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates.

Within 3 312 15 5-10 Over Mo
months months years years 10years |nter'e - e
bearing

As at 31 December 2013
Financial assets:
Cash and balances with the central bank 40,946 - - - - 1910 42,856
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 91,365 266,153 - 80 - 44,841 402,439
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 59,569 27,900 - - - - 87,469
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 7,524 9,699 7,276 1,033 - 31,983 57,515
Derivative financial assets - - - - - 14,927 14,927
Financial assets held under resale agreements 340,630 5,650 15 - - - 346,295
Loans and advances to customers, net 3,767,563 2,799,319 165,039 85,500 112,547 - 6,929,968
Available-for-sale financial assets 22,085 17,039 76,009 18,678 3,119 15229 152,159
Held-to-maturity investments 1,685 1,700 1,999 - - - 5,384
Debt securities classified as receivables 1,105 5,405 2,922 3,060 - - 12,492
Other financial assets 5,402 69 - - - 30,550 36,021
Total financial assets 4,337,874 3,132,934 253,260 108,351 115,666 139,440 8,087,525
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 127,009 283,480 - - - 431 410,920
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 105,791 293,160 45,612 4,947 5,599 - 455,109
Placements from banks 19,190 16,426 - - - - 35,616
Derivative financial liabilities = - - - - 10,504 10,504
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 18,039 4,745 2,306 - - - 25,090
Due to customers 565,386 68,990 27,236 5,929 12,123 4,518 684,182
Debt securities issued 1,244,738 1,235,106 1,600,968 1,189,111 570,667 - 5,840,590
Other financial liabilities 1,222 187 1,477 - - 113,479 116,365
Total financial liabilities 2,081,375 1,902,094 1,677,599 1,199,987 588,389 128,932 7,578,376
Total interest repricing gap 2,256,499 1,230,840 (1,424,339) (1,091,636)  (472,723) 10,508 509,149
As at 31 December 2012
Total financial assets 3,849,690 2,967,161 223,525 110,884 122,903 156,721 7,430,884
Total financial liabilities 1,868,218 1,878,899 1,337,462 1,222,140 557,840 120,844 6,975,403

Total interest repricing gap 1991472 1088262  (1,113937) (1,111,256)  (434,937) 35,877 455,481




44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
(8) Market risk - continued
(@) Interest rate risk - continued
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Sensitivity analysis of net interest income and other comprehensive income

The following table illustrates the potential impact of a parallel upward or downward shift of 100 basis points in all financial instruments' yield
curves on the Group's net interest income and other comprehensive income, based on the Group's positions of interest-bearing assets and

liabilities at the end of each reporting period.

2013 2012
Net interest 0tl_1er Net interest Otr?er
. comprehensive . comprehensive
income . income .
income income
Rise 100 basis points 24,360 (3,091) 21,506 (1,890)
Fall 100 basis points (24,360) 3,238 (21,506) 2,022

The sensitivity analysis on net interest income for a year is based on
reasonably possible changes in interest rates with the assumption
that the structure of financial assets and financial liabilities held at
the period end remains unchanged.

The sensitivity analysis on other comprehensive income is the effect
of certain changes in interest rates on fair value changes on fixed
rate available-for-sale financial assets held at the period end.

The assumption does not represent the Group's capital and interest
rate risk management policy. Therefore the above analysis may
differ from the actual situation. In addition, the impact of interest
rate fluctuation is only for illustrating purpose, showing the potential
impact on net interest income and equity of the Group under
different yield structures and current interest rate risk situation. The
impact did not take into account the risk management procedures
that management may take to mitigate the interest rate risk.

(b) Foreign exchange risk

The Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in
the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial
position and cash flows.

The Group conducts the majority of its businesses in RMB, with certain
foreign currency transactions in USD, Euros ('EUR'), Japanese Yen ('JPY")
and to a much lesser extent, other currencies. Through foreign currency
swaps, the Group maintains its foreign currency risk mainly in USD. The
value of the RMB appreciated by 3.09% against the USD during the year
ended 31 December 2013(2012: appreciation by 0.25%). The Group's
exposure to currency risk could be increased if the RMB exchange rate
shows further upward movement trends.

The Group measured the impact of exchange rate risk on operation
principally by using foreign currency exposure, sensitivity analysis,
Earning at Risk ("EaR") and Value-at-Risk(VaR). And the Group
implements asset & liability management and hedging instrument to
mitigate the foreign exchange risk.

The table below summarises the Group's exposure to foreign currency
exchange rate risk at the end of the reporting period. RMB amounts
are provided for comparative purposes. Included in the table are the
Group's assets and liabilities at carrying amounts in RMB, categorised
by the original currency.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
(8) Market risk - continued
(b) Foreign exchange risk - continued

RMB uUsD Others Total
As at 31 December 2013
Financial assets:
Cash and balances with the central bank 40,964 1,890 2 42,856
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 288,944 95,647 17,848 402,439
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 55,673 31,796 - 87,469
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 45,530 8,389 3,596 57,515
Derivative financial assets 10,059 4141 727 14,927
Financial assets held under resale agreements 346,295 - - 346,295
Loans and advances to customers, net 5,458,187 1,350,264 121,517 6,929,968
Available-for-sale financial assets 143,842 1,369 6,948 152,159
Held-to-maturity investments 5,384 - - 5,384
Debt securities classified as receivables 12,342 150 - 12,492
Other financial assets 27,566 7,473 982 36,021
Total financial assets 6,434,786 1,501,119 151,620 8,087,525
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 173,226 225,387 12,307 410,920
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 126,408 303,969 24,732 455,109
Placements from banks 7,614 22,779 5,223 35,616
Derivative financial liabilities 3,020 6,854 630 10,504
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 25,090 - - 25,090
Due to customers 574,388 66,890 42,904 684,182
Debt securities issued 5,816,557 24,033 - 5,840,590
Other financial liabilities 110,710 5,290 365 116,365
Total financial liabilities 6,837,013 655,202 86,161 7,578,376
Net on-balance sheet position (402,227) 845,917 65,459 509,149
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/ nominal amount) 581,041 (528,574) (49,717) 2,750
Credit commitments 1,726,845 289,868 31,347 2,048,060
As at 31 December 2012
Total financial assets 5,858,408 1,418,897 153,579 7,430,884
Total financial liabilities 6,212,571 677,661 85,171 6,975,403
Net on-balance sheet position (354,163) 741,236 68,408 455,481
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/ nominal amount) 505,611 (451,879) (56,915) (3,183)

Commitments to extend credit 1,683,672 311,379 101,103 2,096,154




44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

®)

Market risk - continued
(b) Foreign exchange risk - continued
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The table below summarises the effect of exchange gain or losses given a 1% possible movement in exchange rate of USD against RMB:

Possible movement in exchange rate of USD against RMB

Rise 1%

Fall 1%

In determining the exchange gain or losses due to the possible exchange
movements, simplified assumptions and scenarios are adopted and do
not take into account:

@

changes in the Group's open USD position at end of the subsequent
reporting period;

the impact on the customers' behaviour due to the movement of the
exchange rate;

the effect of economic hedge on the Group's open USD position through
certain derivatives transactions; and

the impact on market price as a result of the movement of exchange rate.
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk when although the Group is able to meet its
payment obligations associated with its financial liabilities, however is
unable to rise enough funds at a reasonable cost to meet the assets
enhancement needs or to replace funds when they are withdrawn.
The consequence may be the failure to meet obligations to repay
debtors and depositors and fulfill commitments to lend.

The Group has established a set of liquidity management policies
and models to mitigate the liquidity risk effectively. The policy and
models include the method of forecasting and monitoring of future
cash flow, stress testing scenarios, plans for emergency, and etc.

In 2013, the Bank issued debt securities to fulfill its funding
requirements. In accordance with the approval from the CBRC, all
RMB bonds issued by the Bank will continue to enjoy their current
sovereign debt credit rating till the end of 2015.

Obijective of liquidity risk management and process

The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources
from current accounts, maturing deposits, debt securities issued,
loan drawdown, guarantees and other calls on cash settled
derivatives.

To ensure the mismatching of the cash flow and the maturities of
assets and liabilities within a reasonable scale is the fundamental
mission of the Group. It is impracticable for the Group to be
completely matched since business transactions are often of
uncertain terms and of different types. An unmatched position
potentially enhances profitability, but runs the risk of incurring losses.
The Group strives to manage its mismatched positions within a
reasonable range.

Liquidity risk management is performed by the ALCO. The Treasury
Department is the executive function department for detailed daily
operating. The Group's liquidity and funding management process
includes:

2013 2012
Gain/(losses) Gain/(losses)
7,721 6,664
(7,721) (6,664)

Projecting cash flows by major currency and considering the level of
liquid assets necessary in relation thereto;

Monitoring balance sheet liquidity gaps;
Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities; and
Maintaining debt financing plans.

The Group does not maintain cash resources to meet all of these
liquidity needs as the Group has the ability to refinance by issuing
new debts in the market. In addition, experience shows that a
minimum level of re-investment of maturing funds such as term
deposit from customers can be predicted with a high level of
certainty. Management maintains an appropriate level of highly
liquid assets to cover withdrawals at unexpected levels of demand.

The Group does not generally expect third-party to draw all of its fund
under letters of guarantees issued and or letters of credit issued.
The total outstanding contractual amount of commitment to extend
to credit does not necessarily represent future cash requirements,
since some of these commitments will either expire or terminate due
to the customers' inability to fulfill the conditions of drawdown.

Financial instruments liquidity analysis

Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by the Group to maintain
a wide diversification by provider, product, term currency and

geography.

The Group's policy is to seek a long-term healthy balance between
its funding requirements and demand from investors by maintaining
a presence in, and regularly returning to, the debt capital markets for
required funds under its different funding programmes. Each of the
Group's annual funding requirements are met through the issuance
of either fixed rate or floating rate plain vanilla debt securities and
debt securities with embedded options that allow the Group or the
bond holders to redeem them prior to the bonds' respective maturity.
However, bonds with options to redeem only comprise a small
portion of all bonds issued. As at 31 December 2013, the long-term
(with a maturity of one year or longer) debt securities issued of the
Group is amounting to RMB5,148,436 million, and other long-term
debts (include deposits from banks and other financial institutions,
borrowings from governments and financial institutions, placements
from banks, Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements
and due to customers) is amounting to RMB361,978 million.

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group
under non-derivative financial instrument by remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting period as well as cash flows
from derivatives, whether settled in net or gross. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
The cash flow of financial instruments estimated by the Group may
have significant difference with the table as below:
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
(4) Liquidity risk - continued
Financial instruments liquidity analysis - continued

As at 31 Decermnber 2013 Past due/ On Within 1 1-3 3-12 1-5 5-10 Over 10 Total
undated demand month months months years years years
Non-derivative financial assets

Cash and balances with the 686 424171 ) i ) ) i ) 42857
central bank

Deposits with banks and other - 126769 5981 3547 266,202 - 81 - 402670
financial institutions

Placements ith banks and other : - 57892 2099 29343 . : - 89134
financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value 31,983 - 736 6504 10680 8,590 1634 - 60,127
through profit or loss

Financial assets held under resale ) . 231214 111352 5811 17 i . 348,394
agreements

Loans and advances to 3823 - 45956 213832 1,358120 3817,506 2421811 1801500 9,662,638
customers, net

Available-for-sale financial assets 15,229 - 8,746 13,215 20,602 87,583 25,105 5,295 175,775

Held-to-maturity investments - - - 1,705 1,886 2,270 - - 5,861

Debt securities classified as ) 5 8 433 6,999 4212 3,609 ) 15,356
receivables

Other financial assets 6 873 55 88 1,652 2,608 3,165 1 8,448

Total non-derivative financial 51707 160818 350,388 352775 1701385 3022876 2455495 1806796 10,811,260

assets

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Deposits from banks and other

) e - 80,230 905 5,087 291,626 47,023 598 - 425,469
financial institutions
Borrowings from governments ; - 27063 67,829 125021 245582 5,839 6,203 477,627
and financial institutions
Placements from banks - - 9,611 9,776 16,654 - - - 36,041
Financial assets sold under ) C 14760 3418 4,955 0487 i ) 25620
repurchase agreements
Due to customers - 500,661 12,684 25,660 80,682 54,811 9,462 21,640 705,600
Debt securities issued - - 95159 148,571 691,098 3,432,197 2,160,021 965,312 7,492,358
Other financial liabilities 285 2,019 151 951 5,323 4,022 5 1,060 13,816

Total non-derivative financial 285 582010 160333 261292 1215350 3786122 2175925 994305 9,176,531

liabilities
Derivative cash flows

Derivatives settled on a net basis

Net inflow - - 14 54 216 775 1,251 5,108 7,418
Derivatives settled on a gross

basis:

Total inflow = = 11,008 57,299 564,174 54,699 449 799 688,428

Total outflow - - (11,307) (57,184) (552,142)  (51,963) (384) (715)  (673,695)
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
(4) Liquidity risk - continued
Financial instruments liquidity analysis - continued

As at 31 December 2012 Past due/ On Within 1 1-3 3-12 1-5 5-10 Over 10 Total
undated demand month months months years years years
Non-derivative financial assets

Cash and balances with the 649 90,623 ) ) ) ) ) ) 91,272
central bank

Deposits with banks and other - 167,787 11341 2185 278592 - 134 18 460,057
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other . - 30940 15678 18505 - - - 74123
financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value 28,826 - 1850 3968 16825 13789 1997 - 67255
through profit or loss

Financial assets held under resale i . 146215 147.085 1348 ) ) i 004,848
agreements

Loans and advances to 2819 - 36372 213686 1120225 3506403 2236968 1602358 8727831
customers, net

Available-for-sale financial assets 15,435 - 5,905 5,442 53,588 33,957 19,175 8,156 141,658

Held-to-maturity investments - - - - 186 3,620 536 - 4,342

Debt securiies classiied as : 90 743 459 3760 3997 4,367 - 13416
receivables

Other financial assets - 22,036 11 1,406 6,220 1,097 - 17 30,787

Total non-derivative financial

assets 47,729 280,636 242,377 390,109 1508249 3562863 2263177 1,610,549 9,905,589

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Deposits from banks and other

. o - 63,679 30 10,482 363,150 2,319 48,266 - 487,926
financial institutions
Borrowings from governments ; - 27073 73819 171588 163217 5419 5936 447,052
and financial institutions
Placements from banks - - 5,894 6,004 19,206 - - - 31,104
Financial assets sold under ) ) 8,525 1120 7423 477 B ) 17,545
repurchase agreements
Due to customers - 461,076 10,436 27,503 50,277 48,135 8,921 22,020 628,368
Debt securities issued - - 76,354 124,648 636,645 2,973,735 2,121,217 838,685 6,771,284
Other financial liabilities - 652 19 161 2,677 3,590 7,921 869 15,889

Total non-derivative financial

s - 525407 128,331 243,737 1,250,966 3,191,473 2,191,744 867,510 8,399,168
liabilities

Derivative cash flows

Derivatives settled on a net basis

Net inflow = = (11) 46 94 579 1,266 5,466 7,440
Derivatives settled on a gross

basis:

Total inflow = = 14,574 83,308 520,596 39,724 - - 658,202

Total outflow = - (14900) (84,505  (517,909) (38,300) . - (655,614)




190 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
(4) Liquidity risk - continued
Financial instruments liquidity analysis - continued

Letters of guarantee issued, letters of credit issued, bank bill acceptance and loan commitments are included below based on the earliest
contractual maturity date.

Within 1 1-3 3-12 1-5 5-10 Over 10

REEE [MEEE IO month months months years years years 1EiE!
Loan commitments 800,829 81,203 410,619 548,728 74,836 1,772 1,917,987
Letters of guarantee issued 739 2,866 13,322 30,109 28,621 2,704 78,361
Bank bill acceptance 3,791 8177 21,042 - - - 33,010
Letters of credit issued 3,524 9,046 5,390 742 - - 18,702
Total 808,883 101,292 450,373 579,579 103,457 4,476 2,048,060
As at 31 December 2012 588,651 193,066 400,573 869,242 31,615 13,007 2,096,154

(5) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value represents the amount for which an asset could be
exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm's length transaction. The best evidence of fair value
for a financial instrument is the bid price for the asset held or the
offer price for the liability issued in an active market. If the market
for a financial instrument is not active, fair value is determined using
a valuation technique as illustrated in Note 3.(12). The valuation
technigue makes maximum use of observable market data and
relies as little as possible on the Group specific inputs. In other
words, the valuation techniques adopted by the Group incorporate all
factors that market participants could consider in setting a price, and
are consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing
financial instruments.

(@) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

In respect of assets and liabilities carried at other than fair value,
the following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it is
practicable.

(i) Cash and balances with the central bank, deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, financial assets purchased under
resale agreements, deposits from financial institutions, current
account balances of customers, financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements, current receivables or payables within
other assets and other liabilities respectively.

Given that these financial assets and liabilities are short-term in
nature and reprice to current market rates frequently, the carrying
amount approximates the fair value.

(i) Investment securities classified as held to maturity and debt
securities classified as receivables

The fair value of listed securities is estimated using bid market price. The
fair value of unlisted securities is estimated using valuation techniques
that take into consideration future cash flows and valuations of similar
quoted securities.

(iii) Loans and advances to customers

The carrying amount of variable rate loans and advances to customers is
a reasonable estimate of fair value because interest rates are mainly tied
to the market rates and are adjusted when applicable. The fair value of
fixed rate loans to customers is estimated using a discounted cash flow
analysis utilising the rates currently offered for loans of similar remaining
maturities. For impaired loans, fair value is estimated by discounting the
future cash flows over the time period, which they are expected to be
recovered.

(iv) Fixed interest-bearing deposits and borrowings

The fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits and borrowings is
estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis utilising the rates
currently offered for deposits and borrowings with similar remaining
maturities.

(v) Debt securities and subordinated debt issued

The fair value of debt securities is determined using quoted market
prices where available or by reference to quoted market prices for similar
instruments. For those securities where quoted market prices or quoted
market prices for similar instruments are not available, a discounted cash
flow model is used based on a current yield curve appropriate for the
remaining term to maturity.

The estimated fair values of financial instruments, of which the respective
amortised cost are different, at the end of each reporting period are
summarised as follows:

Debt securities issued

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Amortised cost Fairvalue  Amortised cost Fair value

5,840,590 5,499,411 5,302,197 5,211,977

The carrying amount of other financial instruments not measured at fair value approximates the fair value.



44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

(5) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities - continued

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

According to the inputs of the lowest level which is significant for the overall fair value measurement, the types of the fair value hierarchy are

as below:

* Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement

date.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

* Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

* Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2013

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

Total

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities

As at 31 December 2012

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

Total

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities

Transferring between level 1 and level 2 during 2013 and 2012 was insignificant.

The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the

valuation technique(s) and key input(s) used).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1,335 25,040 31,140 57,515
- 14,911 16 14,927
16,544 129,281 1,517 147,342
17,879 169,232 32,673 219,784
- (10,504) - (10,504)

980 34,727 28,031 63,738

- 12,339 3,373 15,712
12,661 108,065 1,229 121,955
13,641 155,131 32,633 201,405
- (9,871) (3,325) (13,196)
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
(5) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities - continued
(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value - continued

Financial assets/financial
liabilities

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - Debt securities

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - Equity investments

Available-for-sale financial assets - Debt
securities

Available-for-sale financial assets -
Equity investments

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - Debt securities

Available-for-sale financial assets - Debt
securities

Derivative financial assets - Currency
swaps (including cross-currency interest
rate swaps)

Derivative financial liabilities - Currency
swaps (including cross-currency interest
rate swaps)

Derivative financial assets - currency
forward contracts

Derivative financial liabilities - currency
forward contracts

Derivative financial assets - Interest rate
swaps

Derivative financial liabilities- Interest
rate swaps

Derivative financial assets - currency
options

Derivative financial assets - Interest rate
option

Derivative financial liabilities - Interest
rate options

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - Equity investments

Available-for-sale financial assets -
Equity investments

Derivative financial assets -Equity
option

Fair value
at 31
December
2013

492

843

7,649

8,895

25,039

129,282

6,698

(2,735)

128

(121)

6,960

(7,.221)

698

427

(427)

31,140

1,517

16

Fair value
hierarchy

Level 1

Level 2

Level 2

Level 2

Level 2

Level 2

Level 3

Level 3

Valuation technique(s) and key
input(s)

Quoted bid prices in an active market (for
example, Shanghai Stock Exchange).

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
estimated based on forward interest rate
(from observable yield curves at the end of the
reporting period), face amount and contract
interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of various counterparties.

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
estimated based on forward exchange rate,
forward interest rate (from observable forward
exchange rates and yield curves at the end

of the reporting period), contract forward and
interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of various counterparties.

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
estimated based on forward exchange rate
(from observable forward exchange rates at
the end of the reporting period) and contract
forward rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of various counterparties.

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
estimated based on forward interest rate
(from observable yield curves at the end of the
reporting period) and contract interest rates,
discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk
of various counterparties.

Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model is estimated
based on forward interest rates (from
observable yield curves at the end of the
reporting period) and contract exercise price,
volatility that reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties.

Discounted cash flow.

Binomial-Tree Option Pricing Model.

Significant
unobservable

input(s) (1)

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Weighted average cost
of capital, determined
using a Capital Asset
Price Model, ranging
from 4.06% - 16.7%
(weighted average
8.11%).

Price to book value
ratio of the comparable
companies, taking into
account management's
experience and
knowledge of market
conditions of the
specific industries,
ranging from 3.08 to
9.33.

Relationship of
unobservable
input(s) to fair
value

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

The higher the
weighted average
cost of capital,
the lower the fair
value.

The higher the
price to book value
ratio, the lower the
fair value.

(1) If the above unobservable inputs to the valuation model were 10% higher/lower while all the other variables were held constant, the carrying amount
of the financial instruments would decrease/increase by RMB476 million/ RMB518 million.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
(5) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities - continued
(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value - continued

Reconciliation of level 3 items is listed as follows:

Financial assets Financial liabilities

At 1 January 2013 28,031 3,373 1,229 32,633 (3,325)
Total gain/(losses) 91 (1,516) 319 (1,106) 1,520

- gain/(losses) 91 (1,516) - (1,425) 1,520

- other comprehensive income - - 319 319 -
Sales (2,638) = 31) (2,669) -
Addition 5,656 = = 5,656 -
Settlements - (186) - (186) 150
Transfer out from level 3 - (1,655) - (1,655) 1,655
At 31 December 2013 31,140 16 1,517 32,673 -

Total gain/(losses) for the period for assets/
liabilities held at 31 December 2013

- included in profit or loss 92 4 - 96 -
- included in other comprehensive income - - 319 319 -
Financial assets Financial liabilities

At 1 January 2012 15,697 3,905 472 20,074 (3,722)
Total gain/(losses) 236 (561) (31) (356) 203
- gain/(losses) 236 (561) (63) (388) 203
- other comprehensive income - - 32 32 -
Sales (2,045) = - (2,045) -
Addition 14,143 4 1,137 15,321 (30)
Settlements - (12 (349) (361) 224
At 31 December 2012 28,031 3,373 1,229 32,633 (3,325)

Total gain/(losses) for the period for assets/
liabilities held at 31 December 2012

- included in profit or loss 112 (385) (35) (308) 27

- included in other comprehensive income - - 4 4 -

For some OTC structured derivatives, the Group has determined their fair value through valuation services provided by the third-party instead of
inquiry from counterparties, and the main inputs used are observable. Therefore, the Group has transferred them into Level 2.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

(6) Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the "equity" presented on the face of the consolidated statement

of financial position, are:

* to comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the banking markets where the entities within the Group operate;

* to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders; and

* to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

45. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

In accordance with the presentation of the consolidated financial statements, the Group has restated the specific comparative figures.

46. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

In 2013, the Group derecognised the financial assets when it transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred
assets to another party in securitisation transactions. In 2012, the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the transferred assets, and has retained control of the transferred assets in securitisation transactions. Circumstances in which
the Group has continuing involvement in the transferred assets may include retention of servicing rights over the transferred assets and retaining a
subordinated interest in the securitisation vehicle. Where the Group has continuing involvement it continues to recognise the transferred assets to the
extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. The net carrying amount of the transferred assets and associated liabilities

reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

At 31 December 2013 2013
(R BT BT Maximum Gain or loss Income
continuing involvementin  Fair value of continuing f ;
- . exposure recognised at  recognised
the consolidated statement involvement - transfer date in vear
of financial position Y
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Interest in SPE 703 703 703 703 703 - 14
At 31 December 2012 2012
(?arr_ylng L] . . i Maximum Gain or loss Income
continuing involvementin  Fair value of continuing . "
- . exposure recognised at  recognised
the consolidated statement involvement .
" . " to loss transfer date in year
of financial position
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Interest in SPE 703 703 703 703 703 - 2

The assets in the table above represent the Group's continuing involvement in securitisations where the Group has transferred assets to a SPE, but
has retained some of the subordinated notes issued by the SPE. These notes are reported in debt securities classified as receivables. The maximum

exposure to loss is the carrying amount of the notes.
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